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Cork County Council



Ann Kilmartin

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Attachments:

Sean Molloy <smolloy@jodireland.com> on behalf of Sean Molloy

Tuesday, January 26, 2021 12:15 PM

Ann Kilmartin

RE: 6225 GWF & 6226 IWF - Pre-Planning Mtg. with Cork County Council - Scoping
Opinion

Scoping Report Inchamore wind farm.docx; scoping report for gortyrahilly wind
farm.docx; PPW 6225 Gortyrahilly WF & PPW 6226 Inchamore WF EO Advices
FV.docx

From: Thomas Watt <Thomas.Watt@CorkCoCo.ie>
Sent: Friday 22 January 2021 16:57
To: Sean Molloy <smolioy@jodireland.com>

Cc: Greg Simpson <Greg.Simpson@ CorkCoCo.le>; Carol Stack <Carol.Stack@CorkCoCo.ie>
Subject: RE: 6225 GWF & 6226 IWF - Pre-Planning Mtg. with Cork County Council - Ecology Scoping Documents

Hi Sean

Some comments following our MSTeam meeting from last Thursday, (14'}). This is not exclusive list and further
comments are attached, prepared by Carol Stack and initial comments of our heritage team {ecology) prior to the

meeting.

I'd like to reiterate that we would be happy to meet again prior to your submission to ABP to facilitate application.

¢ | refer you to COP objective HE 2- 3 Biodiversity outside protected areas and the Heritage Chapter asa

whole

¢  Would be useful to add rationale for view point locations, some new viewing points from the new N22

would be of value

*  Would be worthwhile making contact with Area Engineers listed by Greg and our archaeoclogist Mary
Sleeman and Conservation Officer, Mona Hallinan for built heritage issues arising

» Site adjoins Kerry Co Co area identified as not be appropriate for wind farms. An exploration of how this
proposal relates to this area, being so close to Co boundary. — its visual impact or potential ecological impact
to Mational Park. Can you differentiate between the two, can you mitigate the qualifying interests which
underly the KCC policy?

s Identify Met Mast and clarify height

+ Ecology unit has identified some turbines they have concerns with. See attached comments.

¢ Determine grid connection and include same in application for turbines would be advisable

e Submit rationale for separate application processes (SID / PP}, grid connection being one aspect of that

judgement

s

e Clarify the duration of construction
» Welcome your stated approach of avoidance of hog.
o Welcome distances achieved from residential units, in line with draft national guidelines

Regards

Tom
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A request for Scoping Opinion on information to be included in the preparation of an
Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) for inchamore Wind Farm, Coolea Co. Cork was
received on 13/11/20.

2

The purpose of the request is so that key environmental issues/concerns can be identified
early and the development can be designed to avoid or minimise any potentially significant
environmental effects, and that any remaining likely significant effects can be assessed
appropriately

The Proposed Development

The Developer intends to apply to Cork County Council for planning permission for the
construction of approximately 6 no. wind turbines each typically of 4.5 — 6 megawatts (MW)
with a combined output of circa 30MW located approximately 6km to the west of the village
of Ballyvourney in the Muscrai Gaeltacht, Co. Cork. The proposals will also include planning
permission for the construction of an underground grid connection to Ballyvouskill 220kv
substation, Co. Cork, located approximately 12.5km to the north east of the Development.

480hectares of land involved -

6 turbines (4.5 - 6 MW)

Tip height - 185m

Rotor diameter of 155m and hub height in region of 110m.

Route options that will connect the Development to the national grid are being
explored



Planning Dept. Feedback

The following should be noted:

Site is within an area;
o where open farms are open to consideration
o within landscape character type 15b - 15b - Ridged and Peaked Upland
o within transitional rural area
o where site boundary runs along the Kerry border

Information to be contained in EIAR — report submitted for scoping covers the various
EIAR requirements already — follow all relevant guidelines including ElA guidelines,
relevant Wind Energy Guidelines, EPA advice notes and relevant legislation.

The EIAR and construction practice and methodology should take into account ground
conditions onsite and best practise. Disposal or elimination of waste/surplus material
from construction/site clearance, particularly significant for peatland sites should be
taken into account,

Reasonable alternatives to be considered (as per scoping doc) and must also indicate
the main reasons for the option chosen taking into account the effects of the project
on the environment

Grid connection needs to be finalised - Should the grid connection not form part of
the planning application, the EIAR should indicate the most likely corridor of the grid
connection, its width and route and the likely nature of the connection in terms of line
voltage, whether it will be underground (preferred) or over ground (including details
of pole type) and any ancillary equipment {e.g. substations}.

Cumulative impacts to be considered (as per scoping doc} - include an assessment of
all the existing or approved wind farm developments in the area. In addition the EIAR
should also take into account any existing or approved large scale developments in
the area.

Consider transboundary effects given proximity to Kerry Border.

Might be worthwhile including some vantage points from new Macroom bypass route
in terms of potential visual impacts.

C.Stack,
Exec. Planner.
11/1/21



Ecology Office Advices - Pre-Planning / General Scoping

PPW: 6225 Gortyrahilly Wind Farm, Co. Cork and PPW: 6226 inchamore Wind
Farm, Co. Cork

These comments are made without prejudice and are based on a review of General Scoping
Documents received in respect of the above mentioned windfarm sites and are also based on
publicly available information. | do not have access to any site specific ecological data in relation to
these sites.

At the outset, given the proximity of the two windfarm sites to one another (c.3km) and given their

iocation within the same general area and catchment and probable use of the same grid connection
infrastructure and access, the question of project splitting will need to be addressed at the outset to
determine whether the two projects should be considered as a single project.

in any event both projects will need to be assessed as part of the cumulative impacts assessment
together. Any cumulative impacts assessment should also consider solar projects within the area
having particular regard to cumulative impacts on protected species, habitats of high natural value
including peatland habitats, other upland habitats and on freshwater habitats.

Having regard to the site context, the assessment of peat stability will be an important element of
these applications. Key concerns from an ecological perspective are:

¢ Potential for impact on sites designated or proposed to be designated for protection of
biodiversity;

s Potential for impact on habitats of high natural value; and

o Potential for impact on protected species.

Aerial imagery indicates that the proposed developments comprises of areas intact peatland
habitats and upland habitats of high natural value. This is a concern from an ecological perspective
as it is generally recommended to avoid intact upland habitats, in particular peatland habitats when
identifying appropriate sites for development of wind farms. For this reason, | would refer you to
policy HE 2-3 of the CDP and to reconsider the positioning of some of the works {see detailed
comments below in respect of sites).

Based on the mapping presented, it appears that neither of the sites overlap with the boundaries of
any site which is designated or proposed to be designated for nature conservation. However,
screening for Appropriate Assessment will be required to identify whether there are any potential
pathways for impact linking these sites to any such site, locking in particular at potential hydrological
linkages to any such site. To that end it should be noted that the site is located within the Lee -
Sullane River catchment.

Without direct knowledge of the site, issues we will be likely to be looking closely at are:

¢ Assessment of impact on upland habitats including intact peatlands. Per above, itis
recommended that development_on intact peatland habitats and upland hahitats of high
natural value is avoided.

o Potential for the project to give rise to negative effects on freshwater habitats and having
particular regard to potential impacts on Fresh water pearl Musse! and Satmon. To this end,
there should be a focus at design stage on providing for an appropriately designed surface




water management system which minimises risk of release of contaminants to surface
waters and ensures that there is no increase in surface water run-off from the
site. Avoidance of disturbance of peat based habitats will greatly assist with this.

e  Any species specific surveys which are deemed to be reguired including bird surveys must be
completed by qualified and experienced practitioners following recognised best practise
methods. It should be noted that up to two years’ full season surveys are required for
certain bird species should a potential impact on any such species he identified as a possible
risk having regard to reference.

e Decommissioning and reinstatement should be considered in detail and shall include
opportunities for hiodiversity enhancement where possible.

The Biodiversity chapter of the EIAR should be prepared to accord with CIEEM Guidelines shouid be
prepared taking account of National and EU Guidelines as well as recent case law.

No details of grid connection options were incorporated into the pre-planning enquiry. As per the
AP’s comments full details of options shall be detailed and assessed as part of the applications.

Specific Comments in relation to Inchamore Windfarm

Per above comments and based on constraints mapping, it is recommended that development is
avoided within areas identified as:

o ‘largely intact upland blanket bog’ and ‘cutaway blanket bog with intact areas’ located in
proximity to turbine 3 and associated developable areas within the vicinity of these habitats;
and

* areas comprising of a ‘Mosaic of Upland Blanket Bog and Wet Heath’ in proximity to the
developable area associated with turbine 1.

Specific Comments in relation to Gortyrahilly Windfarm

Per above comments and based on constraints mapping, it is recommended that development is
avoided within areas identified as:

¢ ‘blanket bog’ in proximity to the developable area associated with turbine 8.

Joy Barry
Ecology Office Planner
13/01/2020
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PPW: 6225 Gortyrahilly Wind Farm, Co. Cork and PPW! 62?6‘”!!§amore Wind

Farm, Co. Cork

These comments are made without prejudice and are based on a review of General Scoping
Documents and Ecology Scoping documents received in respect of the above mentioned windfarm
sites and are also based on publicly available information. | do not have access to any site specific
ecological data in relation to these sites.

Please note that this document was updated following receipt of Ecological Scoping Reports — text
included in purple to reflect same.

At the outset, given the proximity of the two windfarm sites to one another (c.3km) and given their
location within the same general area and catchment and probable use of the same grid connection
infrastructure and access, the question of project splitting will need to be addressed at the outset to
determine whether the two projects should be considered as a single project.

fn any event both projects will need to he assessed as part of the cumulative impacts assessment
together. Any cumulative impacts assessment should also consider solar projects within the area
having particular regard to cumulative impacts on protected species, habitats of high natural value
including peatfand habitats, other upland habitats and on freshwater habitats,

Having regard to the site context, the assessment of peat stability will be an important element of
these applications. Key concerns from an ecological perspective are:

s Potential for impact on sites designated or proposed to be designated for protection of
biodiversity;

+ Potential for impact on habitats of high natural value; and

e Potential for impact on protected species.

Aerial imagery indicates that the proposed developments comprises of areas intact peatland
habitats and upland hahitats of high natural value. This is a concern fram an ecological perspective
as it is generally recommended to aveid intact upland habitats, in particular peatland habitats when
identifying appropriate sites for development of wind farms. For this reason, | would refer you to
policy HE 2-3 of the CDP and to reconsider the positioning of some of the works (see detailed
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
pathways for impact linking these sites to any such site, looking in particular at potential hydrological
linkages to any such site. To that end it should be noted that the site is located within the Lee -
Sullane River catchment,

Without direct knowledge of the site, issues we will be likely to be looking closely at are:

o Assessment of impact on upland habitats including intact peatlands. Per above, it is

recommended that development_on intact peatiand habitats and upland habitats of high
natural value is avoided.




Potential for the project to give rise to negative effects on freshwater habitats and having
particular regard to potential impacts on Fresh water pearl Mussel and Salmon. To this end,
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

Any species specific surveys which are deemed to be required including bird surveys must be
completed by qualified and experienced practitioners following recognised best practise
methods. It should be noted that up to two years’ full season surveys are required for
certain bird species should a potential impact on any suich species be identified as a possible
risk having regard to reference. Ornithological summary resuits presented in scoping
documentation dates from 2017 to 2019 and given the time lapse, supplementary surveys
for the intervening period will be required. Please present mapping of any habitat loss
respective to foraging and breeding sites as part of assessment.

With regard to bat activity, if commuting and foraging routes of bats relative to proposals
could be presented and if these routes could also be presented respective of habitats on site
including any habitat loss associated with the development.

Decommissioning and reinstatement should be considered in detail and shall include
opportunities for biodiversity enhancement where possible.

The Biodiversity chapter of the EIAR should be prepared to accord with CIEEM Guidelines should be
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

‘largely intact upland blanket bog” and ‘cutaway blanket bog with intact areas’ located in
proximity to turbine 3 and associated developable areas within the vicinity of these habitats;
and

areas comprising of a2 ‘Mosaic of Upland Blanket Bog and Wet Heath’ in proximity to the
developable area associated with turbine 1.

Ecological Scoping document acceptable in principle

Specific Comments in relation to Gortyrahilly Windfarm

Per above comments and based on constraints mapping, it is recommended that development is
avoided within areas identified as:

‘blanket bog’ in proximity to the developable area associated with turbine 8.



Joy Barry
Ecology Office Planner
03/02/2020




Development Applications Unit
Department of Tourism, Culture, Arts, Gaeltacht, Sport and Media



An Roinn Turasdireachta, Cultuir,
Ealaion, Gaeltachta, Spéirt agus Mean
Department of Tourismi, Culture,

Arts, Gaeltacht, Sport and Media

Your Ref: 6226 inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork
Qur Ref: G Pre(00233/2020
(Please quote in all related correspondence)

19 April 2021

Sarah Moore

For: Jennings O’Donovan & Pariners Limited
Finisklin Business Park

Sligo

F91 RHHS

Via email: smoore@ijodireland.com

Re: Request for Scoping Opinion on information to be included in the preparation of
an Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) for Inchamore Wind Farm, Coolea,
County Cork

A chara

I refer to correspondence dated 12" November 2020 received in connection with the
above. Outlined below are Nature Conservation observations/recommendations
coordinated by the Development Applications Unit.

Nature Conservation

Thank you for your consultation letter of 12" November 2020 regarding the proposed
Inchamore wind-farm as detailed in the attached Scoping Document of November 2020, and
subsequent e-mail of 301" March 2021.

The following scoping is not comprehensive, and is without prejudice to any
recommendations that the Department may make to a planning authority concerning a
planning application on foot of information collected or collated as part of the EIA process. A
number of guidance documents for professional consultants have been published on the
quality of ecological data in EIA', and there are numerous contemporary Environmental
Impact Assessment Reports (EIARs) available for wind-farm proposals in upland areas,
many parts of which show good practice.

The proposed development is not within, adjacent to, or significantly upstream of a
designated or proposed European site (Special Conservation Area (SAC), Candidate Special
Area of Conservation (cSAC), Special Protection Area (SPA), proposed Special Protection

! £.g. the CIEEM guidance referred to in the Scoping Report.
Aonad na nlarratas ar Fhorbairt
Development Applications Unit
Oifigi an Rialtais
Government OFICES | e
Béthar an Bhaile Nua, Loch Garman, Contae Loch Garman, Y35 APS0
Newtown Road, Wexford, County Wexford, Y35 APA(




Area (pSPA), Natural Heritage Area (NHA) or proposed Natural Heritage Area (pNHA).
However, there are a number of protected species occuiring in the area potentially impacted
by the wind farm that the EIAR should fully assess:

1. There have been a number of fatalities of white-tailed sea eagles, caused by
collisions with turbine blades, in wind farms to the south of the proposed
developments. An understanding of current and predicted future use by white-tailed
eagles of the development site would be expected of the EIAR. In particular, the EIAR
shouid assess the locations of turbines with respect o valley and slope topography
which increase the risk of collision with eagles gaining height on updrafts, based
especially on published Norwegian data. Also, a programme for livestock carcass
monitoring and management needs to be put in place, to avoid attracting eagles into
the rotor-swept area of turbines.

2. The proposed wind farm is within the catchment of the River Sullane, which, in
addition to fish species of conservation importance (please consult Inland Fisheries
ireland for scoping), contains a population of the freshwater pearl mussel. The (high)
water quality requirements of this species should be taken intc account in designing
siltation control measures. The combination of clean water diversion, lined
multicelled stone-constructed sediment ponds which can be cleaned by suction
rather than excavated out, an environmental management plan, alarmed
autosamplers, and previous best-practice upland construction experience indicates
that a sediment control system could control sediment release such that it wili not
have an adverse effect on freshwater life downstream.

3. In connection with the above also, a thorough geotechnical stability: risk and
hydrogeological assessment needs to be carried out of areas of relatively deep peat
soil, not just for turbine foundations, but also for access roads, borrow pits, drains,
etc. There are a number of cases of peat slides during upland wind farm construction,
and the scientific investigations of the causes of these should be taken into account f
in the EIAR. V

4, Other protected species that require species-appropriate survey methods following
published best practice are (a) red grouse, (b) merlin, (c) hen harrier, {(d} golden
plover, (e) curlew (f) Leisler's bat, (g) Kerry slug and (h) marsh fritillary. For red
grouse, the long-term effect of increased human access {on foot, motorbike or ORV)
via roadways (and potentially fox access), as well as increased perches and food for
hooded crows, needs to be considered in terms of the likelihood of increased
predation on this species. Note that both merlin and roosting hen harrier are often
difficult to detect, and have been underestimated previously in some EIARS, so
experienced observers are recommended. Golden plover must be taken into account
in cumulative assessment with other wind farms in the Cork/Kerry Mountains.
Leisler's bat may be more susceptible to collision or baro-trauma, so turbine locations
which overlap with feeding features need to be taken into account. A ficence
application for addressing any direct impacts on Kerry slug habitat may be necessary.



Marsh fritillary may not be present in suitable habitat every year due to their
metapopulation dynamics, so suitable habitat should also be recorded (as mentioned
on page 6 of the Scoping Report).

5. There are a few upland protected plant species (including mosses and liverworts —
see Statutory Instrument. No. 356 of 2015, Flora Protection Order) which need to be
surveyed for if or where suitable habitat exists in the development footprint. The
discovery of the small cudweed (Filago minima) is mentioned in the Scoping Report,
and it needs to be established if this can be avoided by the development.

6. 1t is now well established that climate change is likely to have a considerable impact
on biodiversity and wildlife, due to droughts, floods, sea level rise, changes in
seasonal weather, etc. The impact of CO2 emissions from extensive peat excavation,
if this is to be carried out, needs to be fully accounted.

7. Impacts from associated works: (a) The likelihood of increases in nutrient loading of
the River Sullane from forestry felling should also be assessed?; (b) The effect of haul
road widening and bridge upgrade works on protected species (e.g. otter, Kerry slug,
Daubenton’s and other bat species) should also be assessed; (c) if underground
cables are to transport electricity, then river/stream crossings need to be examined,
especially if in designated rivers; (d) effects of any fencing, lattice anemometer
towers, etc., on red grouse collisions should be assessed.

8. The focus on habitats of conservation importance which are not protected, in the
Scoping Report (page 6), is welcome. It should be kept in mind that some external
funding agencies at European or global level are now expecting no net loss of
biodiversity as part of their funding requirements.

9. The visibility of the turbines from Killarney National Park, although not an ecological
issue, needs to be assessed elsewhere in the EIAR.

10. Section 3.6 refers to assessment of ornithological impacts during construction and
operation. Assessment of decommissioning, because of its often similar disturbance
effects 1o construction, should also be assessed.

11. Finally, reliance on post-planning approval of detaiied works (e.g. river crossings),
and monitoring design, by the National Parks and Wildlife Service (NPWS) of the
Department, should be avoided as (a) it may indicate inadequacies of assessment
by the EIAR, and (b) staff may not be available to support this in the time frame of an
active construction project.

? See, for instance, Heal, K., et a/. (2020} Wind farm development on peatlands increases fluvial
macronutrient loading. Ambic 49: 442-459,



A regional officer of the NPWS Ecological Assessment Unit is available for an on-line meeting
(Starleaf, Teams, preferable) to clarify any of the above, as requested. However, the detail
of the scope and methodology of the EIAR surveys are a matter for the expert consultants
advising the developer, who should be aware of up-to-date best-practice guidance in their
respective fields.

The above observations/recommendations are based on the papers submitted to this
Department on a pre-planning basis and are made without prejudice to any observations that
the Minister may make in the context of any consulitation arising on foot of any development
application referred to the Minister, by the planning authority/ies, in their role as statutory
consultee under the Planning and Development Act, 2000, as amended.

You are requested to send further communications to the Development Applications Unit
(DAU) at manager.dau@housing.gov.ie, or to the following address:

The Manager

Development Applications Unit (DAU)
Government Offices

Newtown Road

Wexford

Y35 APO0

Is mise, le meas

Development Applications Unit




Kerry County Council



Kerry County Council; h Comhairte Chontae Chiarrai,

County Buildings, Tralee, Co. Keny. Aras an Chontae, Tré Li, Co. Chiarrai.
Tel: {066} 7183582 Fax: (066) 7120328 Guthan: (066) 7183582 Faics: (066) 7120328
E-mail: plan@kerycocn ie; Web: hitp:thwayv.kemyooco.ie

Re: Pre-Planning Consultation

24" August 2021

Sean Molloy
Jennings O Donovan & Partners Ltd
Finisklin Business Park

Sligo

Dear Sir,

| am writing to you in relation to your recent Pre-Planning Application.

Details as follows
Reference Number: PP 21/362

Applicant Name: Coiilte CGA
Applicant Address: Coillte Regional Office, Hartnetts Cross, Macroom, Co Cork,
Site Location: Derryreag, Cummeenavrick, Glashacormick, Clydaghroe,

Cummeennabuddege, Townlands
Please be advised of the following observations/comments by the area planner in relation to your
proposed development:

Proposed grid connection and haul route the proposed Inchamore wind farm in Cork.
EIA. AA. Archaeclogy.
TII/N22 implications.Area is zoned Secondary Special Amenity in the County Development

Plan.
It should be noted that the site is outside of the area zoned as "open to consideration” in the

Renewable Energy Strategy.

Please quote reference number and include copy of this report if a planning application is to be

submitted in relation to this site.

Kind Regards
e

JENNINGS O'DONOVAN

B & PARTNERS LIMITED

Finis

o Leas in Business Park, Sligo.
ASO Plz;\?!\ging 16 AUG 2021

Loon Hi‘iﬁj‘j Brege
RECEIVER AW

Please note: The carrying out of consultations shall not prejudice the performance by a planning authaority of
any other of its functions under the Planning and Development Act 2001 - 2020, or-any regulations made
under said act and cannot be relied upon in the formal planning process of in legal proceeding.



Transport Infrastructure lreland




Ann Kilmartin

From: INFO <Information@tii.ie>

Sent: Monday, December 7, 2020 12;05 PM

To: ‘smoore@jodireland.com’

Subject: EIAR Scoping - Inchamore Wind Farm, Coolea, Co. Cork. Tll Ref: TNI20-111743.

Dear s, Moore,

Thank you for your correspondence of 16 Noveniber 2020 regarding as EIAR Scoping request for Inchamore Wind
Farm, Coolea, Co. Cork. The position in relation to your enquiry is as follows.

Transport Infrastructure Ireland (TIl} wishes to advise that it is not in a position to engage directly with planning
applicants with respect to proposed developments. TII will endeavour to consider and respond to planning
applications referred to it, given its status and duties as a statutory consultee under the Planning Acts. The approach
to be adopted by Til in making such submissions or comments will seek to uphold official policy and guidelines as
outlined in ‘Spatial Planning and National Roads. Guidelines for Planning Authorities’ (DoECLG, 2012). Regard should
also be had to other relevant guidance available at www.Tll.ie. {

The issuing of this correspondence is provided as best practice guidance only and does not prejudice Til’s statutory
right to make any observations, requests for further information, objections or appeals following the examination of
any valid planning application referred.

Tl notes that the imited consultation email and map supplied identify a site for the turbines only, to be located off
a local road that connects with the N22 national primary road.

With respect to EIAR Scoping issues, the recommendations indicated below provide only general guidance for the
preparation of EIAR, which may affect the National Roads Network. The developer should have regard, inter alia, to
the following:

1. Assetdown in the ‘Spatial Planning and National Roads’ Guidelines, it is in the public interest, in so far as is
reasonably practicable, that the national road network continues to serve its intended strategic purpose. The
EIAR should identify the methods/techniques proposed for any works traversing/in proximity to the national
road network, in order to demonstrate that the development can proceed complementary to safeguarding the
capacity, safety and operational efficiency of that network. ‘

2. Consultations should be had with the relevant Local Authority/National Roads Design Office, with regard to
locations of existing and future national road schemes.

3. In relation to cabling and potential connection routing, the scheme promoter should note locations of existing
and future national road schemes and develop proposals to safeguard proposed road schemes. As outlined
above, consult with the Local Authority/National Roads Design Office in relation to any schemes in planning in
the area, especially on the N22.

Proposals should be developed to safeguard proposed road schemes, as Til will not be responsible for costs
associated with future relocation of cable routing, where proposals are catered for in an area of a proposed
national road scheme. In that regard, consideration should be given to routing options, use of existing

crossings, depth of cable laying, etc.

In the context of existing national roads, alternatives to the provision of cabling along the national road

network, such as alternative routing or the laying of cabling in private lands adjoining the national road,

should be considered in the interests of safeguarding the investment in and the potential for future upgrade
works to the national road network. The cable routing should avoid all impacts to existing Tlf infrastructure {
such as traffic counters, weather stations, etc. and works required to such infrastructure shall only be o
undertaken in consultation with and subject to the agreement of TII. Any costs attributable shall be borne by

1



the applicant/developer. The developer should also be aware that separate approvals may be required for
works traversing the national road network.

e

Clearly identify haul routes proposed and fully assess the network to be traversed. Separate structure
approvals/permits and other licences may be required in connection with the proposed haul route and all
structures on the haul route should be checked by the applicant/developer to confirm their capacity to
accommodate any abnormal load proposed.

5. Where appropriate, subject to meeting the appropriate thresholds and criteria and having regard to best
practice, a Traffic and Transport Assessment (TTA) be carried out in accordance with relevant guidelines,
noting traffic volumes attending the site and traffic routes to/from the site, with reference to impacts on the
national road network and junctions of lower category roads with national roads. TII’s ‘Traffic and Transport
Assessment Guidelines’ (2014) should be referred to in relation to proposed development with potential
impacts on the national road network. The scheme promoter is also advised to have regard to Section 2.2 of
the TIl TTA Guidelines, which addresses requirements for sub-threshold TTA.

6. Tl standards should be consulted to determine the requirement for Road Safety Audit and Road Safety Impact
Assessment.

7. Assessments and design and construction and maintenance standards and guidance are available at Til
Publications, which replaced the National Road Authority (NRA) Design Manual for Roads and Bridges and the
NRA Manual of Contract Documeénts for Road Works.

8. The developer, in conducting Environmental Impact Assessment, should have regard to Tl Environment
Guidelines that deal with assessment and mitigation measures for varied environmental factors and
occurrences. In particular:

a. TiI's Environmental Assessment and Construction Guidelines, including the ‘Guidelines for the Treatment
of Air Quality During the Planning and Construction of National Road Schemes’ (NRA, 2006).

b. The EIAR should consider the ‘Environmental Noise Regulations 2008’ (S| 140 of 2006} and, in particular,
how the development will affect future action plans by the relevant competent authority. The developer
may need to consider the incorporation of noise barriers to reduce noise impacts (see 'Guidelines for the
Treatment of Noise and Vibration in National Road Schemes’ {1st Rev., NRA, 2004)).

Notwithstanding, any of the above, the developer should be aware that this list is non-exhaustive, thus site and
development specific issues should be addressed in accordance with best practice.

I hope that this information is of assistance to you.
Yours sincerely,

Alban Mills
Senior Regulatory and Administration Executive

Transport Infrastructure Ireland
Parkgate Business Cenire
Parkgate Street

(-' Dublin DO DK10
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Jennings O'Donovan & Partners,
Finisklin Business Park,

Sligo,

F91 RHH9.

2 December 2020

Re: EIAR Scoping Request ~ Inchamore Wind Farm, Coolea, Co. Cork.

Dear Mrs. Kilmartin,

Iish Water (IW) acknowledges receipt of your request in respect of the
Environmental Impact Assessment Report (EIAR) scoping for the proposed
Inchamore Wind Farm in Coolea, Co. Cork.

Please see attached our suggested scope in relation to Water Services. On receipt
of the planning referral, Irish Water will review the EIAR as part of the planning
process.

Queries relating to the terms and observations above should be directed to
planning@water.ie

Yours sincerely,

Signed on behalf of Irish Water:
PP: Ali Robinson

Yvonne Harris
Connections and Development Services

Stitirthdle{ 7 Direntors: Catha Madep{Charmans 18 Gleeson, Eaman dalen, Yennne Harris, Bresdan Kby, Mana Otmyper
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Response to EIAR Scoping Report Requests

IW currently does not have the capacity to advise on scoping of individual projects.
However, in general we would like the following aspects of Water Services to be
considered in the scope of an EIAR where relevant;

a) Impacts of the development on the capacity of water services (do existing water
services have the capacity to cater for the new development if required). This is
confirmed by IW in the form of a Confirmation of Feasibility (COF). If a
development will require a connection to either a public water supply or sewage
collection system the developer is advised to submit a Pre Connection Enquiry
(PCE) enquiry to IW to determine the feasibility of connection to the lrish Water
network. All pre-connection enquiry forms are available from
https://www.water.ie/connections/get-connected/

b) Any up-grading of water services infrastructure that would be required to
accommodate the development.

¢) In relation to a development that would discharge trade effluent — any upstream
treatment or attenuation. of discharges required prior to discharging to an IW
collection network

d) In relation to the management of surface water; the potential impact of surface
water discharges to combined sewer networks & potential measures to
minimise/stop surface waters from combined sewers

e) Any physical impact on [W asseis — reservoir, drinking water source, treatment
works, pipes, pumping stations, discharges outfails etc. including any relocation
of assets

f) If you are considering a development proposal, it is best practice to contact us in
advance of designing your proposal to determine the location of public water
services assets. Details, where known, can be obtained by emailing an Ordinance
Survey map identifying the proposed location of your intended development
to datarequests@water.ie. Other indicators or methodologies for identifying
infrastructure located within your lands are the presence of registered wayleave
agreements, visible manholes, vent stacks, valve chambers, marker posts etc.
within the proposed site.

g) Any potential impacts on the assimilative capacity of receiving waters in relation
to IW discharge outfalls including changes in dispersion /circulation characterises

h) Any potential impact on the contributing catchment of water sources either in
terms of water abstraction for the development {and resultant potential impact on
the capacity of the source) or the potential of the development to influence/
present a risk to the quality of the water abstracted by IW for public supply.

i) Where a development proposes to connect to an IW network and that network
either abstracts water from or discharges waste water to a “protected’/sensitive
area, consideration as to whether the integrity of the site/conservation objectives
of the site would be compromised.

2 Uisce Eireann lrish Water




j) Mitigation measures in relation to any of the above
This is not an exhaustive list.

Please note

= The Confirmation of Feasibility from IW, to the applicant, should be issued prior
to applying for planning permission.

= [rish Water will not accept new surface water discharges to combined sewer
networks
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North Lee Environmental Health Service,
Floor 2, Block 1 St Finbart’s Hospital,
Douglas Road,

Cork,

Phone: 021 4921801
E-Mail: ehonl@hse,ie

Date: 10" December 2020
Name: Ms-Sarah Moore, Jennings O’'Donovan & Partners Limited, Finiskkin

Business Park, Sligo

Consultant’s reference: 6226/503/5L/001/5M

Re: EIA Scoping Report

Proposed development: Proposed Inchamore Wind Farm, Coolea, Co. Cork

Applicant: Coillte Cuideachta Ghniomhaiochta Ainmnithe (Coillte CGA} and

SSE Renewables Ltd

EHIS Reference: 1450

Bear Ms Moore

Please find enclosed the HSE Consultation Report in relation to the above propg ERRY couNTY

The following HSE departments were made aware of the consultation request for the proposed
development on 16 November 2020

o Emergency Planning — David O’Sullivan

. Estates — Helen Maher

. Assistant National Director for Health Protection — Kevin Keileher/ Laura Murphy
° CHO — Michael Fitzgerald

If you have any queries regarding this report the initial point of contact is Ms Catherine McCarthy,
Principal Environmental Health Officer who will refer your query to the appropriate person.

Yours sincerely
: C
@t\'\e{\fﬁ. ™~ Cdrthj
-

Catherine McCarthy
Principal Environmental Health Officer.
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Reportto | Catherine McCarthy, PEHO, Cork | Date | 17* Nov., 2020
Type of consultation: EIS o Scoping X Screeningt EIAR o EPA O

Other (please specify): '

Authority Health Service Executive

Authority Reference Number | EHIS 1450

EM Reference Number EMENV 065

Applicant Jennings O'Donovan & Partners, Cons. Eng., Finisklin Business

Park, Sligo, on behaif of Coiflte CGA and SSE Renewables Ltd.

Proposal The Construction of 6 No. wind turbines and associated site works

at Inchamore Wind Farm, Coolea, Co. Cork.

HSE South Emergency Management Observations:

Please be advised that the HSE South Emergency Management function does not have any specific
observations to make with respect to this application. However, piease note the following
recommendations within the context of site operations:

1.

Should an incident occur at the site and the site operator requires the assistance of the
emergency services, the incident information should be provided in the 'ETHANE" forimat
{please see attached).

Emergency Services access to the site should be clearly identified. This should be undertaken
via appropriate high visibility signage, i.e.; a green sign with a vellow border and white

lettering citing the abbreviation RVP

The site should have a mechanism in place to account for personnel during an evacuation in
order to provide the responding emergency services with an estimate of the number of
people accounted and unaccounted for.

The site should identify any critical / vulnerable facilities within the geographical catchment
area, such as hospitals, schools, nursing homes, etc, that could be directly or indirectly
affected by an incident at the site.

Where the ‘off-site’ impacts of an incident at the site affects a vulnerable cohort /
population such as children within créches, schools; patients / clients / residents within
nursing homes, etc; the emergency services will require assistance from the site operator in
determining the impact on the local community.

The site operator is encouraged to develop a business continuity plan that includes a plan
for severe weather. For more advice on this, please see the Department of Business,
Enterprise and Innovation, Business Continuity Planning in Severe Weather.

i.pov.ie/en/Publications/Publication-files/Business-Continuity-Planning-in-

Severe-Weather-Check-List-for-Businesses.pdf

All correspondence or any queries with regard to this report should be forwarded to Ms. Maryanne
Horgan, Emergency Management Office, HSE South, Eye, Ear and Throat Hospital, Western Road,
Cork, T12 WP62 or maryanne. horgan@hse.ie




HSE EIA Scoping

Environmental Health Service Submission Report

Date: 10.12.20 ) ﬁ.,;-}qﬁ._g;qﬁ & SEVELOPMEN;&C
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Our reference: EHIS 1450 . 6 JU O

Report to: Ms Sarah Moore, Jennings O'Donovan & Partners Nimited, Finisklg023 6 lp 6

Business Park, Sligo

frgﬁ,
L CounTy counc
Type of Consultation: EIA Scoping

Proposed development: Proposed Inchamore Wind Farm, Coolea, Co. Cork

Applicant: Coillte Cuideachta Ghniomhaiochta Ainmnithe (Coillte CGA} and SSE
Renewables Lid

Proposed Development: Coillte CGA and SSE Renewables Lid. intends to apply to Cork County
Council for permission for the construction of approximately 6 No. wind turbines each typically 4.5-6
megawatts (MW) with a combined output of approximately 30MW located approximately 6km west
of the village of Ballyvourney in the MUscral Gaeltacht, Co. Cork. The proposal will also include
planning permission for the construction of an underground grid connection to Ballyvouskill 220Ky
substation, Co. Cork, located approximately 12.5km to the north east of the development.

General Introduction

The following documents should be taken into consideration when preparing the Environmental
Impact Assessment Report:

o Guidelines on the information to be contained in EIS (2002}, 187kb
* Advice Notes on Current Practice in the preparation of EIS (2003}, 435kb
. Guidelines for Planning Authorities and An Bord Pleanala on carrying out Environmental

Impact Assessment

www.housing.gov.ie/si i icati i ideli ing_authariti

es and an bord pleandla on carrving out eia -~ august 2018.pdf

EU publication: Environmental Impact Assessmernt of Projects Guidance on the preparation of the
Environmental Impact Assessment Report, EU, 2017

http://ec.europa.eu/environment/eia/pdf/EIA guidance EIA report final.pdf




Adoption of the Directive (2014/52/EU} in April 2014 initiated a review of the above guidelines. The
draft new guidelines can be seen at:

hitp://www.epa.ie/pubs/consultation/reviewofdrafteispuidelinesadvicenotes

Generally the Environmental Impact Assessment should examine all likely significant impacts and
provide the following information for each:

a) Description of the receiving environment;

b) The nature and scale of the impact;

c) An assessment of the significance of the impact;
d) Proposed mitigation measures; .

e) Residual impacts.

Directive 2014/52/EU has an enhanced requirement to assess likely significant impacts on
Population and Human Health. It is the experience of the Environmental Health Service {(EHS) that
impacts on human health are often inadegquately assessed in ElAs in lreland. It is recommended that
the wider determinants of heaith and wellbeing are considered in a proportionate manner when
considering the EIA. Guidance on wider determinants of health can be found at www.publichealth.ie

In addition to any likely significant negative impacts from the proposed development, any positive
likely significant impacts should also be assessed.

The HSE will consider the fina} EIAR accompanying the planning application and will make comments
1o Cork County Council on the methodology used for assessing the likely significant impacts and the
evaluation criteria used in assessing the significance of the impact.

This report only comments on Environmental Health Impacts of the proposed development. It is
based on details contained in correspondence submitted to this office dated 12 November 2020.

The Environmental Health Service {EHS) recommends that the following matters are included and
assessed in the EIAR

* Public Consultation

s Decommissioning phase

» Siting, location and details of turbines
« Opportunity for Health Gain

* Noise & Vibration

+ Shadow Flicker

o Air Quality

¢ Surface and Groundwater Quality



« Geological Impacts ST DEVELOR

e

o Ancillary facilities

« Cumulative impacts

Public Consuitation

It ts strongly recommended that early and meaningful public consultation with the local community
should be carried out to ensure all potentially significant impacts have been adequately addressed.

All parties affected by the proposed development, including those who may benefit financially from
the project, must be fully informed of what the proposal entails, especially with regard to potential
impacts on surrounding areas.

Sensitive receptors and other stakeholders should be identified to ensure all necessary and
appropriate mitigation measures are put in place to avoid any complaints about the proposed wind
farm development in the future.

It is acknowledged that current restrictions around public gatherings as a result of Covid 19
prevention measures will impact on opportunities for public consultation events, However it is
expected that meaningful public consultation, where the local community is fully informed of the
proposed development, will be undertaken.

Members of the public should be given sufficient opportunities to express their views on the
proposal wind farm extension.

The Environmental Impact Assessment Report (EIAR) should clearly demonstrate the link between

public consultations and how those consultations have influenced the decision-making process in
the EIA.

To assist with the consultation and planning process it is recommended that the applicant develops
a dedicated website for the proposed wind energy project. All correspondence, maps, project
updates and documentation including the EIAR should be uploaded to this site.

Decommissioning Phase

The EIAR should detail what the eventual fate of the turbines and associated material will be, i.e. will
the material be recycled or how will it be disposed of.

Information should alse be provided regarding the proposed methodology to be used for the
disposal of the materials forming the foundations of the wind turbines.

The EIAR should indicate the proposed future use of the wind farm site at the end of the planning
permission period.



Siting, Location and details of Turbines

The EIAR should include a map and a description of the proposed location of each of the wind
turbines.

The Environmental Health Service expects that details {height and model) of the turbines to be
installed will be available at the time pilanning permission is sought and will be included in the EIAR.

Details of turbine foundation structures, including depth, quantity, materiai to be used and method
of construction should be included in the EIAR. Mitigation measures to address potential impacts of
the foundations on water quality and peat stability should also be described.

Details should be provided of any proposed rock breaking or rack blasting proposed for the
development of the on-site burrow pit.

Opportunity for Health Gain

The EPA has issued guidance with regard to meeting the requirements of Directive 2014/52/EU
which assesses the impact of certain public and private projects on the environment. The proposed
development should be assessed with a view to the potential to include opportunities for health gain
within the site of the proposed wind farm by including greenways, cycle-paths or walking trails
within the development site.

It is noted that ‘recreational community and biodiversity improvements associated with the
development’ are cited in the Scoping Letter. Details of proposals for this aspect of the development
should be included in the EIAR.

Assessment of Consideration of Alternatives

The EIAR should consider an assessment of alternatives. The EHS recommends that alternative
renewable energy options to on -shore wind farms should be assessed as part of the EIAR,

Noise & Vibration

The potential impacts for noise and vibration during the construction and operational phases of the
proposed development on all noise sensitive focations must be clearly identified in the EIAR. The
EIAR must also consider the appropriateness and effectiveness of all proposed mitigation measures
to minimise noise and vibration.

A baseline noise monitoring survey should be undertaken to establish the existing background noise
levels. Noise from any existing turbines in the area should not be included as part of the back ground
levels.

tn addition, an assessment of the predicted noise impacts during the construction phase and the
operational phase of the proposed wind farm development must be undertaken which details the
change in the noise environment resulting from the proposed wind farm development.



The Draft Revised Wind Energy Development Guidelines were published in December 2019. Whilst
these have yet to be adopted, any proposed wind farm development should have consideration of
the draft Guidelines.

ah A
4

hitps://www.housing.gov.ie/sites/default/files/public-
consultation/files/draft revised wind energy development guidelines detémber 2018.pdf
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ttis recommended that a shadow flicker assessment is undertaken to identify any dwellings and
sensitive receptors which may be impacted by shadow flicker. The assessment must include all
proposed mitigation measures. Dwellings should include all occupied properties and any existing or
proposed properties for which planning consent has been granted for construction or
refurbishment.

It is recommended that turbine selection will be based on the most advanced available technology
that permits shut down during times when residents are exposed to shadow flicker. As a result no
dwelling should be exposed to shadow flicker,

Air Quality

Due to the nature of the proposed construction works generation of airborne dust has the potential
to have significant impacts on sensitive receptors. A Construction Environmental Management Plan
(CEMP) should be included in the EIAR which details dust control and mitigation measures. Measures
should include:

. Sweeping of hard road surfaces

° Provision of a water bowser on site, regular spraying of haul roads

° Wheel washing facilities at site exit

J Restrict speed on site

. Provide covers to all delivery trucks to minimise dust generation

° Inspect and clean public roads in the vicinity if necessary

° Material stockpiling provided with adequate protection from the wind

. Dust monitoring at the site boundary

e Truck inspection and maintenance plan

° Details of a road maintenance agreement between the wind farm operator and the Local

Roads Authority to clarify responsibility for the upkeep and repair of access roads during the
construction phase of the project.



Surface and Ground Water Quality

The proposed development has the potential to have a significant impact on the quality of both
surfacé and ground water. All drinking water sources, both surface and ground water, must be
identified. Public and Group Water Scheme sources and supplies should be identified. Measures to
ensure that all sources and supplies are protected should be described.

The Environmental Health Service reconimends that a walk over survey of the site is undertaken in
addition to a desktop analysis of Geological Survey of Ireland data in order to identify the location of
private wells used for drinking water purposes.

Any potential significant impacts to drinking water sources should be assessed. Details of bedrock,
overburden, vulnerability, groundwater flows, aquifers and catchment areas should be considered
when assessing potential impacts and any proposed mitigation measures.

Geological impacts

A detailed assessment of the current ground stability of the site for the proposed wind farm
extension and all proposed mitigation measures should be detailed in the EIAR. The assessment
should include the impact construction work may have on the future stability of ground conditions,
taking into consideration extreme weather events, site drainage and the potential for soil erosion.

Reference is made to a peat slide which occurred near Ballyhofey in Co. Donegal on November 13th
2020 which may have been linked to construction activity at Meenbog Wind Farm. Potential impacts
on water supply associated with contamination following a peat slide include sedimentation and
alteration of pH levels.

The Environmental Health Service recommends that a detailed Peat Stability Assessment should be
undertaken to assess the suitability of the soil for the proposed development. The EIAR should
include provision for a peat stability monitoring programme to identify early signs of potential bog
slides (‘pre-failure indicators’ see the Scottish Government’s ‘Peat Landslide Hazard and Risk
Assessments: Best Practice Guide for Proposed Electricity Developments 2017)

ublications/advice-and-

guidance/2017/04/peat-landslide-hazard-risk-assessiments-best-practice-guide-proposed-
electricity/documents/00517176-pdf/00517176-pdf/povscot®3IAdocument/00517176.pdf

Ancillary Facilities

The EIAR should include details of the location of all site office, construction compound, fuel storage
depot, sanitary accommodation and canteen, First Aid facilities, disposal of wastewater and the
provision of a potable water supply to the site canteen.

Cumulative Impacts

All existing or proposed wind farm developments in the vicinity should be clearly identified in the
EIAR.

The Environmental Health Service notes a recent Scoping Consultation request for the proposed
Gortyrahilly Wind Farm which appears to be within 10km of the proposed Inchamore Wind farm.



The impact on sensitive receptors of the proposed development combined with any other wind farm
developments (existing and proposed) in the vicinity should be considered. This should include the
proposed Gaortyrahilly Wind Farm for which a Scoping Consultation request has recently been made.

The EIAR should include a detailed assessment of any likely significant cumulative impacts of the
proposed renewable energy development.

The EIAR should state clearly if there is any future proposal to further extend the proposed
Inchamore Wind Farm.
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Shane O’Flynn and Mairead Coughlan
Environmental Health Officers

HSE South

North Lee Environmental Health Service
Floor 2, Block 1,

St. Finbarr's Hospital,

Douglas Road,

Cork

KERRY counry CONNE™

Caroline Hueston
Environmental Health Officer
Environment Operational Unit
HSE West

Ennistymon Health Centre
Ennistymon

Co. Clare
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Dial 999 / 112 — Request the service you require: An Garda Siochana, Ambulance {
Service and / or Fire and Rescue Service

WHEN YOU ARE CONNECTED TO THE REQUISITE SERVICE(S)

'GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION

> I = m

N.B. If you require another emergency service stay on the line and repeat the steps again
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Ann Kilmartin

MR -
From: Udaras na Gaeltachta <eolas@udaras.ie> on behalf of Udaras na Gaeltachta
Sent: Monday, November 16, 2020 11:15 AM
To: Ann Kitmartin; Dnag Suiomh idirlion
Cc: Sarah Moore
Subject: RE: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork
Ann, a chara,

Go raibh maith agat as ucht do theachtaireacht. Thank you for your correspondence.
Your messages has been forwarded to our Corporate Services Section and appropriate members of staff for their
attention .

iMile buiochas,
Dia leat,

Paid O Neachtain
Ranndg Cumarsaide
Udaras na Gaeltachta
Na Forbacha

Co. na Gaillimhe

Fén: 091 503100
Rphost: eolas@udaras.ig
wwiw udaras.ie
@UdarasnaG

Udards na
Gaeltachta

From: Ann Kilmartin <akiimartin@jodireland.com>.

Sent: Monday 16 November 2020 10:04

To: Dnag Suiomh Idirlion <DnagSuiomhldirlion@udaras.ie>
Cc: Sarah Moore <smoore@jodireland.com>

Subject: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

Dear Sirs,

Please find attached Scoping Letter in relation to the above mentioned project for your consideration.

We would be grateful if you could revert with any comments you may have on the proposed development at your
earliest convenience.

Thanks and kind regards,

Ann Kilmartin

JENNINGS O'DONOVAN

A PATTHE{ES LFD

CONSULTING ENGINEERS

f'ﬂm%‘
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Ann Kilmartin

s L o
From: Wexford Receptionist <REC_WEX®@epa.ie> on behalf of Wexford Receptionist
Sent: Monday, November 16, 2020 10:25 AM
To: Ann Kilmartin
Subject: RE: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

A Chara,

Your correspondence on November 16" has been forwarded for attention.
Kind regards,

Ruth O’Connor

Duty Receptionist/Programme Officer
Environmental Protection Agency
P.O. Box 3000

Johnstown Castle Estate

Wexford

Y35 w821

Bosca Poist 3000, Eastat Chaisledn Bhaile Shedin, Contae Loch Garman.

Tel: 00353 53 91 60600: Fax: 0035353 91 60699: Email: info@epa.ie web:www.epa.ie
Lo Call: 1890 33 55 99

Environmental Protection Agency on Twitter:
atipAvvitter.con/EPAlreland.

EPA Climate Change on Twitter:
attpvitier, com/EPACmate News

EPA Research on Twitter:
Inipwitter.com/EPA ResearcliNews
YouTube:

httpdhewvis voutube. confuser/epaireland

From: Ann Kilmartin <akilmartin@jodireland.com>
Sent: 16 November 2020 10:05

To: Wexford Receptionist <REC_WEX@epa.ie>

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

.»’"‘W\A-‘
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Ann Kilmartin

—_ in
From: Scully, Aaron <Aaron.Scully@agriculture.gov.ie> on behalf of Scully, Aaron (
Sent: Monday, November 16, 2020 1:00 PM
To: ‘akilmartin@jodireland.com’
Subject: Acknowledgment

16" November 2020

PLEASE QUOTE REF NUMBLER ON ALL CORRESPONDENCE.
Our Ref: 2020/64489P /AS

Dear Ms. Kilmartin

I wish to acknowledge receipt of your recent correspondence addressed to the Minister for Agriculture, Fooc(
and the Marine, Charlie McConalogue, TD.

I will bring your correspondence to the Minister’s attention as soon as possible. In the interim I have
forwarded your correspondence for the attention of relevant Department officials.

Yours sincerely,

Aaron Scully

Aaron Scully {_\,
Minister's Office
Offig an Aire

K;I Roinn Talmhaiochta, Bia agus Mara
Department of Agriculture, Food and the Marine

An Teach Talmhaiochta, Sraid Chill Dara, Baile Atha Cliath 2, D02 WK12
Agriculture House, Kildare Street, Dubtin 2, D02 WK12

www.agriculture.gov.ie

Disclaimer:
Department of Agriculture, Food and the Marine

The information contained in this email and in any attachments is confidential and is designated solely for the
attention and use of the intended recipient(s). This information may be subject to legal and professional privilege. [f *
you are not an intended recipient of this email, you must not use, disclose, copy, distribute or retain this message or

1
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Ann Kilmartin

L - "
From: planning applications <planning.applications@failteireland.ie> on behalf of (
planning applications
Sent: Monday, November 23, 2020 12:48 PM
To: Ann Kilmartin
Subject: RE: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork
Attachments: Féilte Ireland EIAR Guidelines.pdf

Hello Ann,

Thank you for sending Féilte Ireland the Scoping Letter/information regarding the preparation of an Environmental
tmpact Assessment for Inchamore Wind Farm, Coolea, Co Cork.

Please see attached a copy of Fiilte ireland’s Guidelines for the Treatment of Tourism in an EIA, which you may find
informative in your site investigations for Offshore Wind proposed for east, south and west of Ireland. The purpose

of this report is to provide guidance for those conducting Environmental Impact Assessment and compiling an
Environmental Impact Assessment Reports (EIAR), or those assessing EIARs, where the project involves tourism or (f
may have an impact upon tourism. These guidelines are non-statutory and act as supplementary advice to the EPA
EIAR Guidelines outlined in secticn 2.

Regards,
Yvonne

Yvonne Jackson

Product Development-Environment & Planning Support Failte Ireland
Aras Failte, 88/95 Amiens Street, Dublin 1. DOLWRES

T+353 (0}1 884 7224 B +353 (0} 860357590 www.failteireland.ie

# 3 Failte Ireland

" Matewa Twrisw Daveloand Aathadty

whPlease consider he envirgnmend before printing this omeil

From: Ann Kilmartin <akilmartin@jodireland.com>

Sent: Monday 16 November 2020 10:07

To: Reception <ReceptionAmiensStreet@failteireland.ie>; planning applications
<planning.applications@failteireland.ie>

Cc: Sarah Moore <smoore@jodireland.com>

Subject: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

[ATTENTION] This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognise
the sender and know the content is safe.

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



Failte Ireland

National Tourism Development Authority

EIAR Guidelines for the Consideration of
Tourism and Tourism Related Projects
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1. Introduction

Tourism is a growing sector and substantial part of the Irish Economy. It contributes to both
urban and rural economies in every part of the country. The impact and interaction of tourism
with the environment is complex and the assessment of environmental impacts is of utmost
importance to creating a sustainable tourism economy and protecting the natural resources
that are so often a tourism attraction.

The purpose of this report is to provide guidance for those conducting Environmental impact
Assessment and compiling an Environmental Impact Assessment Reports (EIAR), or those
assessing EIARs, where the project involves tourism or may have an impact upon tourism. These
guidelines are non-statutory and act as supplementary advice to the EPA EIAR Guidelines
outlined in section 2.

This guidance document has been prepared by Cunnane Stratton Reynolds on behalf of Failte

Ireland to update their EIA guidelines in line with changes in legislative requir i
e

2. Background to this Document

employment for approximately 260,000 people, an economic contribution n, and
exchequer revenue of €1.78 billion in 2018, which helps fund other key public services.

In 2018 Ireland welcomed 10.6 million overseas visitors.

Failte Ireland is the National Tourism Development Authority. Féilte Irelands role is to support
the tourism industry and work to sustain ireland as a high-quality and competitive tourism
destination. They provide a range of practical business supports to help tourism businesses
better manage and market their products and services.

Failte Ireland also work with other state agencies and representative bodies, at local and
national levels, to implement and champion positive and practical strategies that will benefit
Irish tourism and the Irish economy.

Faiite Ireland promotes Ireland as a holiday destination through a domestic marketing
campaign (Discoverlreland.ie} and manage a network of nationwide tourist information centres
that provide help and advice for visitors to Irefand.

Tourism relaied projects cover a broad range of plans, programmes and developments, from
the Wild Atlantic Way to a single hotel conversion. These guidelines apply to projects involving
or impacting upon tourism. A fourism plan, sirategy or programme where it is part of the
statutory plan making process under the Planning and Developmeént Acts (as amended), may
be more appropriately assessed by a Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) as
discussed in the next section,

it should be borne in mind that EIA is required where there is anticipated to be a significant
impact on the environment, where tourism projects are of a prescribed type or meet thresholds
identified below.
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Where Natura 2000 Designated Sites are potentially aifected by tourism development
Appropriate Assessment must be carried out by the appropriate authority in accordance with
Article 6(3) of the EU Habitats Directive.

3. Legislation and Statutory Guidance

Environmental Impact Assessment is a procedure that ensures that the environmental
implications of decisions are taken into account before planning based decisions are made.
The assessment results in a report, called an Environmental Impact Assessment Report
(EIAR).

Legislation

These guidelines are produced under current EIAR legistative requirements, having regard to
Directive 2011/92/EU (known as 'Environmental Impact Assessment’ — EIA Directive), as
amended by Direclive EU 2014/52 which came into effect in May of 2017. These requirements
were transposed into Irish Law on 1 September 2018 as most of the provisions of the
European Union (Planning and Development) (Environmental Impact Assessment)
Reguiations 2018 (S.1. No. 296 of 2018) came into effect. The principle of both Directives is to
ensure that plans, programmes and projects likely to have significant effects on the
environment are made subject to an environmental assessment, prior to their approval or
authorisation.

Statutory Guidance

in response to the changes to the EIAR requirements under Directive EU 2014/52, the
Environmentai Protection Agency (EPA) developed Draft guidelines on the information to be
contained in Environmental Impact Assessment Reports in August 2017. At the time of this
document the guidelines have not been adopted from draft.

In addition to the EPA statutory guidance, the Department of Housing has produced
Guidelines for Planning Authorities and An Bord Pleanala on carrying out Environmental
Impact Assessment in August 2018.

The process of EIA is set out in the EPA EIAR Guidelines, which this document should be
read in conjunction with and used as supplementary guidance to. The process for ascertaining
whether an EIAR is required is known as ‘screening’ and the process to determine the breath
and scope of an EIAR is known as ‘scoping’. Guidance on this can be found in Section 3.2 of
the EPA Guidelines.

Screening

Through EIAR Screening, developments are either considered as requiring an EIAR due to the

project type or because they exceed a threshold level. The screening process begins by

establishing whether the proposal is a ‘project’ as understood by the Directive (as amended).

The prescribed development types and thresholds are set out in Annex | and Il of the EIA Directive
as transposed into Schedule 5 of the Planning and Development Regulations 2010-2018 (as
amended). Development which do not exceed these thresholds but may require an EIAR are
called sub threshold. Sub-Threshold considerations are outlined in Schedule 7 of European Union
(Planning and Development) (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2018 (S.1. No. 296
of 2018) as transposed from Annex |l of the Directive. The Guidelines on Environmental Impact
Assessment Reports note that projects at first glance may not appear to come under the Schedule
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but on closer examination when the process is further examined, they may do so because of the
sensitivity or significance of the receiving environment etc. Sub threshold developments require
an EIAR if they are likely to have significant environmental impacts and must undergo assessment
for likely significant impacts through an EIAR screening report. The contents of a screening report
for subthreshold development are contained in Annex |Il of the EIA Directive.

Figure 1: EIAR Screening Process
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(Taken from Fig 3.2 of the EPA Guidelines)

Tourism locations should be identified as sensitive receptors in screening assessments for
particular impacts, depending on scale and sensitivity, as they would in a full EIAR. Section 6
below can act as guidance for Screening Reports as well as for full EIAR.

The screening process for considering where an EIAR is necessary, is summarised below in
Figure 1 (excerpted from Figure 3.2 of the EPA Guidelines).

Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) is a more strategic level of environmental
assessment that examines plans, policies, objectives and programmes specifically rather than
projects. For some tourism developments it may be more appropriate that they be examined
through SEA, while individual projects or specific proposals are likely to be more assessed
through EIAR. if a project is part of a plan, programme or policy/objective assessed by SEA
there will still be a requirement for an EIAR for that development.
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EIAR Scoping

Scoping an EIAR is an opportunity to look at the breadth of issues and ensure that any areas
of possible significant impact are assessed. ldentifying sensitivities and stakeholders should
take account of tourism facilities and consider Failte Ireland in scoping requests where
necessary.

4. Assessing Tourism

There is no legal definition of ‘tourism’ in Irish legistation. The UNWTQ definition of sustainable
tourism is “Tourism that takes full account of its current and future econoimic, social and
environmental impacts, addressing the needs of visitors, the industry, the environment and
host communities” . This is widely accepted as a key definition of tourism as we move fo a
more sustainable future.

Tourism assessments are frequently carried out by economic consuitants and by specific
tourism consultants. It is always advisable, particular for tourism projects, that suitably
dualified and experienced personnel are used to determine the impact of tourism related
projects or to assess the impact of more general proposals on a tourism asset identified in a
particular location. There is a requirement for EIAR under current legislation to contain a
statement of competency within all EIAR documents, including screening and scoping repotts.

Projects which involve a tourism element

Tourism projects are wide ranging and diverse. While there are some projects which cater to
tourism and are easily identified as such - Hotels, Museums, etc. there are other projects
where tourism is a key service or element; but which may not be immediately obvious - forest
trails, community facilities and others. EIAR conducted for developments containing tourist
elements should be completed in accordance with the current guidance from the EPA.

Projects which include a tourism element have potential particular environmental effects which
differ from a non-tourism development. These impacts can be intermittent, event related,
inconsistent, dependent on weather, temporal, temporary or seasonal. This is considered
within the prescribed environmental topics for EIAR outlined in Section 7 below.

Projects which may have an impact upon tourism

While tourism projects may be diverse, the projects which can impact tourism are considerably
more wide ranging, from large infrastructural developments to local energy developments.
Disruption to or suppression of a tourist resource or amenity can have very local or more
strategic impacts, directly or indirectly- for example energy projects in a rural area can have
both a negative and positive impact in different regards. There can be temporary, periodic or
even seasonal impacts occurring during construction or operational periods.

According to the Failte Ireland Tourism Facts 2018 Report, the most important factors in
determining the attractiveness of tourism destinations for visitors to Ireland are;

e Beautiful Scenery and Unspoiled Environment
e Hospitality

+» Safety

+ Nature, Wildlife and Natural Attractions

e History and Culture

¢ Pace of Life
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These factors used for the promotion of tourism in Ireland are also barometers of sensitivity o
change in tourism sensitive or dominant locations where development may have an impact
upon the tourism asset. The potential for development to impact these sensitivities, and the
environmental criteria under which they can be considered, are identified in séction 7 of the
guidelines.

5. Guiding Principles of EIAR

As outlined in the EPA Draft EIAR Guidelines, the fundamental principles to be followed when
preparing an EIAR, including screening and scoping, are:

Anticipating, avoiding and reducing significant effects
Assessing and mitigating effects

Maintaining objectivity

Ensuring clarity and quality

Providing relevant information to decision makers
Facilitating better consultation.

*® & & © & @°

Environmental assessment should be undertaken in accordance with the Eurgpean Union
(Planning and Development) (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regula -;m@é\éeq@?ﬁwrsg%
e &
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6. Consideration of Competency and Qualifications

As per Sectionh 2.5 of the EPA Guidelines, EIAR is required to be co
experis’.

Contributors to the preparation of environmental impact assessment reports, including
screening and scoping assessments, should be qualified and competent. Sufficient expertise,
in the relevant field of the project concerned, is required for the purpose of its examination by
the competent authorities in order to ensure that the information provided by the developer is
complete and of a high level of quality so that a full and proper assessment can be undertaken.

For tourism related projects, or projects likely to affect tourism assets, competent experts in
the area of tourism should be utilised in the environmental assessment.

The competency of all involved in the production of an EIAR or any related report (eg.
Screening and scoping) is required to be stated at the beginning of the EIAR report with further
details as necessary in each following chapter.

Where tourism projects involve for example heritage or cultural components, input from
heritage consultants, conservation architects, or historians may be required.

7. EIAR Requirements

The following are the key requirements for an EIAR under the current guidance. This is not a
definitive list and should be read in conjunction with regulations.

e project description;
« assessment of alternatives considered;
SIPage




* baseline assessment;
e impact assessment;

e cumuiative impact

¢ interaction of impacts
o mitigation.

Project Description

Project descriptions are required to describe the whole project including site, scale, design
and key factors. It is important that the EIAR and design team have a consistent understanding
of the development description in full. The key requirements are outlined in section 3.5 of the
EPA Guidelines however they identify the following;

o the location of the project

» the physical characteristics of the whole project

» the main characteristics of the operational phase of the project

» an estimate, by type and quantity, of the expected residues and emissions

The location of the project should include identifying key sensitive receptors (including tourism
receptors). In the operational phase of the project any tourism based, or potentially tourism
related activity, should be identified.

Assessment of Alternatives
The assessment of alternatives is a requirement of EIAR

Where tourism projects are location dependent the assessment of alternatives should
consider alternative methods and technologies, detail the key considerations culminating in
the selection of the design, the reasoning for these and the environmental effect of these
decisions. This is particularly important for-tourism projects which are often location tied. The
developer is expected to consider reasonable alternatives. What is considered reasonable my
vary from case to case.

Baseline Assessment

Baseline descriptions are evidence based, current descriptions of environmental
characteristics with consideration of likely changes to the baseline environment evidenced in
planning histories, unimplemented permissions, and applications pending determination.
Baseline assessments should identify any tourism sensitivities in the zone of influence of a
development. This zone of influence of a development is highly dependant on its Context,
Character, Significance, and Sensitivity, as outlined in the Draft Guidelines. These
characteristics apply to both the development and the environment.

For example, in a tourism context;

The location of sensitive tourism resources that are likely to be directly affected should be
highlighted, and other premises which aithough located elsewhere, may be the subject of in
combination impacts such as aiteration of traffic flows or increased urban development.

The character of an area from a tourism perspective should be described and the principal
types of tourism in the area. Where relevant, the specific environmental resources or attributes
in the existing environment which each group uses or values should be stated and where
relevant, indicate the time, duration or seasonality of any of those activities.

The  significance of the tourism assets or activities likely to be
affected should be highlighted. Reference to any existing formal or published designation or
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recognition of such significance should be. Where possible the value of the contribution of
such tourism assets and activities to the local economy should be provided.

If there are any significant concerns or opposition to the development known to exist among
tourism stakeholders and interest groups, this should be highlighted. Identify, where possible,
the particular aspect of the development which is of concern, together with the part of the
existing tourism resource which may be threatened or impacted.

In addition, the baseline should include any methodologies employed in the study to obtain
information, if particular databases are used to locate sensitive receptors they should be
acknowledged. In relation to tourism information, the suggested information sources at the
end. of this document are a non-exhaustive list which may be of assistance in identifying
tourism receptors.

Impact Assessment

The topics for consideration of impact are prescribed in the EIA Directive and transcribed into
Irish law by the European Union (Planning and Development) (Environmental Impact
Assessment) Regulations 2018 (S.1. No. 296 of 2018). Impact assessment should contain the
likely significant effects of a development arising from both construction and operation of a
development. Advice on describing the effects is contained within the Draft Guidelines and
inciudes the quality, significance, extent, probability, type and duration of the effect, with
particular descriptors for each. In describing effects upon tourism receptors these descriptors
should take account of the particular aspects and sensitivities of tourism, for example a
temporary annual effect from a development may have different impacts upon tourism if it falls
at peak season rather than off-peak.

Impact assessment should be carried out as per EPA guidelines and the best practice for that
prescribed topic. t may be considered appropriate to consider impact on tourism assets under
the ‘material assets’ topic below.

Population and Human Health \!\“GsDEVELOPMENTSEc%I
The consideration of tourism projects within the Population and Human H glih'is extensive,

with impacts ranging from rural employment population impacts of seas al tourism, tﬁﬁﬁ% 6 l% 6
health impact of air pollution from increased traffic in urban areas. 6 JUN J

.....

The impact upon tourism can be considered within this section through
Hospitality, Safety and Pace of Life. Changes in population can impact the perCeg
of life or safety in a particular location. Impacts upon these issues in areas which rely heavily
on tourism or have a particular sensitive tourism generator should be considered in this
section.

Biodiversity

Particular tourist activities can have a significant impact upon biodiversity. Landscapes which
are ‘unspoiled’ can be attractors of tourism. However, the disturbance to ecology must be
managed to minimise impact. Biodiversity is also a fourism asset and should be protected as
such from other development and should be provided for in proposals where possible.

Land, Soils and Geology

A link between tourism and this prescribed environmental factor, beyond the normal
development impacts, is rare, however particular activities or facilities which use geologica!
features may have an impact upon soils and geology, such as mountain biking trails,
recreational uses of old quarries etc. Indirect impacts such as material use for extensive
jandscaping and public realm should also be considered.
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Water

Tourism uses can be water intense, depending on development type. Recreational use of a
surface water feature, water-based leisure centres etc have different impacts to standard
development.

Air Quality and Climate
Tourism impact upon air quality is dependent on activity proposed and sensitivity of the
location.

Noise and Vibration

A link between tourism and this prescribed environmental factor, beyond the normal
development impacts, is rare, however the impact upon tourism of issues of noise and
vibration can be significant. Construction adjoining hotels for example should consider the
sensitivity of the development and ensure mitigation is in place.

Material Assets; Traffic and Transport

The different transport patterns associated with tourism activities is a key impact of tourism
and should be considered especially for tourism projects. These produce temporal and
seasonal changes on the norm and specialist consideration and interpretation should be given.
Tourism proposals should, where possible, be well served by public transport and should be
accessible by modes other than the car. The impact of traffic on tourism assets can be
substantial and can vary in severity according to season, the weather, etc. The impact of
construction traffic can be a particular concern in tourism sensitive areas in terms of noise
pollution and visual impact. The construction programme of developments should work to
avoid peak tourism periods in tourism areas and should consider planned or anticipated
tourism events and festivals.

Cultural Heritage

Cultural heritage can be a key component of tourism projects and the impact of tourism on the
maintenance of cultural heritage should be given the utmost consideration, whether positive
or negative. As a tourism attraction, cultural heritage should be strongly considered in non-
tourism developments and the impact upon tourism considered as a potential impact.

Archaeology

Archaeology can be of tourism interest and can be an attractive or key component of tourism
projects. Archaeology can be a tourism attractor but is generally not kept in situ except in key
cases which could also be considered under cultural heritage.

Material Assets; Waste Management

Tourism is a resource heavy activity and can impact waste streams and waste segregation.
Impacts here should be considered strongly and with knowledge of the variation that arises
from the particular tourist activity. Waste and Waste disposal issues can also impact the
perception of an unspoiled environment, effecting tourism, which should be considered.

Material Assets
Material assets are utilities and infrastructure. Tourism itself could be considered a material
assel as its impact upon the economy and the infrastructure in place to support it is a material
consideration in assessing economic impact.

Landscape
The visual impact of a tourism development, especially in locations which are visually sensitive
or renowned for their scenic or landscape beauty, should be considered carefully. A
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development intended to utilise or enjoy a particular vista or environment should minimise
impact upon that environment.

Major Accident and Natural Disaster

There is a requirement for tourist developments to describe expected significant effects on the
environment of the proposed development's vulnerability to major accidents and/or natural
disasters relevant to it. Where appropriate measures should be identified to prevent or mitigate
the significant adverse effects of such accidents or disasters, including resulting from climate
change, on the environment and detail the preparedness for the proposed response.

Interaction of Effects

Where two or more environmental impacts combine or interact they should be considered

under the prescribed topics. It is best practice to provide a table of interactions within an EIAR
or EIAR Screening Report.

Mitigation

Mitigation should follow the hierarchy of minimisation in descending order of preference-
Avoid, Reduce, Remedy

Avoid sensitive tourism resources- such as views, access and amenity areas including
habitats as well as historical or cultural sites and structures.

Reduce the exposure of sensitive resources to excessive environmental impact

Reduce the adverse effects to tourism land uses and patterns of activities, especially through

interactions arising from significant changes in the intensity of use or contrasts of character or
appearance.

Remedy any unavoidable significant residual adverse effects on tourism resources or
activities.
Mitigation measures must be measurable and achievable within the bounds of the project.

Cumulative Impact

The cumutative impact is that of the project combined with any known likely project which will
interact or compound an environmental impact.

Transboundary Impact

Transboundary impacts should be included in EIAR. In the case of tourism, especially
international travel, the transboundary impacts may not be proximate to the EIAR site.

&1

8. Sources of information on Tourism

Information available online

e

KRy COUNTLES

Failte Ireland

Failte Ireland offers detailed research analysis and insights into the Irish Tourism Industry.
The National Tourism Development Authority has a portfolio of research across a number of
areas including facts an figures, briefing papers and reports and visitor feedback. The Failte
Ireland website has a dedicated research library which can be accessed here
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Tourism Ireland

Tourism Ireland is responsible for marketing the island of Ireland overseas as a holiday and
business tourism destination. Tourism Ireland publishes a range of research documents
including; visitor facts and figures, seasonal updates and industry insights which are
accessible here

Local Authorities

Local Authorities are an invaluable source of information. They produce tourism strategies and
audits of tourism assets within their jurisdiction. Local authorities will also produce landscape
and seascape studies. Protected views and prospects as well as the record of protected
structures and other designated protected buildings are contained within the Statutory
Development Plans.

Regional Authorities

Regional Authorities can also be consulted on high level strategic tourism and potential
Regional Spatial and Economic Strategies (RSESs) should be consuited.

Central Statistics Office

The Central Statistics Office (CSO) is Ireland's national statistical office and their purpose is
to impartially collect, analyse and make available statistics about Ireland’s people, society and
economy. The Tourism and Travel Section of the Central Statistics Office is the major source
for tourism statistics in Ireland and is updated regularly.
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Ann Kilmartin

= = o
From: Roger Woods <rwoods@bai.ie> on behalf of Roger Woods
Sent: Monday, November 16, 2020 10:31 AM
To: akilmartin@jodireland.com
Subject: RE: 6226 Inchamoere Wind Farm, Co. Cork
Hi Ann

The BAI does not perform an in-depth analysis of the effect of wind turbines on Fi networks. However, we are not
aware of any issues from existing windfarms into existing FM networks. Also, the proposed windfarms are not
located close to any existing or planned FM transmission sites.

Regards
Roger

Senior Executive Engineer {
Broadcasting Authority of Ireland
2-5 Warrington Place

Dublin D02 XP29

Tel: 01 6441200
Fax: 01 6441299

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the addressee. If you have
received this email in error, please notify the sender or info@bai.ie immediately and delete this email. If you are not the
intended recipient, any distribution or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited.

Té an riomhphost seo agus aon iatdn a ghabhann leis rinda agus is leis an duine sin amhain a bhfuil siad seolta
chuige/chuici a bhaineann siad. Muna duitse an riomhphost seo, ni ceart € a léamh na a scaoileadh chuig aon trit
pairti. larrtar ort teachtaireacht a sheoladh chuig an secltéir né chuig info@bal.ie, agus an riomhphost seo a scrios.

From: Reception BAI <reception@bai.ie>
Sent: Monday 16 November 2020 10:24
To: Roger Woods <rwoods@bai.ie> .
Subject: FW; 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork (

From: Ann Kilmartin <akiimartin@iodireland.com>
Sent: Monday 16 November 2020 09:55

To: Reception BAl <reception@bal.ie>

Cc: Sarah Moore <smoore@iodireland.com>
Subject: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

Dear Sirs,
Please find attached Telecoms Scoping Document in relation to the above mentioned project for your consideration.
We would be grateful if you could revert with any comments you may have on the proposed development at your

earliest convenience.

Thanks and kind regards,



Ann Kilmartin

I R
from: Roger Woods <rwoods@bai.ie> on behalf of Roger Woods
Sent; Tuesday, November 17, 2020 11:29 AM
To: Ann Kilmartin
Subject: RE: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork
HI Ann

My response is valid for both developments:

Regards
Roger

Senior Executive Engineer
Broadcasting Authority of Irefand
2-5 Warrington Place

-.Dublin D02 XP29

Tel: 01 6441200
Fax: 01 6441299

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the addressee. If you have
received this email in error, please notify the sender or info@bal.le immediately and delete this email. If you are not the
intended recipient, any distribution or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited.

T4 an riomhphost seo agus aon iatan a ghabhann leis rinda agus is leis an duine sin amhain a bhfuil siad seoita
chuige/chuici a bhaineann siad. Muna duitse an riomhphost seo, ni ceart é a léamh na a scaoileadh chuig aon trid
pairti. larrtar ort teachtaireacht a sheoladh chuig an sealtdir né chuig info@bai.ie, agus an riomhphost seo a scrios.

From: Ann Kilmartin <akilmartin@jodireland.com>
Sent: Tuesday 17 November 2020 11:27

To: Roger Woods <rwoods@bai.ie>

Subject: RE: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

Hi Roger,

Thank you for your email.

JENT SECE

Can you please confirm if your response is in relation to both of the proposed wind farm dev uﬁéﬁt?p ortyrahit

and Inchamore or just Inchamore?

Thanks and kind regards,

Ann

From: Roger Woods <pwoods@bai. ie>

Sent: Monday, November 16, 2020 10:31 AM

To: akilmartin@ijodireland.com

Subject: RE: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

Hi Ann




The BAIl does not perform an in-depth analysis of the effect of wind turbines on FM networks. However, we are not
aware of any issues from existing windfarms into existing FM networks. Also, the proposed windfarms are not
located close to any existing or planned FM transmission sites. C

Regards
Roger

Senior Executive Engineer
Broadecasting Authority of Ireland
2-5 Warrington Place

Dublin D02 XP29

Tel: 01 6441200
Fax: 01 6441299

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the addressee. if you have
received this email in error, please notify the sender or info@bai.ie immediately and delete this email. If you are not the
intended recipient, any distribution or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited.

Ta an riomhphost seo agus aon iatan a ghabhann leis r(inda agus is leis an duine sin amhain a bhiuil siad seolta
chuige/chuici a bhaineann siad. Muna duitse an riomhphost seo, ni'ceart & a Iéamh na a scacileadh chuig aon tril
pairti. larrtar ort teachtaireacht a shecladh chuig an seoltéir nd chuig info@bal.ie, agus an riomhphost seo a scrios.

From: Reception BAl <reception@bai.ie>

Sent: Monday 16 November 2020 10:24

To: Roger Woods <rwoods@bai.ie>

Subject: FW: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

From: Ann Kilmartin <akilmartin@jodireland.com>
Sent: Monday 16 November 2020 09:55

To: Reception BAl <reception@hbai.ie>

Cc: Sarah Moore <smogre@jodireland.com>
Subject: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

Dear Sirs, {
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

L aarixfis umitip
CONSULYING ENGINEERS

Head Office ( '
Finisklin Business Park, Sligo, Iretand, F91 RHHS, MAP .
Tel: +353719161416 Email: akilmartin@iodireland.com Web: www.jodireland.com




Birdwatch Ireland



Ann Kilmartin

From: info@birdwatchireland.ie (
Sent: Tuesday, November 17, 2020 10:33 AM

To: Ann Kilmartin

Subject: RE: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

Hi Ann,

We would like to confirm receipt of your email which has been forwarded to our Policy officer .

Regards,

Michelle Kavanagh,

Membership Department.

BirdWatch Ireland

Unit 20 Block D | Bullford Business Campus | Kilcoole | Greystones | A63 RW83 | Co.Wickiow | Ireland
Tel: +353 {0}1 281 9878 email: mkavanagh@birdwatchireland.ie

Website: www.birdwatchireland.ig

‘Please note thot due to current Covid-19 restrictions most BirdWeatch Ireland ¢
Staff will be working from their homes .Please be assured thot your ernail will
be answered as soon as possible.’

BirdWatch Ireland - protecting wild birds and their habitats
BirdWatch Ireland - protecting birds and biodiversity

Cairde Eanlaith Eireann - ag caomhnu éin agus bithéagstlacht

To join as a member, make a donation, volunteer or shop online visit www.birdwatchireland.ie or
call us on +353 {0)1 281 9878 {

From: Ann Kilmartin <akilmartin@jodireland.com>
Sent: Monday 16 November 2020 09:45

To: info@birdwatchireland.ie

Cc: Sarah Moore <smoore@jodireland.com>
Subject: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

Dear Sirs,

Please find attached letter and Ecology Scoping Document in relation to the above mentioned project for your
consideration.

We would be grateful if you could revert with any comments you may have on the proposed devélopment at your
earliest convenience.

Thanks and kind regards,
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Department of Defence



An Roinn Cosanta
Department of Defence

Ann Kilmartin
Jennings O’Dovovan
Consulting Engineers
Finiskiln Business Park
Sligo

F91 RHH9

08 December 2020

Re: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

Dear Ms. Kilmartin,

I am writing with regard to your request for comments/observations on the Telecoms
Scoping Document for a windfarm at Inchamore, Co. Cork

Following consultations with our Military colleagues at Casement Aerodrome,
The Department of Defence would like to make the following observation:

In all locations where wind farms are permitted it should be a condition that they meet
the following lighting requirements.

1. Single turbines or structures, or turbines delineating corners of a wind farm
should be illuminated by high intensity obstacle lights.

2. Obstruction lighting elsewhere in a wind farm will be of a pattern that will
allow the hazard be identified and avoided by aircraft in flight.

3. Obstruction lights used should be incandescent or of a type visible to Night
Vision Equipment. Obstruction lighting fitted to obstacles must emit light at the
near Infra-Red (IR) range of the electromagnetic spectrum specifically at or near
850nanometres (nm) of wavelength. Light intensity to be of similar value to that
emitted in the visible spectrum of light.

The above is a separate requirement to any IAA requirement on lighting.

Boéthar an Staisigin, An Droichead Nua, Contae Chill Dara, W12 ADS3.
Station Road, Mewbridge, Co Kildare, W12 ADS3.

T +353 45 492000 | cusiomer@defence.ie

wpws defencs e




Please don’t hesitate to contact me at the details below if you require further information.

Yours faithfully,

//’}

Don Watchom o L%; (7o) %
Property Management Branch = o 5
Department of Defence = & &
Station Road, o e 3
Newbridge e &2
Co.Kildare W12 AD93 = &

045 492199 oo

donavatchormdelencais




Department of Transport, Tourism and Sport



An Roinn Iompair
Department of Transport

Jennings O’'Donovan & Partners Limited
Finisklin Business Park

Sligo

Ireland
F91 RHHS
25" November 2020

RE: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

Dear Sarah,

| refer to your letter of 12" November 2020 regarding the Scoping Opinicn on information to
be included in the preparation of an Environmental Impact Assessment (E1A} for Inchamore
Wind Farm, Coolea, Co. Cork..

In view of the need to protect the resilience of the public road network in the context of
climate change pressures, it is considered that the EIAR should include information on what
impact the proposed development may have on the public road network both during
construction and in the longer term. The EIAR should indicate whether it is proposed to

use public roads to connect the windfarm to the grid and if that is the case specify the extent
of the works required including drainage, diversions, relocation of services and road re-
instatement. The EIAR should also address the future maintenance requirements related to
the installation of the cables in public roads and the cost implications for the relevant local
authority. Consideration should also be given to how cabling needs to be organised and,
where a number of cables are envisaged from existing, approved and proposed
developments, rationalised into one cable or a group of cables in one trench in order to
minimise the impacts on the road network and the environment along the road boundary
{hedgerows). In addition the EIAR should consider the possibility of over-ground solutions for
the transmission of electricity as an alternative.

Yours sincerely

Jacqui Traynor
Reform Communications Emergency Planning

An Roinn lompair
Department of Transport

Lana Liosain, Baile Atha Cliath, D02 TR60, Eire

o1 BESON-LANE DU 24 D02 TGO, FRIBINE. - ceivvir v omios im0 b i b i

T +353 1 6707444 | info@transport.gov.ie
www.gov.ieftransport
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Ann Kilmartin
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-  Fromn: Thomas Sheridan <thomas.sheridan@eir.ie> on behalf of Thomas Sheridan
Sent: Friday, November 27, 2020 4:39 PM
To: Ann Kilmartin
Cc: Sarah Moore
Subject: Re: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork
Dear Ann, \_meEl\T SECTIoN
%Pﬁjé
| don't expect this proposed windfarm development to interfere with the eircom LTD netwo \@C’ 6 1\6
Best Regards, / \“\\ 'ZQ‘ZB
Thomas Sheridan K 6 3
ges2
On Mon, Nov 16, 2020 at 9:57 AM Ann Kilmartin <akilmartin@jodireland.com> wrote:

Dear Sirs,

| Please find attached Telecoms Scoping Document in relation to the above mentioned project:for your
consideration.

We would be grateful if you could revert with any comments you may have on the proposed development at your
earliest convenience.

{* Thanks and kind regards,

© Ann Kilmartin

JENNINGS O'DONOVAN

L PARINERS HAMNED

CONSULTING ENGINEERS

{ Head Office
Finisklin Business Park, Sllgo Ireland, F91 RHH9. ™MAP

Tek +35§7191§1416 Email: akilmar‘tmmhod:reland com Web: www. iodireland.com
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Ann Kilmartin

From: John Reilly <john.reilly1@esh.ie> on behalf of John Reilly
Sent: Monday, November 16, 2020 11:53 AM

To: ‘akilmartin@jodireland.com’; 'smoore®jodireland.com’
Subject: RE: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co, Cork

Hello Ann, Sarah,

| have reviewed your proposed development in Inchamore, Co. Cork.
| can confirm that ESBT have no fibre based telecommunications infrastructure in this area, which could be
impacted.

Regards
John

John Reilly | Infrastructure Manager | ESB Telecoms Ltd | T: +353 1 702 6819 / +353 87 966 9398 |
john.reillyl@esb.ie |

Website www.esbielecoms.ie
Join us on Linkedin

From: info (Custonier Solutions) <info@esbtelecoms.ie>
Sent: Monday 16 November 2020 11:12

To: Reilly. John (Customer Solutions) <john.reillyl@esb.ie>
Subject: FW: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

ESB Telecoms Ltd. | House 43 Merrion Square East, Dublin 2, D02 XEO| T: +353 1[7

Website www.esbtelecoms.ie

Join us on Linkedin

From: Ann Kilmartin <akilmartin@ijodireland.com>
Sent: Monday 16 November 2020 09:57

To: Info (Customer Solutions) <info@esbtefecoms.ie>
Cc: Sarah Moore <smoore@jodireiand.com>

Subject: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork.




Please find attached Telecoms Scoping Document in relation to the above mentioned project for your consideration.

We would be grateful if you could revert with any comments you may have on the proposed development at your (
earliest convenience,
Thanks and kind regards,

Ann Kilmartin

JENNINGS O'DONOVAN

PRI RLI{ERAT R1].]

CONSULTING ENGINEERS

Head Office
Finisklin Business Park, Sligo, Ireland, F91 RHH9. MAP
Tel: +353719161414 Email: gkilmartin@iodireland.com Web: www.jodireland.com
' Wt ) ENGINEERS -
ZONSA  ACET

IRELAND
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Certiing Wlmnpry MIE

Disclaimer: This message is for the use of person(s) to whom it was intended Lo be addressed. If you have received this electronic messaqge in errar,
please notify us by emait to info@jodireland.com and delete the message. While we take reasonable safeguards to protect our computer network
against viruses, we do not accept any liabliity for contamination or damags to your systems from viruses attached to emails received from us.
Thereforg, we recommend that you scan all emails and attachmerits. The views expressed in this email may nat necessarily be the views held by
Jennings O'Donovan & Partners. Jennings O'Donovan & Partners are committed to data protection and will continue to improve procedures to provide
a safe and secure data environment hitp: vy Jodireland,com/privacy/. COMPANY REG. NO. 149104,

Pleaze consider the environment before printing this e-mail,

An timpeallacht? - Smaoinigh air sula bpriontéileann tt an r-phost seo.
Please consider the Environment before printing this email.

% ok wokk dok ok ok dokok dkok ok ok kaEok deok %

T4 an t-eolas sa rfomhphost seo agus in aon chomhad a ghabhann leis rinda agus ceaptha le haghaidh usaide an té (
né an aonadin ar seoladh chuige iad agus na husdide sin amhain.

Is tuairimi nd dearcthaf an Udair amhain aon tuairimi n6 dearcthai ann, agus ni gé gurb ionann iad agus tuairimi né
dearcthat ESB.

Ma bhfuair td an riomhphost seo tri earrdid, ar mhiste leat é sin a chur in it don seoltoir.

Scanann ESB riomihphoist agus ceangaltain le haghaidh vireas, ach ni rathaionn sé go bhfuil ceachtar diobh saor é
vireas agus ni glacann dliteanas ar bith as aon damaiste de dhroim vireas.

https://www.esb.ie/contact

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity
to whom they are addressed.

Any views or opinions presented are solely those of the author, and do not necessarily represent those of ESB.

if you have received this email in error please notify the sender.

Although ESB scans e-mail and attachments for viruses, it does not guarantee that either is virus-free and accepts no
liability for any damage sustained as a result of viruses.

https://www.esh.ie/contact

‘.

# kk okkok kk ok kok Kok Hk R k% kokE kK ok



Geological Survey of Ireland /
Minister for Environment, Climate and Communications



An Roinn Comhshaoil,
Aerdide agus Cumarsdide
Department of the Environment,

Geological Survey
Suirbhéireacht Gheolaiochta

Climate and Communications ireland | Eireann ¢
Sarah Moore
Jenhings O'Donovan & Partners Ltd.
Finiskiin Business Park
Sligo, F91 RHH9 20 November 2020

Re: Request for Sceping Opinion on information to be included in the preparation of an Environmental Impact
Assessment (EJA) for Inchamore Wind Farm, Coolea, Co. Cork

Your Ref: 6226/503/SL/011/SM
Our Ref:20/291

Dear Sarah,

With reference to your letter dated 12 November 2020, concerning the preparation of an EIA for the proposed
Inchamore Wind Farm, Coolea, Co. Cork, Geological Survey Ireland {a division of the Department of Environment,
Climate and Communications} would tike to make the following comments.

Geoheritage

Geological Survey Ireland is in partnership with the National Parks and Wildlife Service (NPWS, Department of

Culture, Heritage and Gaeltacht), to identify and select important geological and geomorphological sites

throughout the country for designation as geological NHAs (Natural Heritage Areas). This is addressed by the
Geoheritage Programme of Geological Survey Ireland, under 16 different geclogical themes, in which the

minimum number of scientifically significant sites that best represent the theme are rigorously selected by a

panel of theme experts. {

County Geological Sites {CGS), as adopted under the National Heritage Plan are now included in County
Development Plans and in the GIS of planning departments, to ensure the recognition and appropriate
protection of geological heritage within the planning system. The audit for Co. Cork has not yet been completed,
however unaudited CGSs can be viewed online under the Geological Heritage tab on the online Map Viewer. Our
records show that there are no unaudited CGSs in the vicinity of the proposed wind farm development.

Groundwater

Groundwater is important as a source of drinking water, and it supports river flows, lake levels and ecosystems. It
contains natural substances dissolved from the soils and rocks that it flows through, and can also be
contaminated by human actions on the land surface. As a clean, but vulnerable, resource, groundwater needs to
be understood, managed and protected.

Through our Groundwater Programme, Geological Survey Ireland provides advice and maps to members of the

public, consultancies and public bodies about groundwater quality, quantity and distribution. Geological Survey

Ireland monitors groundivater nationwide by characterising aquifers, investigating karst landscapes and

tandforms and by helping to protect public and group scheme water supplies. (‘

Geological Survey Ireland, Beggars Bush, Haddington Road, Dublin D04 K7X4, Ireland.
Suirbhdirgachs Gheolalochta Bireann, Tor an Bhacaigh, Béthar Haddington, Baile Athe Claith D04 K7x4, Eire
T +353 (0} 6782000 LeCall/LoGhian 1890449900 www.gside FRilititeor roimb cothffrengros 1 aGouilge



An Roinn Comhshagil,

Aerdide agus Cumarsiide
Department of the Environment,
Climate and Commiunications

Geological Survey
Suirbhéireacht Ghealaiochta
Ireland | Eireann

We recommend using our National Aguifer, Vulnerability and Recharge maps on our Map viewer to this end.

The Groundwater Vulnerability map indicates the proposed wind farm area is of variable vulnerability. We
would therefore recommend use of the Groundwater Viewer to identify areas of High to Extreme Vulnerability
and ‘Rock at or near surface’ which can be used to inform appropriate mitigation measures,

Our GWFlgod project is a groundwater flood monitoring and mapping programme aimed at addressing the
knowledge gaps surrounding groundwater flooding in Ireland. The project is providing the data and analysis tools
required by local and national authorities to make scientifically-informed decisions regarding groundwater
flooding. Although primarily focused on karst areas, this may provide information to benefit the proposed
wind farm development. We recommend using our GWFlood tools found under our pragramme activities {in
conjunction with OPW data), to this end.

With regards to Climate Change, there is a need to improve the monitoring capacity of groundwater levels in
Ireland so that the potential impacts of climate change can be monitored and assessed. In this context the GSI
{ ' has established the GWClimate project in January 2020. GWClimate will 1) establish a long-term strategic

groundwater level monitoring network and 2) develop modelling and analytical approaches for evaluating th W .
impacts of Climate Change to Irish groundwater systems. Further information can be found on the Ground vater ~3
flooding page of the Groundwater Programme. = W
s 8
] iy j
Geological Mapping % (%} :
:i ;'-'-?.
Geological Survey Ireland {GSI} maintains online datasets of bedrock and subsoits geological mapping that 1 !“f:, =2
reliable, accessible and meets the requirements of all users including depth to bedrock and physiographic maps. B
O

These datasets include depth to bedrock data and subsoil classifications. We would encourage you to use th%e
data which can be found here, in your future assessments.

Geohazards

Geohazards can cause widespread damage to landscapes, wildlife, human property and human life. In Ireland,
landslides are the most prevalent of these hazards. Landslide susceptibility in the area of the proposed wind
farm is variable and is classified from Low to Moderately Low and from Moderately High to High. Geological
Survey Ireland has information available on past landslides for viewing as a layer on our Map Viewer. Geological
f Survey Ireland also engages in national projects such as Landslide Susceptibility Mapping and GWFlood
Groundwater Flooding. We recommend that gechazards be taken into consideration, especially when developing
areas where these risks are prevalent, and we encourage the use of our data when doing so.

Natural Resources (Minerals/Aggrepates)

Geological Survey Ireland is of the view that the sustainable development of our natural resources should be an
integral part.of all development plans from a national to regional to local level to ensure that the materials
required for our society are available when required. Geological Survey Ireland highlights the consideration of
mineral resources and potential resources as a material asset which should be explicitly recognised within the
environmental assessment process. Geological Survey lreland provides-data, maps, interpretations and advice on
matters refated to minerals, their use and their development in cur Minerals section of the website. The Active
Quarries, Mineral Localities and the Aggregate Potential maps are available on our Map Viewer.

in keeping with a sustainable approach we would recommend use of our data and mapping viewers to identify
and ensure that natural resources used in the proposed development are sustainably sourced from properly
recognised and licensed facilities.

(

T Geblogical Survey trgland, Beggars Bush; Haddingtan Road; Dubiliny DOA'K7X4, lrelarid, ™
Suirbhéireacht Gheofaiochta Eireann, Tor an Bhacaigh, Bothar Haddington, Baile Atha Claith D04 K7x4, Eire.
T +353 (0)1 678 2000 LoCall 7 LoGhlap 18904499 00 www.gshie Foiltteqr roimh combfhreagros | nizoeiige



An Roinn Combhshaoil,

Aerdide agus Cumarsaiide
Department of the Environment,
Climate and Communications

Geological Survey
Suirbhéireacht Gheolaiachta
Ireland | Eireann (

Other Comments

Should development go ahead, all other factors considered, Geological Survey Ireland would much appreciate a
copy of reports detailing any site investigations carried out. Should any significant bedrock cuttings be created,
we would ask that they will be designed to remain visible as rock exposure rather than covered with soil and
vegetated, in accordance with safety guidelines and engineering constraints. In areas where natural exposures
are few, or deeply weathered, this measure would permit on-going improvement of geological knowledge of the
subsurface and could be included as additional sites of the gecheritage dataset, if appropriate. Alternatively, we
ask that a digital photographic record of significant new excavations could be provided. Potential visits from
Geological Survey Ireland to personally document exposures could also be arranged.

The data would be added to Geological Survey Ireland’s national database of site investigation boreholes,
implemented to provide a better service to the civil engineering sector. Data can be sent to Beatriz Mozo, Land
Mapping Unit, at Beatriz.Mozo@gsi.ie, 01-678 2795, (”

| hope that these comments are of assistance, and if we can be of any further help, please do not hesitate to
contact me (Trish.Smullen@gst.ie), or my colleague Clare Glanville {Clare.Glanville@gsi.ie).

Yours sincerely,

&&_‘;%Wapﬁwf&/\

Trish Smullen
Geoheritage Programme

Geological Survey lreland

Geological Survey Ireland, Beggars Bush, Haddington Road, Dublin D04 K7X4, Ireland.
Suirbhéireacht Gheolalochia Bireann, Tor an Bhacaigh, Bothar Haddingion, Baiie Atha Claith D04 K734, Ere
T +353 (0N 678 2000 LolCall/ioGhian 1890 449900 www.gshie Fdiltiteor roimh combffireagras | nGasilge
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lascach Intire Eireann
Infand Fisheries Ireland

Ms Sarah Moore

Jennings and O’Donovan Consulting Engineer’s,
Finisklin Business Park

Sligo,

Ireland,

F91 RHH9

23 November 2020

RE: Inchamore Windfarm- Scoping Report Consultation

Dear Sarah,

1 refer to the request for scoping opinion on information to be included in the
preparation of an Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) for Inchamore Wind
Farm, Co.Cork

The site of the proposed development encompasses the upper River Lee caichment
and tributaries, significant salmonid fisheries. In this context IFT would ask that the
following requirements should be taken into consideration.

There should be no drainage or other physical interference with the bed or bank of any
watercourse without prior consultation with IFL

Suspended solids and or hydrocarbon contaminated site run-off waters must be
controlled adequately so that no pollution of surface waters can occur. More
specifically IFI feels the following issues should be addressed

1. Identifying and zoning the project for environmental impact should a peat slip
occur

ii. Setting out contingency plan should a peat movement occur.

iii. Setting out a plan for the control of silt in such a scenario, including measures
to be put in place at the initial stages of construction.

In the event of any watercourse crossings being bridged or culverted the following
general criteria should apply,

IFI Macroom, Sunnyside House, Macroom, Co. Cork
026-41221  macroom @fisheries.ie www.fisheriesireland.ie




(i) The free passage of fish must not be obstructed.

(ii)The original slope of the river bed should be maintained with no sudden drops
on the downstream side. Design details on any proposed crossing should be
incorporated at planning stage

(iii) Bridges are preferable to culverts.

(v) All instream works should be carried out only in the May-September period.

Yours sincerely,

MMP

Michael Mc Partland.
Environmental Officer.

6 JUN 2023 646

... .IF1 Macroom, Sunnyside House, Macroom, Co. Cork
026-41221  macroom@fisheries.iec  www. fisheriesireland.ie -




Irish Aviation Authority



T: +353 1 671 8655
F: 4353 1 679 2934
www.ipa.ic

Jdarss Eitliockta e hElreann
Foirgneamh na hAmanna
11=12 D'Olier Street 11=12 Sréid D'Oller

Dublin 2, D02 T449, Baile Atha Cliath 2, D02 7449,
ireldngd Eirg

Irish Aviation Authority
The Times Building

Date 03" December 2020

Ms. Ann Kilmartin

Jennings O Donovan & Partners Limited

Finiskiin Business Park

Co Sligo

F91RHHS

Development: inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

Dear Ms Kilmartin

The Irish Aviation Authority SRD Aerodromes division notes that Turbine No. 1 is approximately

30kms South East of Kerry Airpert. The aerodrome operator should be contacted and requested to
assess whether a preliminary screening assessment is required in relation to the potential impac
instrument flight procedures or any communication, navigation and surveillance equipment at
Airport.

Subject to that being completed and no likely significant impact being noted, the Aerodrom
would likely issue the following general observation during the formal planning process:
‘In"the event of planning consent being granted, the applicant should be conditioned to con
Irish Aviation Authority to:

(1) agree an aeronautical obstacle warning light scheme for the wind farm development,

{2) provide as-constructed coordinates in WGS84 format together with ground and tip height N
‘elevations at each wind turbine location

Turbine No. | WGS-84 Co-ordinates | Ground Blade iip Height of Confirm if turbine heas
: elevation | elevationof | nwbine ( height obstacle lighting.
o (idalin turbine Jrom ground
P Head {Malin Head | level to blade
v oD) oD} ripj
Ti 53.346125.-6.258248 75m 225m 150m No

(3) notify the Authority of intention to commence crane operations with at least 30 days prior

notification of their erection.”
Best Regards,

JNNIGS O'DONOVAN

PARTNE RS L mviyry 4
ness Park, Sligo.

17 DEC 2020 4o
A
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Yours sincerely ust

Detrdre Forrest
Corporate Affairs

RECEIVED

Bérd StitrthdiriBoard of Directors
Mg{cfmel‘Mchil {Cathacireach/Chaimerson),
-+ Peter Keamay (Priomhtheidhmennnach/Chief Exocithva) o
- Clan Blackwel, Marie Bradisy, Emio Donnally,
GSr'ry Lumsden, Joan McCGrath, Eimer O'Rourke

Oifig Chidraithe:

Foirgreamh na hAmonra, 11-12 Sréld D'Clier
Bailo Atha Cliath-2, DO2.- 7440, Bt oo oo
Uimbir Chidradthe: 211062, Alt Chidraithe: Ere
Cuideachia Difeanais Theoranta

Repisterad Gffice:

The Times Buitding, 11-12 DrOlier Strast
Dublin 2, D02 T449,. Iredand R
Registerad Ne, 211082, Raglslered in iralend
A Limited Liabiiity Company




Irish Wildlife Trust
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Ann Kilmartin__

from: IWT Office <office@iwt.ie> on behalf of iWT Office
Sent: Tuesday, February 16, 2021 2:29 PM

To: Ann Kilmartin

Cc: IWT Office

Subject: Re: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

Dear Ann,

Thank you for contacting the Irish Wildlife Trust.

the moment.

On Mon, 15 Feb 2021 at 12:42, Ann Kilmartin <akilmartin@jodireland.com> wrote:
Dear Sirs,

oyl

bl

| would be obliged if you could please provide an update in relation to your feedback on the above
proposed development.

Thanks and kind regards,

Ann

I On Mon, Nov 16, 2020 at 2:49 AM Ann Kilmartin <akilmartin@jodireland.com> wrote:

. Dear Sirs,

. Please find attached letter and Ecology Scoping Document in relation to the above mentioned project for your
i consideration.

: . We would be grateful if you could revert with any comments you may have on the proposed development at your
. | earliest convenience.

" Thanks and kind regards,




RTE



g,

Ann Kilmartin_

From: Matthew Craig <matthew.craig@2rn.ie> on behalf of Matthew Craig
Sent: Tuesday, January 5, 2021 5:47 PM

To: Ann Kilmartin

Ce: Sarah Moore; windfarms@rte.ie; Johnny Evans

Subject: RE: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

Hi Ann,

i had a look back for this email and couldn’t find it. The addresses are correct so I'm not sure what the problem was.
The site will not affect 2RN’s fixed linking, the nearest link is 750m to the south of T6.
There is however a risk that the site could cause interference to DTT viewers receiving from our site at Mullaghanish.

Regards

Matthew Craig

Project Engineer

Projects and Coverage Planning

2RN

Block B, Cookstown Court, Old Belgard Road, Tallaght, Dublin 24, Ireland
D24 WK28

Phone: + 353 (0) 1 2082261

Mahbile: + 353 (0} 87 7509955

2rn Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and may be legally privileged. It is intended solely for
the addressee. Access to this e-mail by anyone else is unauthorised. If you are not the intended recipient, any
disclosure, copying, distribution, or any action taken or omitted to be taken in reliance on it, is prohibited and may
be unlawful. Please note that emails to, from and within 2rn may be subject to the Freedom of Information Act 2014
and may be liable to disclosure

From: Ann Kilmartin <akilmartin@jodireland.com>

Sent: 05 January 2021 16:02

To: windfarms@rte.ie; Matthew Craig <matthew.craig@2rn.ie>

Cc: Sarah Moore <smoore@jodireland.com>

Subject: FW: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

Hi Matthew,

Happy New Year, | hope you had a lovely Christmas and enjoyed the break.

I'm just following up on my email below, we would be grateful for your feedback at your earliest convenience.

Thanks and kind regards,

Ann

Erom: Ann Kilmartin <akilmartin@jodireland.com>

.....Sent: Monday, November 18, 2020 9:58 AM. ..o

To: 'windfarms@rre i’ <windiarms@rte ie>




Cc: 'matthew.craig@2rn.ie’ <matthew.craig@2rn.ie>; Sarah Moore <smoore@iodireland.com>
Subject: 6226 inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

¢

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

L $ARINILE Vani2 (0

CONSULTING ENGINEERS

Head Office
Finisklin Business Park, Sligo, Ireland, F91 RHH9. MAP
Tel; 353719161416 Email; akilmartin@jodireland,coni Web: www. jodireland.com
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Disciaimer: This message is for the use of persen{s) te whom it was intended to be addressed. If you have received this electronic message in error,
piease notify us by emall to info@jodireland.com and defete the message. While we take reasonable safeguards to protect our compiiter network
against vifuses, we do not accept any habllity for contamination or damage to your systems from viruses attached to emails recetived from us,
Therefore, we recommend that you scan zll emails and attachments. The views expressed in this email may not necessarily be the views held by
Jennings O'Deonovan & Partriers, Jennings O'Donovan & Partners are committed to data protection and will cantinue to improve procedures to provide
& safe and secure data envirenment hitp:/fwwy dodireland.com/privacy/. COMPANY REG. NO. 145104,

Blease consider the environment Before printing this e-mall,

2rn Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and may be legally privileged. It is intended solely for
the addressee. Access to this e-mail by anyone else is unauthorised. if you are not the intended recipient, any
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

From: Paul Driver <Paul.Driver@virginmedia.ie> on behalf of Civils (
Sent: Monday, November 16, 2020 11:39 AM

To: Ann Kilmartin

Subject: RE: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

Ann

| refer to your query of 16™ November about the above location. Virgin Media does not have any record of
underground services at this location as indicated by your drawing.

WHILST THE INFORMATION GIVEN IS BELIEVED TO BE CORRECT NO WARRANTY IS MADE AS TO
ITS ACCURACY. THIS INFORMATION MUST NOT BE RELIED UPON IN THE EVENT OF EXCAVATION
OR OTHER WORKS CARRIED OUT IN THE SITE AREA. NO LIABILITY OF ANY KIND WHATSOEVER
IS ACCEPTED BY VIRGIN MEDIA, ITS SERVANTS OR AGENTS FOR ANY ERROR OR OMISSION IN
RESPECT OF INFORMATION CONTAINED WITHIN THIS COMMUNICATION. THE ACTUAL POSITION
OF UNDERGROUND SERVICES MUST BE VERIFIED AND ESTABLISHED ON SITE BEFORE ANY
MECHANICAL PLANT IS USED.

Regards,

Paul Driver | Plant Protection Officer

Civil Operations

Virgin Media | Unit 7, Westgate Business Park, Ballymount, Dublin 24.
T: +353 (01) 2458586 | M: +353 (0}87 6287133

E: civils@virginmedia.ie | paul.driver@virginmedia.ie

From: Ann Kilmartin [mailto:akilmartin@jodireland.com] (
Sent: 16 November 2020 09:59

To: VMTV info <VMTVInfor@virginmedia.ie>

Cc: Paul Driver <Paul.Driver@virginmedia.ie>; Sarah Moore <smoore@jodireland.com>

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

Ann Kilmartin (



Vodafone



Ann Kilmartin

L Lo
From: Burke, Carla, Vodafone Ireland (External) <carla.burke@vodafone.com> on behalf 01{
Burke, Carla, Vodafone ireland (External)
Sent: Monday, February 15, 2021 1:18 PM
To: Ann Kilmartin; Lyons, Sean, Vodafone Ireland (External)
Subject: RE: FW: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

Hi,

Please find links that will be effected by 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, with reference to the PDF file:

KYIHE-CKMGH | KYIHE | 110284.03 | 77194.53 | ckm@H | 1215115 | 81752.15 | Freq Band | 18 |

Regards,
Carla.

€2 General

From: Ann Kilmartin <akilmartin@jodireland.com>

Sent: Monday 15 February 2021 12:44

To: Lyons, Sean, Vodafone Ireland (External) <sean.lyons@vodafone.com>
Cc: Burke, Carla, Vodafone Ireland (External) <carla.burke@vodafone.com>
Subject: Re: FW: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

CYBER SECURITY WARNING: This email is from an external source - be careful of attachments and links. Please
follow the Cyber Code and report suspicious emails.
Hi Sean, Carla,

| would be obliged if you could please provide an update in relation o your feedback on the above
proposed development.

Thanks and kind regards,

Ann

On Tue, Nov 17, 2020 at 10:15 AM Lyons, Sean, Vodafone ireland (External} <sean.lyons@vodafone.com> wrote:

. HiCarla,

. Can you please review this proposed windfarm development and send your findings to Ann/Sarah?

Sean Lyons .



ki

| **Upcoming leave ~ Nov 26" to Dec 6%

© Transmission Program Manager
¢

) Converged Transmission
! Technology- NET

+353877758117
sean.lyons@vodafone.com
Vodafone Ireland Limited, Registered Office: MountainView, Leopardstown, Dublin 18, Registered in tretand: No. 326967

ypdafone is

The future is exciting.
Ready?

) C2 General

From: Ann Kilmartin <akilmartin@jodireland.com>

Sent: Monday 16 November 2020 09:59

To: Lyons, Sean, Vodafone ireland (External) <sean.lyons@vodafone.com>
Cc: Byrne, Gavin, Vodafone Ireland <gavin.byrne @vodafone.com>; Byrne, Fiona, Vodafone Ireland (External)
<fiona.byrne2 @vodafone.com>; Sarah Moore <smoore@jodireland.com>

Subject: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

CYBER SECURITY- WARNING: This email is from an external sourc

follow the Cyber Code and report suspicious émails. -

e carefu I__'Qf:‘at_t’#j;hmgh_t’s and-links; Pleas

Dear Sirs;

H

* Please find attached Telecoms Scoping Document in relation to the above mentioned project for your
i consideration.

We would be grateful if you could revert with any comments you may have on the proposed development at your
earliest convenience.

' Thanks and kind regards,




ENET



Ann Kilmartin

{
From: Peter O'Brien <peter.obrien@enet.ie> on behalf of Peter O'Brien
Sent: Friday, February 19, 2021 10:29 AM
To: akilmartin@jodireland.com
Subject: RE: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork
Hi Ann,

I'created the kmi’s myself just now and below are the links we have near these turbines:

Inchamore Wind Farm:

A-End A-End B-End B-End Link
Coordinates Antenna Coordinates Antenna Freguency
Height Height
51°56'26.00"N | 15m 51°58'58.46"N 9° | 13m 18GH:z
( 9°18'21.00"W 8'37.17"W

Gortrahilly Wind Farm:

A-End A-End B-End B-End Link
Coordinates Antenna Coordinates Antenna Frequency
Height Height
51°39'56.86"N | 15m 51°58'58.46"N 9° | 15m 13GHz
9°26'35.11"W 8'37.17"W
Regards,
Peter

Peter O'Brien | Tx Planning Engineer
A: 15C Magna Drive, Citywest, D24 YC95
M: +353 (0} 86 7744313 | W: www. enst.le

N '7

Dpen Avcess Mepworks

Registered in Ireland, Reglstration No, 332582
Registered Offices: Enet House, National Technology Park, Castietroy, Co Limerick, Y34 6P52
enet is a registered business name of e-nasc éireann teoranta

From: Peter O'Brien

Sent: Wednesday, February 17, 2021 8:03 AM

To: akilmartin@jodireland.com

Subject: FW: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

(x Hi Ann,




Can you send the proposed wind farms to me in a Google Earth kml so-that | can review against our network?

Regards,
Peter

Peter Q'Brien | Tx Planning Engineer
A: 15C Magna Drive, Citywaest, D24 YC95
M: +353 (0) B6 7744313 | W: www enet.ie

net

Orpes Access MNotwaorks

Registerad in Ireland, Registration No, 332982
Registered Offices: Enet House, Nationa! Technology Park, Castietroy, Co Limerick, V94 6P52
enet is 2 registered business name of e-nasc éireann teoranta

From: Ger Wallace <ger.wallace@enet.ie>

Sent: Monday, February 15, 2021 1:30 PM

To: Peter O'Brien <peter.obrien@enet.ie>

Cc: Ronan McDonogh <ronan.mcdonogh@e-net.ie>; Planning <planning@enet.ie>
Subject: FW: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

Hi Peter,

Think these should have went to you back in Movember. Doesn’t look like they were forwarded. Can you look at
them and review for this lady?

Regards,
Ger

Ger Wailace | Senior Fibre Network Planner
A: Enet Heouse, Naticnal Technology Park, Castletroy, Co Limerick, V94 6P52
Mz +353 (0} 87 6400525 | W: www enetie

Cipen Access MNevworks

Registered in treland, Registration No. 332982
Registered Offices: Enet House, National Technology Park, Castletroy, Co Limerick, V94 5P52
enetisa registered business name of e-nasc éireann teoranta

From: Ann Kilmartin <akilmartin@iodireland.com>
Sent: Monday 15 February 2021 12:44

To: Planning <planning@enet.ie>

Subject: Re: 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

Dear Sirs,

| would be obliged if vou could please provide an update in relation to your feedback on the above
proposed development.



¢

Thanks and kind regards,

Ann

On Mon, Nov 16, 2020 at 10:02 AM Ann Kilmartin <akilmartin@jodireland.com> wrote:

Dear Sirs,

Please find attached Telecoms Scoping Document in relation to the above mentioned project for your
consideration.

We would be grateful if you could revert with any comments you may have on the proposed development at your
earliest convenience.

Thanks and kind regards,

Ann Kilmartin

JENNINGS O'DONOVAN

b FARIHERS gy LD

CONSULTING ENGINEERS

Head Office
Finisklin Business Park, Sligo, Ireland, F91 RHH9, MAP

Tel: +353719161416 Email: akilmartin@iodireland.com Web: www jodireland.com
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Disclaimer; This message is for the use of person{s) to whom It was intended 1o be addressed. If you have recelved this electronic message in error,
piease notify us by emall to infpdiodireland.com and delete the message. While we take reasonable safequards to protect our computer network
against viruses, we do not accept any liability for contamination or damage to your systems from viruses attached to emaiis received from us.
Therefore, we recommend that you scan all emails and attachments. The views expressed in this emall may not necessarily be the views held by
Jennings O'Donovan & Partners. lennings O'Donovan & Partriers are committed to data protection and wifl contirue to improve procedures to
provide a safe and secure data environment httpifwww dodirelang.com/privacy/. COMPANY REG, NO. 149104,

Ploate contiger Lhe environment befars printing s e-medt,




Tetra Ireland p
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Kilmartin

From: Thomas Barry <Tom.Barry@TETRAIRELAND.IE> on behalf of Thomas Barry
Sent: Wednesday, December 9, 2020 6:54 AM

To: Ann Kilmartin

Subject: RE: EXTERNAL MAIL:- 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

Ann,

We anticipate no impact from the development as proposed. Can you ensure the proposal is also reviewed by eir,

Regards,
Tom

From: Ann Kilmartin [mailto:akilmartin@jodireland.com]
Sent: Monday 16 November 2020 10:00

To: Thomas Barry

“Cch Sarah Moore

Subject: EXTERNAL MAIL:- 6226 Inchamore Wind Farm, Co. Cork

Dear 5irs,
??

Please find attached Telecoms Scoping Document in relation to the above mentioned project for
?7

We would be grateful if you could revert with any comments you may have on the proposed develo
earliest convenience.

??

?7

- Thanks and kind regards;

27
Ann Kilmartin
7
??

JENNINGS O'DONOVAN

b PARYMEAS LIRS

CONSULTING ENGINEERS

77

Head Office

Finisklin Business Park, Sligo, Ireland, F91 RHH9.?? MAP

Tel: +35371916143672?2777777277 Email: akilmartin@icdiretand.com????2??7?772277? Web! www . jodireland.com

EONsal  ACEI

B GO, TAROE £ KBS UBIRAN TR Crenapn Eareless i Awind
Catifd Wity KO1E

ENGINEERS

Disclatmer: This message is for the use of person(s) to whem it was inténded te be addressed. If you have received this elgctranic message in error,
please notify us by email to??infodiodireland.cpm?7and delete the message. While we take reasonable safeguards o protect cur computer network
against viruses, we do not accept any liability for contasmination or damage to your systems from viruses attached to emails received from us.
Therefore, we recommend that you scan ali eralls and attachments. The views expressed in this email may not necessarily be the views held by

~Jennings O'Donovan & Partners.?? Jennings O'Donavan & Partners are committed to data protection and will continue to bmprove procedures to

provide a safe and secure data environment Rttp:/fwwi, o direldnd, com/fivary/. COMPANY REG. NO." 149104, "




Kerry Airport



Ann Kilmartin_

From: Howard Jones <howard.jones@kerryairport.ie> on behalf of Howard Jones
Sent: Tuesday, April 18, 2023 9:48 AM

To: Sarah Moore

Cc Sean Molloy; Shirley Bradley; John Mulhern; James Doody

Subject: RE: Proposed Inchamore Wind Farm

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Hello Sarah,
Thanks for the assessment report, my comments are as follows:

1. Section 2.2 as the proposed development penetrates the Annex 15 Aerodrome surfaces, the developer must
ensure the development does not impact or increase current published operating minima associated with
( Kerry Airport.
' 2. Section 2.3 MSA's- any development must ensure that there is no impact on the current published MSA's
associated with Kerry Airport.
3, Section 2.8- Obstacle warning lights- the developer should liaise with the Aviation Authority to ensure that
the development is included on maps and lighted in the interest of aviation safeguarding.
4. The assessment and planning should include the assessment of the construction phase as part of planni

construction phase.

Regards,

T GOUNCIL

Howard Jones
Chet Opeioting OFF

s

4 howard jonosBkenyairporlio

RYANAIR 5 AcrLingus

WD AN AT

#raud Supperters of

The information contained in this electronic mail transmission is intended by Kerry Airport Pl for the use of the named individual
or entity to which it is directed and may contain information that is confidential or privileged. This mail is not to be forwarded,
distributed, published, printed or in any way given to a 3rd party without the express consent of Howard Jones. Legal proceedings
will be instigated against you in the event of this mail being used without permission. If you have received this electronic mail
transmission in error, please delete it from your system without copying or forwarding it, and notify the sender of the error by reply
email so that the sender's address records can be correctead.

Registered in Ireland under Registration Number: 26871

Registered Office; Farranfore, Killarney, Co. Kerry, Ireland. www.kerryairport.ie

( “rom: Sarah Moore <smoore@jodirefand.com>
©Sent:Monday 37 April 2023 10:12 e
To: Howard Jones <howard.jones@kerryairport.ie> S




Cc: Sean Molloy <smolloy@jodireland.com>; Shirley Bradley <sbradley@jodireland.com>; John Mulhern
<john.mulhern@kerryairport.ie>
Subject: RE: Proposed Inchamore Wind Farm (

PR EE E T N AT O F L B LN R U 0k e o g DR R B L P AN f AN B AR E RSO N PREN S RS RR AN bhd kamm s e m e p e PP Y APY AR O NAY

EXTERNAL MAIL

This messdge originated froiiottside Rerry Airpors

Hi Howard,

I’'m following up on your previous email to see you had any comments on the aviation impact assessment.
Kind Regards

Sarah

From: Howard Jones < howard,.jones@kerrvairport.ie >

Sent: Friday, March 31, 2023 2:20 PM

To: Sarah Moore < smoare@jodireland.com >

Cc: Sean Molloy < smolloy@jodireland.com >; Shiriey Bradley < sbradlev@ijodireland.com >; John Mulhern <
iohn.mulhern@kerryairport.ie >

Subject: RE: Proposed Inchamore Wind Farm

Hello Sarah,

R

Thank you for forwarding the report, | will review same over the coming days and revert back in due course.
Regards,

Howard Jones

i howord jonos@kenyaiiportio

TRYANAIR % Act Lingus

{
The information contained in this electronic maif transmission is intended by Kerry Airport Plc for the use of the named individual
or entity to which it is directed and may contain information that is confidential or priviteged. This mail is not to be forwarded,
distributed, published, printed or in any way given-to a 3rd party without the express consent of Howard Jones . l.egal proceedings
will be instigated against you in the event of this mail being used without permission. if you-have received this electronic mail
transmission in error, please delete it from your system without copying or forwarding it, and notify the sender of the error by reply
email so that the sender's address records can be corrected.

Registered in Ireland under Registration Number: 26871

Registered Office: Farranfore, Killarney, Co. Kerry, Ireland. www.kerryairport ie

From: Sarah Moore < smoore@jodireland.com >

Sent: Friday 31 March 2023 11:31

To: Howard lones < hgward.jones@kerryairport.ie >

Cc: Sean Molloy < smolioy@ijodireland.com >; Shirley Bradley < sbradley@jodireland.com >; John Mulhern <
john.mulhern@kerryairport.ie >

Subject: RE: Proposed Inchamore Wind Farm




Howard,
Please find attached the aviation impact assessment completed by AiBridges for the proposed inchamore Wind

- Farm.

Can you confirm you are happy with the findings of the report.
Kind Regards
Sarah Moore

JENNINGS O'DONOVAN

PRI R T RTU RS

CORSULTING ENGINEERS

Head Office

Finisklin Business Park, Sligo, Ireland, F91 RHH9, MAP

Tel: +353719161416 Email: gmogre@iodireland, com Web: www.jodireland.com

Disclaimer: This message is for the use of person(s) to whom it was Intended to be addressed. If you have recelved this electropic message in error,
please notify us by emall to infe@isdireland.com and delete the message. White we take reasonable safeguards to protect our computer network
against viruses, we do not accept any Habllity for contamination or damage to your systems from viruses attached to emails received from us.
Therefore, we recommend that you scan all emails and attachments. The views expressed in this email may not necessarity be the views held by
Jennings O'Donovan & Partners. Jennings O'Dongvan & Partners are committed to data protection and will continue to improve procedures to pravide
a safe and secure data eavironment bttp/fAwww. odirsiand.com/privagy/ . COMPANY REG. NQ. 149104,

Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail. )
From: Howard Jones < howard.iones@kerryairport.ie >
Sent: Wednesday, March 8, 2023 7:19 PM

.. To: Sarah Moore < smoore@jodireland.com >

Cc: Sean Molloy < smolloy@iodireland.com >; Shirley Bradley < sbradley@jodireland.com >; John Mulhern <
iohn.mulhern@kerryairport.ie >

Subject: RE: Proposed Inchamore Wind Farm

Hello Sarah,

Thank you for sending on the google maps positions of the proposed turbines.

From an initial review the development would appear to be outside Kerry Airports 15Km OLS area.

However as you have highlighted in your scoping document section 4.2, the development has potential to impact on
aviation coverage, and
as such | would recommend that this be investigated further to confirm the development will not impggt.on the safe
operation of aircraft and maintain current aviation associated coverage such as radio, radar, navigatj
‘The requirements for lighting and inclusion of the structures on associated maps etc will | am sure
the IAA.

If you have any further questions or require clarification on any of the above please let me know,
Regards,

Howard Jones
Chief Operating Officer

~ 5 & DEVELOFT,

e

i

ercd: howard jones@keryairport.ie ™

RYANAIR

From: Sarah Moore < smoore@jodireland.com >

Sent: 08 March 2023 12:58
To: Howard Jones < howard. jones@kerryairport je >
Cc: Sean Molloy < smolloy@iodireland.com >; Shirley Bradley < sbradley@ijodireland.com >
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1 Iatroduction

The proposed Inse Mhér Wind Farm (Inchamore Wind Farm) is a co-development between
FuturEnergy Ireland and SSE Renewables. FuturEnergy Ireland is a joint venture company
owned on a 50:50 basis by Coillte and ESB. The Coillte project portfolio and renewable

energy team transitioned to FuturEnergy Ireland when the company launched in November
2021.

The co-development between FuturEnergy ireland and SSE Renewables is seeking
planning permission from Cork County Council and Kerry County Council to construct and
operate a commercially viable wind farm project on lands located within an agricultural and
forested landscape west of Ballyvourney and northwest of Coolea in Co. Cork. The total land
parcel extends to approximately 167 hectares, of which a significant area is commercial
forest owned by Coillte. The remaining land is third-party property in Co. Cork.

From the outset, the project team consulted with the local community and commenced this
engagement prior to the start of the project design and environmental assessment. Our
objective was to ensure that the views and concerns of all members of the local community

were considered as part of the project design and the Environmental Impact Assessment
process.

In relation to national guidance on community engagement and consultation for win
developments, the Wind Energy Development Guidelines (Department of Environ
Heritage, and Local Government, 2008) state that.

application.”

This was further addressed in the Preferred Draft Approach fo Wind Energy Deve;}bp

Irefand (June 2017), which stated the following with respect to planning applications for wind
farms:

“Planning applications must contain a Community Report prepared by the applicant which

will specify how the final proposal reflects community consultation. The Community Report
must afso outline steps taken to ensure that the proposed development will be of enduring
economic benefit to the communities concerned.”

The Draft Revised Wind Energy Guidelines (Department of Housing, Planning and Local
Government, 2019) has retained this position, stating:

“In order to promote the observance of best practice, planning authorities should require
applicants to prepare and submit a Community Report with their planning application and a
condition on any subsequent planning permission should require developers to carry out the
development in accordance with the approved Community Report.”




2 Background

This Community Report outlines engagement and liaison with the community locat to the
An Inse Mhér area and the proposed wind farm.

FuturEnergy Ireland has a long history of working with communities and our experience
around the country has generated an inherent understanding of the communities in which we
operate. We aspire to work with the communities surrounding our energy sites and wish to
build projects that are good for us as a commerciai company, good for our neighbours, and
that contribute to the fulfilment of national and global climate change objectives.

FuturEnergy ireland has developed four wind farms in Ireland over the past decade and has
learnt many valuable lessons in relation to working with local communities and the
importance of including local people in decisions that affect them. In 2017, the Coillte
Renewable Energy Team undertook a review of our Community Engagement process and
embarked on the design of a radically enhanced approach with the support of AstonEco
Management.

The key elements of this approach, referred to as our ‘Fair Play” model, are:

¢ Detailed and systematic engagement with all close neighbours to the project (within
2km) from a very early stage of project design.

¢ Open, transparent dialogue and communications.

e Creating opportunities for open, two-way dialogue on key issues.

¢ Involvement of the local community at all stages of the project design process.

e Empowering local communities to be part of project discussions that affect them.

» Ensuring that the local community have access to all relevant information as soon as
it is available, in an understandable format.

This approach emphasises a focus on the residents of dwellings within 2km of the initial
proposed 6 turbine layout as they will be closest and will therefore be most sensitive to any
potential effects caused by the development.

In the past, engagement has commenced when the project is almost fully designed and
being prepared for planning submission. In our ‘Fair Play’ approach we start engagement.as
soon as a site has been identified as suitable for detailed environmental studies within the
FuturEnergy lreland internal screening process. This approach also recognises the need to
keep people who live further away from the development informed about the project as
details become more defined.

In order to build better projects, we recognise the imperative of enabling meaningful
engagement between the project team and the local residents. This engagement has to pass
beyond just information provision to become open, transparent dialogue and involve people
in decisions that affect them, to move towards a more collaborative approach to
infrastructure design that has a national interest but a local impact.

What are our external drivers for stakeholder engagement?



Actively engaging in the conversation helps raise awareness and provides insight
that can ensure successfui project outcomes for everyone.

Active and open dialogue with our community stakeholders is essential for the
success of our projects. It is through two-way dialogue that FuturEnergy Ireland can
responsibly partner with local communities.

FuturEnergy lreland is committed to strengthening partnerships with local
communities.

Public support is achieved by actively working with communities towards mutually
desirable goals. Meaningfu! communication with stakeholders creates trust and
mutual respect, as well as a shared understanding and vision of what a successful
project can look like.

Timely, proactive, open and honest communication is a cornersione of our
Engagement Charter. This approach helps to minimise possible adverse impacts on
our neighbours and contributes towards achieving positive social, economic and
environmental cutcomes.

In line with national policy, FuturEnergy Ireland is committed to meaningful
consultation, which brings about constructive local dialogue, as well as mutual trust
and understanding.




3 FuturEnergy lreland resources

In order to implement this ‘Fair Play’ approach, FuturEnergy Ireland has resourced this
project with a2 number of dedicated staff from the outset. The following key personnel have
been involved in Community Engagement on the proposed Inse Mhér Wind Farm from within
FuturEnergy Ireland and SSE Renewables:

David Heelan of FuturEnergy Ireland is the lead project manager for the proposed Inse
Mhér Wind Farm development. David has worked in the renewables and industrial
production sectors throughout Ireland and the UK since 2008 with a more recent focus on
asset management and performance optimisation. He believes that our work will deliver
tangible benefits to the Irish energy sector and directly reduce the couniry’s reliance on
imported and expensive fossil fuels.

Garry Brides of SSE Renewables is the assistant project manager for the proposed Inse
Mhor Wind Farm development. Garry has extensive experience in the development,
construction, and acquisition phases of large-scale energy projects from onshore wind to
open cycle gas turbines. He has broad knowledge of the complexities invoived and
understands the importance of meeting different stakeholder’s requirements throughout the
project lifecycle.

Brendan Twomey is Community Liaison Officer (CLO) for the proposed Inse Mhor Wind
Farm development. Brendan enjoys working with people and brings many years of
experience across different business sectors. Brendan is the local contact for the proposed
project at An Inse Mhor.

Shane Lowry of FuturEnergy Ireland is the stakeholder manager for the proposed Inse
Mhor Wind Farm development. As a former Community Liaison Officer on other company
projects, Shane works closely with local CLOs to optimise communication and engagement.

Janine Thomas of FuturEnergy Ireland is communications and media manager for the
proposed Inse Mhor Wind Farm development. Janine worked as a journalist for various
national newspapers for over 15 years before joining the team. She brings her extensive
media and communications experience to this project.

Sean Molloy is a senior associate and senior project manager in the renewable energy
department at Jennings O’Donovan & Partners. Sean is a chartered engineer with 14 years’
professional experience, which includes managing Environmental Impact Assessments, Civil
and Environmental Design, preparation of Planning Documentation and Technical Reports
and Stakeholder Consultation.



4 Surmmary of community engagement carried out

Before commencing community engagement, we needed to identify the 2km zone. As
outlined above, FuturEnergy Ireland emphasises a focus on the residents of dwellings within
2km of the site because these people will be closest to the development and will be most
sensitive to any potential effects caused by the proposed development.

This was achieved by taking the initial turbine layout and applying a 2km buffer. Within this

area all dwellings — lived in, vacant and with the potential to be occupied — were mapped.
As the design progressed, we established a “buildable” or more accurate developable area.
We then applied a 2km buffer and began engagement with the residents within this area.

The Inse Mhor project appointed Brendan Twomey as the Community Liaison Officer (CLO)
in summer 2020. The project Community Liaison Officer's initial engagement commenced in
July/August 2020 when he began calling to designated houses within the community to
arrange agreement for and the placing of noise monitoring units around these dwellings that
bordered the project perimeter.

Initial engagement

The role of a Community Liaison Officer (CLO) is to introduce and communicate key project
information, timelines, updates, activities, benefits and proposals through direct and indirect
community engagement, meetings and events with the project's near neighbours and the
wider community throughout the project lifecycle.

Initially, the CLO’s direct engagement focused on calling to all the houses within 2km of the
study area. In September 2020, CLO Brendan Twomey hand-delivered Newsletter 1 fo those
who live within 2km of the proposed project study area.

At FuturEnergy Ireland, we believe that it is important fo give out accurate, up-to-date
information in print to each household ina tlmeiy manner within about three days — to

helped to inform the sec_ond newsletter.

The CLO's work also included Saturdays and some evenings to try and meet residents
unavailable during weekdays in an effort to reach out to all. y

Early in the engagement process, the CLO contacted local interest groups from the wider “‘am
communily and local elected representatives and then kept them up-io-date and informed
about this project, This commitment continued throughout the whole engagement process
and will continue throughout the project’s life cycle.

At all stages of the project’s engagement cycle from 2020 to 2023, all our communications
material included the CLO’s contact mobile phone number, the project email and postal
address.

After the distribution and communication of updates in Newsletter 2 in March 2021, the
dedicated project website address was also included. From this time onward, all project
updates and newsletters were uploaded to the project website www.inchamorewindfarm.ie.




To acknowledge the region’s Gaeltacht culture and heritage, the majority of our
communications were provided in both Irish and English.

The project team replied to queries and questions that arose during the engagement
lifecycle. Some requests for information were logged so that when the information became
available it would be provided.

Next phase engagement

CLO Brendan hand-delivered Newsletter 3 in September 2021, which enabled socially
distanced, outdoor conversations to be held during the pandemic. In November 2021,
Brendan distributed a project update letter informing stakeholders that over the coming
weeks, weather permitting, a 100-metre met mast for measuring wind speeds would be
installed at Inchamore. This was followed in December 2021 by a letter from CEO Peter
Lynch introducing FuturEnergy Ireland, which was distributed to near neighbours.

In March/Aprit 2022 the Community Liaison Officer hand-delivered a project update letter,
which gave him further opportunity to discuss the project with homeowners. Another project
update letter followed in November 2022 to keep near neighbours, interest groups and
elected representatives updated on progress.

In March 2023 a media release was distributed to local and regional journalists to mark the
launch of Inse Mhor Wind Farm's detailed project brochure and Virtual Tour exhibition.

In tandem, the detailed 36-page project brochures with an accompanying invitation to the
Virtual Tour were distributed to near neighbours and the wider community, special interest
groups and local elected representatives.

The Virtual Tour is accessible to all via the project website www.inchamorewindfarm.ie. It
provides a project overview, timeframes, site maps, team biographies, a summary of
archaeology and cultural heritage, ecology, noise, landscape and visuals, a full set of
photomontages, Community Benefit Fund information and a downloadable copy of the
project brochure.

In Aprit 2023, advertisements were piaced in local newspapers with an invitation to attend an
Inse Mhér Wind Farm local on-site community engagement clinic held in Arus Eamon Mac
Suibhne, Cuil Aodh, Co Chorcai, P12 HY57, on Thursday April 20th and Friday April 21st.

In early April a letter of invitation to the community engagement clinic was distributed to the
project’s near neighbours, interest groups and local elected representatives. Posters were
placed in local shops, the post office, the local Co-Op store, the filling station and in the local
pub and posted on the local community Facebook page.

Queries and questions arose at the two-day community engagement clinic and the project
team responded to these. Some requests for information were logged so that when the
information became available it would be provided.

Our intention during May 2023 is to distribute a “Notice to submit into planning” letter to the
project’s nearest neighbours to keep them informed. In tandem, advertisements giving notice
of the planning submission will be placed in a regional and national newspaper. Site notices
in Irish and English wilf also be erected around the proposed project.

*(please see appendix for copies or a link to all communications materials provided)



Covid-19

The Covid-19 pandemic resulted in protective restrictions of varying levels to reduce the
spread and impact of the virus, from strict lockdowns through the gradual easing of restrictions
to free movement and social interactions again. Our interaction adhered to Covid-19
guidelines at all stages of the engagement programme.

At varying stages, Covid-19 restrictions impacted our face-to-face engagement to differing
degrees. However, we remained committed fo keeping our neighbours informed about the
progress of the project during these times through the use of mail drops/posting of newsletters,
individual phone calls, emails, texts and letters to keep everyone updated.

At all stages of the engagement cycle, our communications material included our contact
number, project email and postal address, After the distribution and communication of updates
in Newsletter 2 in March 2021, our dedicated project website address was also inciuded.
From this time onward, all project updates and newsletters were continuously uploaded to the
dedicated project website. In our communications we always included an invitation to make
contact with any queries and questions.

As Covid-19 restrictions eased, where requested further liaison/communication was carried
out individually or in small groups outdoors in fine with the applicable public health policy in
place. This allowed the project team to engage directly with residents and address their
queries regarding the project design, which was beneficial to all parties.

When restrictions lifted, we commenced face-to-face engagement, culminating in a two-day

distancing and hand sanitising were on display around the room. Access to fire doorsw c:
unobstructed and freely accessible. Windows were open to encourage ventilation. If so 1t
came in wearing a mask we asked at the entrance if they would fike us to wear o

question was only necessary to ask once, and the stakeholder said it was unnecessa




3 Infographic summary of community engagement 2020/2023
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6 Detailed summary of community engagement 2020/2023

An Irish and English version of an Introductory
Newsletter 1 was distributed to all houses within 2km of
the project area by our Community Liaison Officer. This
included door-to-door calls, and call-backs to houses
where nobady was at home. If no one was at home the
second time of calling, the CLO left a letter with an
invitation to contact us. The newsletter showed a map of
the proposed project area, site location, contact number,
project email and postal address. It also provided the
opportunity for the project’s Community Liaison Officer to
introduce himself and the project to the near neighbours.

The Newsletter was either emailed/delivered/posted to
interest groups and local elected representatives to keep
them informed. The project team replied to queries and
questions that arose from near neighbours and the wider
community. The engagement included evening and
weekend calls to premises where nobody was at home
during the day, in an effort to reach out to all.

*(please see appendix for a link to a copy of Newslelter 1)

An Irish and English version of Newsletter 2 was posted
due to ongoing Covid-19 restrictions to the near neighbours
adjacent to the project. The newsletter contained project
updates, charted progress and addressed some of the
concerns raised when consulting with homeowners during
the delivery of the Introductory Newsletter 1.

The project contact number, email and postal address,
along with contact details for the newly launched project
website were included in this newsleiter. From this time
onward, all project updates and newsletters were uploaded
to the dedicated project website.

Newsletter 2 was either emailed/delivered/posted to
interest groups and local elected representatives to keep
them informed and up to date. Queries and guestions that
arose from near neighbours and the wider community were
replied to by the project team.

“(please see appendix for a link to a copy of Newsletter 2
and Letter)




Due to ongoing Covid-19 restrictions, Newsletter 3 was
distributed  through letter-box drops. Meanwhile,
consultations with' near neighbours were restricted to
outdoor one-to-one meetings with social distancing to keep
everyone safe. The newsletter contained project updates,
details of surveys and studies being carried out on site on
topics such as Hydrology & Geology, Ornithology,
Biodiversity and Noise. It also included the project’s direct
contact number, email address, postal address and
website details.

Newsletter 3 was uploaded to the project website and was
either emailed/delivered/posted to interest groups and local
elected representatives to keep them informed and up to
date. Queries and questions that arose from near
neighbours and wider community were replied to by the
project team.

{please see appendix for a link to a copy of Newsletter 3)

In November 2021, Brendan distributed a Project Update
Letter informing stakeholders that over the coming weeks,
weather permitting, a 100-metre met mast for measuring
wind speeds would be instailed at Inchamore. The project
update letter was uploaded to the project website. Queries
and questions that arose from near neighbours and wider
community were replied to by the project team.

(please see appendix for a link to a copy of the project
update letter)

An Irish & English introductory lefter to FuturEnergy
Ireland from our CEO was distributed to the near
neighbours adjacent to the project. The letter was also
uploaded to the project website. Queries and questions
that arose from near neighbours and wider community
were replied to by the project team.

“(please see appendix for a link to a copy of the letter)

An [rish & English version of a Project Update Letter was
distributed to the near neighbours adjacent to the project
providing project updates, next steps, expected timelines,
a contact number, project email, postal address, website
details and an invitation to contact us.

The letter was uploaded to the project website and was
either emailed/delivered/posted to interest groups and local
elected representatives to keep them informed and up to
date. The project team replied to queries and questions that
arose from near neighbours and the wider community.

10




*(nlease see appendix for a link to a copy of the project
update letter)

FuturEnergy Ireland sponsored and arranged an

Educational Programme about “Climate Change” for Six local

national schools around the wider project area, which was
well received. The schools involved were CUlil Aodh, Baile
Mhuirne, Beal Athan Ghaorthaidg, Cill na Martra,
Inchigeelagh and Réidh na Ndoiri.

*(please see appendix for a copy of related material)

An Irish & English version of a Project Update Letter was
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
elected representatives to keep them updated. The project
team replied to queries and questions that arose from near
neighbours and the wider community.

*(please see appendix for a link to a copy of the project
update letter)

To keep the local and wider communities informed, a
Media Release was sent to local and regional
newspaper/radio journalists, which provided information on
the project and where interested parties could access all
project information issued to date. This included the
recently launched project brochure and the Virtual Tour.

*(nlease see Table 3 - Media Report for details)

A detailed 36-page Project Brochure and accompanying
letter in Irish & English that invited the reader to the new
Virtual Tour exhibition on the project website were
distributed to the local and wider community of project area.
This provided another opportunity to hold conversations
and listen to feedback and answer questions that arose.

The detailed Project Brochure was uploaded to the project
website. It was also either emailed/delivered/posted to
interest groups and local elected representatives to keep
them informed and up to date. Queries and questions that
arose from near neighbours and wider community were
replied to by the project team.

e &L EVELUPM::’. >




“(please see appendix for a link to a copy of the detailed
project brochure and accompanying letter)

*As part of our engagement commitment, included in the
letter that accompanied the project brochure, we asked
anyone requiring any assistance navigating the Virtual
Tour, to please contact us. For those who did not have
internet access, we requested that they please get in touch,
and we will provide answers to any questions, and hard
copies of information that features on the Virtual Tour as
required. Qur contact defails were included in all
communications.

The Virtual Tour Exhibition, which is accessible via the
project website, was launched. It provides a project
overview, timeframes, team biographies, site maps, and
details of Archaeology and Cultural Heritage, Ecology,
Noise, and Landscape and Visuals, a full set of
photomontages, Community Benefit Fund information and
an e-copy of the 36 - page detailed project brochure.

“(please see appendix for a link to the Virtual Tour
Exhibition)

After the distribution of the detailed project brochure and
accompanying letter to the local and wider community, the
Community Liaison Officer called back to the project's
nearest neighbours to answer any questions that may have
arisen

If there was no one home he left a invite letter (in frish and
English) to the on-site comunity engagement clinic with a
request to cail him back to arrange a suitable appointment
time if they so chose to do so.

The invitation letter was uploaded to the dedicated project
website and was either emailed/delivered/posted to
interest groups and local elected representatives.

This included evening and weekend calls to premises
where nobody was at home during the day, in an effort to
reach out to all.

*(please see appendix for a copy)

All our communications materials, which were distributed
to the local and wider community during the week
commencing 27th of March 2023, included full contact
details and a letter inviting interested parties to contact us
with any queries or requests for information.

Since the initial launch of the project in September 2020,
we have been continuously logging feedback, concerns,
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requests for information and project updates, and replying
to all queries as the information became available.

Due to the detailed nature of the information provided in the
project's last round of engagement, further valuable
feedback was provided, concerns were acknowledged, and
where we were able to provide immediate replies to
questions, we did so. Some requests for information were
logged so that when the information becomes available it
will be provided. We invited and encouraged interested
parties to contact us, or attend the upcoming project local
community engagement clinic to meet the team and
discuss any queries or questions that they may have had.

To keep the local and wider community informed, posters
were placed in local shops, the post office, the local Co-Op
store, the filling station and in the local pub and posted on
the local community Facebook page that provided dates,
times and locations for the on-site community clinic.

*(please see appendix for a copy)

To keep the wider and local communities informed,
advertisements were placed in local and regional
newspapers providing dates, times, contact details and
locations for the on-site community engagement clinic.

*(please see Table 3 - Media Report for details)

A 2 day Local Community Engagement Clinic was held
in Arus Eamon Mac Suibhne, Cuil Aodh,, Co Chorcai. P12 HYS57
which is located within the local community adjacent to the
proposed project area. 30 attendees over the two days me
the project team and asked questions that were pertine
to them. Requests for further information were followed
and provided.

4 live within 1km of the project site,

6 live in the 1 to 2km of the project site,

4 live within the 2 to 3km of the project site,

5 live 3 to 4km mainly south of the proposed site,
5 were representatives of community organisations,
1 is a landowner,

2 live 4 to 5km south of the Inchamore site and are 1 to
2 km from the proposed Gortyrahilly wind farm project.
The remaining were from the wider community.

30 + primary school students from Scoil Chuil Aodha
Barr D Inse attended and participated in an informal
presentation and Q&A.

The Community Liaison Officer will distribute an Irish and
English version of a letter to the project’s nearest




neighbours informing them of a Notice to Submit the project
into planning.

*(please see appendix for a copy)

Advertorials are placed in The Corkman and
The Kerryman newspaper, with a notice to submit
the project into planning.

*(please see Table 3 - Media Report for details)

Site Notices in Irish and English are placed around the
proposed project site.

*(please see appendix for a copy)

The planning application is submitted to Cork County
Council and Kerry County Council and when subsequently
validated, the project's planning application will be
simultaneously uploaded to the project website
www.inchamorewindfarm.ie for the public to review.
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6.1

Virtual Tour Hits: March 27th, 2023 - April 30th, 2023

Statistics for Virtual Tour Exhibition visits, On-Site Clinic attendance

83

2 day On-Site clinic attendees numbers:

30

Sponsored National School Education Program:

6 Schools participated

6.2 Media Report

Print
Media

Adverts will be placed in The
Kerryman and The Corkman
newspapers.

Notice to submit into planning.

Socizal
1 Media

Community Liaison Officer
arranged for a poster to be
provided to a Community
Facebook page.

To keep the local and wider
community informed, a poster
was provided to a local
community Facebook page
which was subsequently
uploaded. The poster
provided dates, times,
locations for the on-sitgs’
community engagem g:i clinic.

648

Posters in

Community Liaison Officer
arranged for posters to be
displayed.

To keep the local an %vider
community infdffned,
posters were placed in\lgcal
shops, the Post office, ‘the
local Co-Op store, the fillifg..__
station and in the local pub
that provided dates, times,
and locations for the on-site
community engagement
clinic.

6 JUN 2023

Print
Media

FE! Media Advertorial placed
in the

e The Corkman,

» Southern Star

e The Kerryman

Invitation to attend the projects
2-day on-site community
engagement clinic.

*(see appendix below for copy)




Raidio na Gaeltachta

Direct call to CLO who
provided information requested
and email reply by Comms
Manager. 7™" April Radio na
Gaeltachta news today
featured Inchamore a few
times.

C103 Radio

Report on Inchamore Wind
Farm’s public consultation
program with information from
the press release.

FEI media release sent to
reporters in

Regicnal papers:

e lrish Examiner.

e The
Corkman/Kerryman

¢ Southern Star.

Radio:
o Raidio na Gaeltachta
o 96FM

To inform the local and wider
community of the newly
launched detailed project
brochure, the Virtual Tour, how
and where to access
infermation and to give our
contact details.

Raidio na Gaeltachta

6.30pm news

Raidioc na Gaeltachta

12 noon, 1pm, 5pm news

Raidio na Gaeltachta

Direct call to CLO who
provided information requested
and email reply by Comms
Manager.

The Echo Newspaper

Céim dheiridh an
chomhairliadchain phoibli ar
fheirm ghaoithe beartaithe do
Mhuscrai

The final stage of the public
consulftation on a wind farm
proposed for Miscraj.
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7 Dwellings within 2km of initial proposed € turbine layout

* The above figures are for occupied dwellings and dwellings that are liveable but may be
unoccupied and excludes derelict houses, farm buildings and sheds.

8 Dwellings within 2Zkm of proposed final 5 turbine layout
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89 RKey concerns raised during the course of engagement:

Traffic disruption during construction to and from the site and
along the grid route and how that is managed and how issues
would be resolved. Previous experiences have been very
negative and disruptive to the local community.

Safety and potential damage arising from the use of local
roads during construction by large trucks on narrow roads.

How will this be managed and who is liable for any potential
property and road damage during construction and for works
carried out along the grid route?

What guarantees are there that damage to property or roads
will be reinstated to their previous condition?

Will there be a liaison officer or individual point of contact
during the construction phase?

Transparency around access to and involvement in directing
funding within the local community was expressed based on
previous and existing experiences.

The appointment process of an Adminstrator and the potential
for having a suitably qualified local Adminstrator being
appointed.

Concerns that the proposed project will be as noisy as
adjacent wind farms, some built 20 + years ago.

Is the project going to generate more noise and how will the
project be cumulatively assessed in terms of noise?

How will the Developers ensure that the wind farm will not
breach noise limits/ impact upon residential amenity?

18
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Will 1 be able to see what the proposed wind farm will look like
from my property in advance of planning being submitted?

Negative impact on residential amenity - direct views from
residents' homes (windows) to turbines.

There are enough wind farms in the locality already and
concerns on the number of wind farms that are being

proposed for development in the locality.

Why is the area being considered in the first place?

Concerns over visual impact of red aviation lights at night.

Is there a potential for a landslide?

Potential employment opportunities for local people long term.

How can the Developers ensure that shadow flicker won't
occur from the project?

We have wells in the area, could the construction disrupt the,
water quality and supply from the sources?

What happens if there is contamination or disruption to the
water supply?

G & DEVELDR;
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As outlined in the detailed summary of community engagement between 2020/2023 above,
the engagement process undertaken has given the project team a detailed appreciation of

the issues and concerns of the near neighbours.

This close working relationship has facilitated the evolution of the project design to
understand and alleviate the concerns expressed as far as possible.

These themes were discussed throughout the engagement process and were answered in a
transparent and open manner. Ultimately not all themes could be or were addressed to the
satisfaction of all, but the project team remains open in trying to find fair and equitable
solutions for everyone, including sharing information sources at our disposal. All of the
above themes are also addressed clearly in the EIAR.
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Itis to be noted that our Community Liaison Officer Brendan Twomey was treated with
respect in the vast majority of cases. While some neighbouring households were not pleased
with what they were hearing, we were thanked at times for bringing the information to them.
The long timeframe for this engagement has allowed people to digest the information
provided, consult, discuss among themselves, and reach out to the project team on any
items that they felt needed further dlarification.

10 influence of engagement - evolution of the wind farm design

As outlined above in the list of key concerns raised during the course of engagement.

The main concerns of tocal residents include Traffic/Transport/Construction Management,
Safety, communication and resolving issues flagged, potential damage to property and
roads, management of the associated Community Benefit Fund, noise, visual impact,
shadow flicker, any landslide potential, water disruption and contamination.

The engagement process undertaken on the proposed project has given the project team a

detailed appreciation of the issues and concerns of the near neighbours. This close working
relationship has facilitated the evolution of the project design to understand and alleviate the
concerns expressed as far as possible.

The mains concerns expressed together with their impact on the design evolution are set out
below.

10.1 Impacts assoclated with trafficftransport/construction management.

Concerns were raised directly with the Community Liaison Officer and with the Team at the
on-site local community engagement clinic about the potential disruption of traffic and
construction and the potential of damaging existing roads, properties adjacent to roads and
follow-up repairs not taking place. This was informed by negative experiences with another
wind farm development.

Undertakings have been provided to stakeholders with concerns about cabling works. In
advance of any potential cabling works along their road, we will undertake a record of
condition survey of the road, a copy of which will be provided to them. After the works are
completed, we will again survey this section of road in consultation with and any possible
damage caused as a direct result of the works wiil be made good and repairs completed. It
was mentioned that prior to any cabling works taking place, we will draft a traffic
management plan for approval by Cork County Council and, as part of that process we will
consult with the community/iocal road users, well in advance.

Six months prior to the commencement of construction, we will initiate the set-up of a liaison
group and a dedicated community liaison contact. The project will meet with this group
monthly or as required to prepare for the construction phase and monitor activities during
construction. This group will develop plans on communicating effectively with residents
directly impacted by construction activities and deliveries, especially traffic planning to
minimise disruption.
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The noise assessment considered all construction-related noise associated with machinery
and traffic and all site activities and found that the proposed layout complies with all relevant.
regulations.

Further details can be found in the noise and vibration and traffic and transport
assessments chapters in the EIAR respectively.

10.2 Community benetit fund.

There were concerns expressed based on existing experience with a particular community
benefit fund around the potential lack of communication, transparency around access fo the
fund and involvement in directing funding within the local community.

There were informative discussions around the Government's 'Good Practice Principles for
Community Behefit Funds', which provides full details on how the fund is to be governed and
requires local community participation in all decisions regarding how the funding should be
used.

Also discussed were timelines and next steps. Should the project receive a positive planning
outcome, the project team and the local community will work together to develop an
appropriate local structure that would design the Inse Mhor Wind Farm Community Benefit
Fund. This group will make decisions on funding allocations and, with the assistance of an
administrator, manage the fund, ensuring transparency and good governance.

The first is a participatory design process for the Inse Mhor Community.Beneﬂt Fund (
that will take place 6 — 8 months prior to any construction work starting.

The team will start a process of reaching out initially to residents within the 2km zone a
then slightly further afield, in order to bring together a smali group of people who are

interested in working on the design and structure of a community-based entity that wouf
ultimately run this Community Benefit Fund. This process will start with a scoping exercl
followed by a series of facilitated workshops. It is hoped that representatives invoived in i
existing local development initiatives will be stakeholders in this process and will therefore?,

contribute to this strategy. .

Another query arose concerning the appointment process of an Administrator and the
potential for having a locally based and suitably qualified Administrator appointed. A
question was asked about the criteria and skills required for an Administrator. It was
discussed that this process begins around 6 — 9 months prior to any construction. A
suggested list of skills and qualifications and experience are being forwarded as requested.

The second piece of work is to explore the potential for community investment in the project
as outlined in the new Renewable Energy Support Scheme (RESS). This will most likely
follow on from the CBF workstream and will look at the best ways to promote awareness
about this opportunity in advance of it coming online.




0.3 Foture employment and skiljs.

There was a question around what type of skilis, education, qualifications and careers would
be required and how the project might develop long-term employment for local stakeholders
and their families, thereby rejuvenating this rural community and keeping families in the
area.

A suggested list of skills, education, qualifications, and careers in the renewable sector is
being forwarded with a suggestion that a presentation on the above to nearby secondary
school TY students would be beneficial and informative.

1.4 Potential for a landslide,

A question around the potential for a landslide in the project area was discussed between
the stakeholders and the project team at the on-site community engagement clinic.

The layout has been developed taking into consideration peat depths and strengths across
the site, the turbine layout and associated ancillary infrastructure has been placed in the
optimal locations to avoid the risk of landslide being caused by the development. A specialist
consultancy RSK Ireland was employed by the project to provide environmental services in
the form of hydrological, hydrogeological advice and undertook a peat stability risk
assessment.

Further details on this can be found in Chapter 8 Soils and Geology assessment chapter of
the EIAR,

10.5 Impacts associated with noise and visual impact,

Noise and visual impacts were addressed as part of the layout design process. A decision
was made early in the design process to ensure that a minimum distance of 4 x tip height
would be maintained between nearest dwellings and turbines. This is more than the current
recommended setback of 500m as set out in the Wind Energy Development Guidelines
2006. The setback of 4 times tip height aiso complies with the Draft Wind Energy
Development Guidelines 2019, which are not, as of the time of writing this report, official
policy and may change in the final form.

Various configurations and layouts were considered as part of the initial design process
based on a detailed visual impact assessment undertaken as part of the environmental
impact assessment.

When a final design turbine layout was confirmed, a set of photomontages was prepared
and made available to the public.

First, a photomontage selection was available within the detailed 36-page project brochure
that was distributed to the wider community around the proposed site.
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Second, through the Virtual Tour at www.inchamorewindfarm.ie, the public could access the
interactive photomontage viewer, which presents 25 viewpoints around the project area so
they could judge the visual impact of the project from these selected locations.

Link to the Virtual Exhibition and photomontages:

inse Mhor Wind Farm - Virtual Public Exhibition | Innovision

Third, a hard copy of the photomontages _presenting the 25 viewpoints around the project
area from the Virtual Tour were available for viewing at the on-site community engagement
clinic for attendees to view and discuss with the project team.

The photomontages are not intended to show the view from every dwelling but to be
representative of local, regional and sensitive views in a wide area around the project.

There were requests from a few stakeholders for views from their houses. This is being
arranged and once available will be forwarded on as requested.

The number of flashing red lights was highlighted as a concern. It was confirmed that the
project must adhere to EASA (EU Aviation Safety Agency rules\Regulations) regarding
lighting required along the perimeter of a wind farm project and spacing subject to a safety
assessment. Ultimately the EASA is the governing body regarding this matter.

The layout was subject to a detailed noise impact assessment. It was determined that the
proposed layout would meet the noise requirements set out in the Wind Energy

Development Guidelines 2006 and relevant current guidance and best practice. The noise
assessment also involved working with community members to compile background noise
levels where noise monitors were placed at local residences surrounding the study area.

helpful to attending stakeholders.

A review of the literature relating to health effects associated with wind turbine noise finds &
evidence of any significant health effects associated with low frequency noise or infrasoun
There is no evidence to support increased likelihood of significant health issues associated
with noise-sensitive medical conditions. Amplitude modulation is a rare occurring event that
is not possible to predict and can be managed through adjustment of turbine operations
where it does occur.

Further details on this can be found in the Noise and Vibration Chapter, Population, Human
Health, and Material Assets Chapter and Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment Chapter
of the EIAR.




10.8 impacts associated with potential shadow flicker.

Concerns were raised directly with the project's Community Liaison Officer and with the
Team at the on-site local community engagement clinic from a few households about the
potential impact of shadow flicker from the turbines. Shadow flicker was considered as part
of the Environmental Impact Assessment process. The proposed layout conforms with the
Wind Energy Development Guidelines 2006 of a maximum 30 minutes of shadow flicker per
day or 30 hours per annum at any sensitive receptor through the management of the turbine
operations during periods when there is a potential for shadow flicker to oceur.

Any queries around shadow flicker were explained in detail at the on-site community
engagement clinic, which seemed to aliay concerns.

Further to this, in accordance with emerging best practice and the draft Wind Energy
Development Guidelines 2019, the project is committed to the elimination of shadow flicker
through the daily management of turbine operations.

Further details on this can be found in the Shadow Flicker Chapter of the EIAR.

LT Impact on water supply and guality

Concerns were raised about the potential for impacts on the water table associated with
drawdown of water from dewatering of site excavations and on pollution of the water supply
from site activities. Many properties have local wells.

After conversations with local stakeholders, the project team has agreed and committed to
appoint an independent hydrologist to the project, the CV of whom will be shared. The
project hydrologist will be asked to take samples on or near the designated property
adjacent to the project in consultation with stakeholders prior to construction to determine a
baseline sample, another during the construction period and another sample after up to two
years of wind farm operations. Water samples will be sent to an independent lab. The lab
name and |ocation will be consulted upon, and we are happy to share resuits.

Further details on this can be found in the Hydrology and Hydrogeoiogy assessment Chapter
of the EIAR.

11 Bummary of community engagement in the wider area

All project communications materials and updates that were distributed were uploaded as they
became available to www.inchamorewindfarm.ie to include Newsletter 1, Newsletter 2,
Newsletter 3, all project update letters, a detailed 36-page project brochure and access to the
projects Virtual Tour Exhibition.

All our contact details are available on the project website and contained in all our distributed
communications materials.

The above project information was either emailed/delivered/posted to interest groups and local
elected representatives to keep them informed and up-to-date throughout the project.
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Week 27" March 2023: The detailed 36-page Project Brochure and accompanying letter
in Irish and English with an invitation to the Virtual Tour exhibition on the project website
was distributed to more than 300 houses to include nearest neighbours adjacent to the
project and out to 4 - 5km of the project area to include local public representatives and
community groups. This provided an opportunity to hold conversations, listen to feedback
and answer questions that arose.

Week 27" March 2023: To keep the local and wider communities informed, a Media
Release was sent to local and regiona! newspapers and radio station journalists, which
provided information on the project and where interested parties could access all project
information issued to date. This included the recently launched detailed project brochure and
the Virtual Tour.

April 2023: Posters were placed in local shops, Post office, local Co-Op store, filling station
and in the local pub advertising the project’s up and coming 2-day local on-site community
engagement clinic,

O Luasa Shop & Post Office Ballymakeera.
Darygold Co-Op superstoor, Ballymakeera,
O Scanaill's Bar Ballymakeera,

Luceys Service station Ballymakeera,

Arus Eamon Mac Suibhne, Cuil Aodh

April 2023: A poster that provided dates, times, and locations for the on-site community
engagement clinic was provided and uploaded to Chomharcumann Forbartha Mhuscarai
Teo Facebook page.

April 2023: To keep the wider and local communities informed, advertisements were placed
in local and regional newspapers providing dates, times, contact details and locations for
the community engagement clinic.

April 2023: The week leading up to the community engagement clinic, an invitation letter
that provided dates, times, contact details and location of the local 2-day community clinic
was delivered to homeowners around the project area and to local elected representatives.

April 20t/21%t: A community engagement clinic was held in Arus Eamon Mac Suibhne, Cuil
Aodh,, Co Chorcai. P12 HY57, which is located within the local community adjacent to the
proposed project area.

4 live within 1km of the project site.

6 live in the 1 to 2Km of the project site.

4 live within the 2 to 3km of the project site.

5 live 3 to 4km mainly south of the proposed site.

5 were representatives of community organisations.

1 is a landowner,

2 live 4 to 5km south of the Inchamore site and are 1 to 2 km from the proposed
Gortyrahilly wind farm project.

The remaining attendees were from the wider community.

« 30 + primary school students from Scoit Chuil Aodha Barr D Inse attended and
participated in an informal presentation and Q& A afterwards.

e & ¢ & o & o

The project team listened to feedback and replied to queries and questions that arose from
near neighbours and the wider community and will continue to do so into the future.



12 infographic summary of engagement with the wider community 2020/2023

Wider Community Engagement:

Week 27" March 2023: Media releases to
launch the Project Brochure and Virtual Tour
Exhibition and inform the wider community
were sent to:

Regional newspapers:
Irish Examiner, The Corkman, Southern Star.

Radio Stations:
Radio Na Gaeltacht, 96FM,

Week 10" April 2023: Posters were placed
locally in shops advertising the times and
location of the up-and-coming project on-site
local community engagement clinic.

A copy of the poster was uploaded to a
community Facebook page.

Week 10" April 2023: Advertisements were
place in local newspapers to inform the wider
community with the times and location of the

up-and-coming project on-site local community
engagement Clinic:

Regional newspapers:
The Corkman, Southern Star, The Kerryman.

May 2023: Advertisements of a “Notice to
Submit into planning” are placed in:

Regional newspapers:
The Kerryman and The Corkman

Please see media report for more details:
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Local Interest Groups contacted and kept up to date.

Colaiste Gobnaitan Post primary School Ballyvourney
Aban Naofa Primary school Ballyvourney
Scoil Cuil Aodh Barr I'Nse Primary school Coolea.

Comhaltas Cosanta Chuil Aodh Development Commitee Coolea

Comharchumann Forbatha Mhuscrai Muskery Development Regiona!

Development
Bol Cumman Cuil Aodh/Baile Muirne Road Bowling
Coiste Bailte Slachtmhara. Tidy Towns Ballyvourney
Combhlacht Tithe Soéiseaita & Forbait an tSulain Community Housing Ballyvourney / Coolea
Teo.
Aisling Geal Sean-Nés Singing training
Eigse Diarmuid O Shiilleabhain. Shean-Nos singing event
lonadh Aise Community Centre
Colaiste Gobnaitan Post primary School Ballyvourney
l.each Fhinin Journalist
Coiste Bailte Slachtmhara Cuil Aodh. Tidy Towns Coolea
Buion Phiobairi Pipe Band
Cork Limousine Club Youth Branch Cattle Breeders
Taispeantas Baile Mhuirne / Cuil Aodha Ballyvourney / Coolea Agricultyf’al Shom
SIi Gaeltachta Mhuscarai Beara Breifney Way trail /& 9 N\
Peiladoir an tSulin Sullane FC 7 o 2
Naomh Abhan Gaa, _ . Ballyvourney/ Coole Gaa foothal clupn
Leach Fhinin Journalist ) =)
Coiste Bailte Slachtmhara Cuil Aodh, Tidy Towns Coolea \% —
Buion Phiobairi Pipe Band o, 2
Cork Limousine Club Youth Branch Cattle Breeders \; c.t:i;

&

o,
.

13 Potential enduring benefits of this project

Inse Mhér Wind Farm has the potential to bring significant positive benefit to the local
community. The project will create sustainable local employment, it will contribute annual rates
to the local authority, provide a local community benefit fund in line with the new Renewabie
Energy Support Scheme. A Community Benefit Fund will be put in place for the RESS period
to provide direct funding to those areas surrounding the project.

13,4 Community Benefit Fund

There are two important government policy developments that will have a bearing on the
establishment of future community benefit funds. The first is the Renewable Energy Support
Scheme, and its terms and conditions which have been published by the Department of
Environment, Climate and Communications. The second is the updated Wind Energy
Guidelines, which have yet to be released. Both sets of policies specify government
requirements on future community benefit funds for renewable energy projects The project
partners confirm that these important policies will be fully adopted and integrated in our
design and establishment of the An Inse Mhér Community Benefit Fund.




Based on RESS, for each megawatt hour (MWh) of electricity produced by the wind farm,
the project will contribute €2 into a community fund for the RESS period i.e., 15 years of
operation. If this project is constructed as currently designed, we estimate that a total of 7.5
million euro will be available in the local area for community funding over the RESS period of
15 years. The above figure is indicative only and will be dependent on the generation
capacity of the wind farm which is influenced by a number of factors including;

1. Number of wind turbines.
2. Capacity and availability of energy production of those turbines.
3. Quantity of wind.

The Inse Mhér Wind Farm, if constructed as proposed, has the potential to produce between
85,000 and 100,000 MWh of clean electricity a year. This means that the project could
provide between €170,000 to €200,000 per annum to the Community Benefit Fund,
depending on the size of the permitied scheme and the wind resource which varies from
year to year, for the first 15 years of its operational life.

RESS guidelines for the annual distribution of this fund are as follows:

. A minimum of €1,000 shall be paid to each household located within a distance of a
1 kilometre radius from the nearest turbine.

. A minimum of 40% of the funds shall be paid to not-for-profit community enterprises
whose primary focus or aim is the promotion of initiatives towards the delivery of the
UN Sustainable Development Goals, in particular Goals 4, 7, 11 and 13, including
education, energy efficiency, sustainable energy, and climate action initiatives.

. A maximum of 10% on administration.

. The balance of the funds shall be spent on initiatives successful in the annual
application process, as proposed by clubs and societies and similar not-for profit
entities, and in respect of Onshore Wind RESS 1 Projects, on "near neighbour
payments" for households located outside a 1 kilometre, but within a distance of 2
kilometres from such RESS 1 Project.

How the fund works

The Government's ‘Good Practice Principles for Community Benefit Funds’ provides full
details on how the fund is to be governed and requires local community participation in all
decisions regarding how the funding should be used. The fund is open to individuals, and
not-for-profit groups such as community and voluntary groups, charities, social enterprises
and clubs and societies. High quality administration, local where possible, is also a key
expectation. Further details can be found at hitps://www.gov.ie/en/pubiication/5f12-
community-projects-and-benefit-funds-ress/

It is envisaged that, should the project receive a positive planning outcome, the project team
and the local community will work together to develop an appropriate local structure that
would design the Inse Mhor Wind Farm Community Benefit Fund. This group will make
decisions on funding allocations and, with the assistance of an administrator, manage the
fund, ensuring transparency and good governance.
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13.2 Comsnunity Investmaent Dpportunity
What is meant by community investment?

The proposed Renewable Energy Support Scheme (RESS) sets out that future renewable
energy project proposals enable the possibility for local communities to invest in projects in a
meaningful way as a means to directly gain from the financial dividends that a project can
provide should it be consented, built, and operated.

In response to this, FuturEnergy Ireland has been working hard with external agencies to
develop workable models of community investment. At the time of writing, the details of a
Community Investment Scheme continue to be worked through by the Depariment of
Environment, Climate and Communications. We look forward fo its publication in due course
and promoting this innovative offering to the community.

14.3 Employment Opportunities

According o The Economic Impact of Onshore Wind in Ireland study by KPMG in 2021,
5,130 people nationally are directly supported by onshore wind. To meet the Government’s
onshore wind target of 8,200 MW by 2030, the industry will need to grow its workforce.

By 2030, total direct and indirect employment is projected at approximately 7,000, an
increase of 35%. The proposed development will make a material contribution to
employment growth within this sector and provide demand for a wide range of products
and services in the local area.

The proposed Inse Mhor Wind Farm brings employment opportunities. At peak construction,
up to 25 people would be directly employed. During construction, additional employment will
be created in the region through the supply of services and materials to the development. In
addition to this, there will also be income generated by local employment from the purchase
of local services i.e., travel and lodgings. One long-term, technical employee is also required
to run the wind farm. Demand for a wide range of products and services will create indirect
employment.

13.4 Locsl County Council Rates

Annual rates paid to Cork County Council are in the range of €280,000 to €330,000 annually
for the lifetime of the project, which is 35 years. An important future contributor to Cork
County Council’s exchequer funding. This could positively impact local infrastructure and
amenities such as roads, public lighting, street cleaning, libraries, fire services and public
amenities. on-site recreational amenities and employment.

13.5 Reorealion

The developers are committed to working with and building relationships with the local
community to discuss a recreational offering if it is of interest to them. If the project

progresses to development, we are committed to explore possibilities that would benefit all
concerned.




14 Ongoing lisison and contact

A number of phases have been detailed below with differing levels of engagement
anticipated depending on the level of project activity. Underpirnining all the engagement
below will be a dedicated Community Liaison Officer for the project who is contactable by
email and mobile phone. These details will remain on the project website, which will be in
place for the duration of the project. As the project progresses, regular updates will be
posted to this website.

Post planning submission until 6 months pre-construction

During this period of approximately 24 — 36 months, if the proposed project receives a
favourable planning decision and has progressed successfully through the next stages of
project development, a number of key community-related activities will continue to be
progressed. The first is a participatory design process for the Inse Mhér Community Benefit
Fund (CBF) that will take place 6 — 8 months prior to any construction work starting.

The team will start a process of reaching out initially to residents within the 2km zone and
then slightly further afield, in order to bring together a small group of people who are
interested in working on the design and structure of a community-based entity that would
ultimately run this Community Benefit Fund. This process will start with a scoping exercise
followed by a series of facilitated workshops. It is hoped that representatives involved in
existing local development initiatives will be stakeholders in this process and will therefore
contribute to this strategy.

The second piece of work is to explore the potential for community investment in the project

as outlined in the new Renewable Energy Support Scheme (RESS). This will probably follow
on from the CBF workstream and will look at the best ways to promote awareness about this
opportunity in advance of it coming online.

Pre- Construction and Construction phase

Six months prior to the commencement of construction we will initiate the set-up of a liaison
group. The project will meet with this group on a monthly basis to prepare for the
construction phase and monitor activities during construction. This group will develop plans
on communicating effectively with residents directly impacted by construction activities and
deliveries, especially traffic planning to minimise disruption.

The project will also engage with local suppliers prior to the construction phase in order to
outline the future needs and promote the use of local suppliers and service providers
wherever possible. This may take the form of a “meet the buyer” event.

Operational Phase

The project will continue with a proposed annual meeting with the liaison group to update
them on project performance and address any issues identified. The Community Liaison
Officer will also be available throughout this period to directly address any issues raised by
local residents. The project website will also be maintained as a method of providing regular,
up-to-date information. There will be regular updates on performance of the Community
Benefit Fund and regular calls for proposals for funding.
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Decommissioning Phase

A year prior to the commencement of decommissioning of the project, the project team will
engage with the established liaison group as well as all residents within the 2km zone to
outline the decommissioning plan and address any issues identified at that time.

In line with the Government's Code of Practice 2016, the project will publish an annual report
of all engagement activities on the project website.

15 Conclusion ! Commitment

As outlined throughout this Community Report, there has been very active engagement on
the project throughout the planning and design phase to date. Many of our neighbours are
supportive of the project, while others wish that the project doesn't proceed. We have
achieved much in terms of making the proposed development a better project for all through
our engagement.

We fully recognise, however, that development of a proposed wind farm is a long and
complex process and that there is ample time to jointly develop our community offerings with
our near neighbours and other stakeholders. We will be progressing these throughout the A
planning adjudication and decision phases as well as in the pre-construction phase shoul
the project receive planning consent.




16 Project literature: newsletters - letters - brochures - other information

All Project newsletters, letters, brochures, online seminar information, other information
are accessible from the project website hitp://www.inchamorewindfarm.ie

Date: September 2020 - Newsletter 1 {Project Introduction) in Irish and English.
Link: htips:/finchamorewindfarm.ieivp-contentiuploads/2022/1 1finchamore-A5-Leafiet!_Gaeilge.pdf
Link: htips:/finchamorewindfarm.iefwp-content/uploads/2022/11/inchamare-AS-Leaflet1_English.pdf

Date: March 2021 - Newsletter 2 in Irish and English.
Link: htips /inchamorewindfarm jefwp-contenl/uploads/2022/1 4/inchamore-A5-Leaflet_lrish_March2021 pdf
Link: https:/finchamorewindfarm.iefwp-content/uploads/2022/1 1/inchamore-A5-Leaflgt_English_March2021 pdf

Date: March 2021 - Project update Letter sent with Newsletter 2 in Irish and English,
Link: https:llinchamorewindfarm.iepr«content!up]oads!2023f01!inchamure~Update—letter—with-NewsIeiter—2~03032021_Gaeilge.pdf
Link: https:l!inchamorewindfarm.iepr-content!up%aads/2(}23{@1flnchamQre-Updale-Ietier—witthews!et!er—2—03032021_Engl§sh.pdf

Date: September 2021 - Newsletter 3 in Irish and English.
Link: hitps:/finchamorewindfarm.ie/wp-content/uploads/2022/11/Inchamore-fish-Leaflet-3.pdf
Link: https:ifinchamerewindfarm.ie/wp-content/uploads/2022/1 1/inchamore-English-Leaflet-3.pdf

Date: November 2021 — Project update Letter.
Link: hitps:#inchamorewindfarm iefwp-content/uploads/2022/1 Vinchamore-project-update-L.etier-November-2021-English-version. pdf

Date: November/December 2021 - Introduction Letter to FuturEnergy ireland in irish and English. £
Link: https:/inchamorewindfarm.ie/wp-contentuploads/2022/1 lntroduction-to-FuturEnergy-Ireland-Letter-Irish-version.pdf
Link: hitps:/inchamorewindfarm,iefwp-content/uploads/2022/11/Intreduction-to-FuturEnergy-Ireland-Letter-English-version. pdf

Date: March 2022 - Project update Letter in Irish and English.
Link: hitps:/inchamorewindfamm.ie/wp-content/uploads/2022/1 1finchamore-Project-update-Leter-ldsh-version. pdf
Link: https:/inchamorewindfarm.iefwp-contentfuploads/2022/1 inchamore-Project-update-lLetter-English-version. pdf

Date: April/May 2022 - FuturEnergy Ireland sponsored and arranged an Educational Program around “Climate Change" for 5
local National schools around the project area. *(image located below)

Date: November 2022 - Project update Letter in Irish and English.
Link: Inchamore-Project-update-letter-Gaeflge-version-November-2022.pdf (inchamerewindfarmi.ie)
Link: https:/finchamorewindfarm. iefwp-contentiuploads/2022/1 2Hinchamore-Project-update-letter-English-version-November-2022 . pdf

Date: November 2022 - Specific Project update Letter in Irish and English sent to local elected representatives.
*(Copies located below).

Date: March 2023 - Detailed Project Brochure with an Introduction in Irish and the main body in English.
Link: 230328_FINAL_FEl-Inchamore-brochure-for-web.pdf (inchamorewindfarm.ie)

Date: March 2023 - Accompanying letter with detailed Project Brochure in Irish and English. *(Copy located below).

Date: March 2023 - Accompanying letter and project summary letter that was sent with the detailed project brochure to Ioc( ’
elected representatives. *(Copies located below).

Date: March 2023 - Project Virtual Tour.
Link: Inse Mhor Wind Farm ~ Viduat Public Exhibition | Innovision

Date: Aprit 2023 — Copy of Invite letter in Irish and English to the 2-day local on-site community engagement clinic.
*(Copy located below),

Date: April 2023 — Invite letter in Irish and English to the 2-day local on-site commuriity engagement clinic sent to local
elected representatives. *(Copy located below).

Date: April 2023 - Posters in Irish and English displayed in local community settings advertising the 2-day
on-site community engagement clinic and uploaded to community Facebook page. *(Copy focaied below).

Date: April 2023 - Advertisements placed in local newspapers for the 2-day on-site community engagement clinic.
*(Copy Ipcated below).

Date: May 2023 - "Notice to Submit” Letter in Irish and English distributed to the projects nearest neighbours informing
them of the project being submitted into planning. *(Copy locaied below).
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Date: May 2022 - FuturEnergy Ireland sponsored and arranged an Educational Programme
around “Climate Change” for five national schools around the project area.

November 2022 - Specific Project update Letter in Irish and English sent to local el

representatives.
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§E tasspriding Liithreschae ni drurbinl sgus Miarsciit Inagun smach deiridh ne divirbini.

-~ Clinict Ranophiiriochia Poballs 1a fine mhi Faubhes, baidh deis ann chin busthdn fe fokesnn
tionscadad 3 hinse FAET4 3§14 RO CHEIIIINNa & Bhelth srsta chur orthis, A fusiche is a bhaicn e s
(o gyt an dits desmbithe BERIn baimid e sl leatagu mi
# dhéanambimn

i fanthyiie T &1 N G Panpphiirtiochis Fabadt, bheimis ap 360 B harystad @ sheaibd dtsach go
Comnaiie Conles Thovos) Bi cinrte g goulrfanid i nis dut P bhfad rolmb 6 nuait & Bhedn 4 i ane HEED
[T PEETRIV UL N

M an di lnn, e ok Skl teagithiil 8 dhé snamh Som chun aon ghed den tonscadal # phtd o6 chuo
1Hoens ko, 16 mo sharal eagmid's thics arbun. N mis Peary teat, by féidi at phost, Cwoch
othdin ns vives 1 chor a,qm sgirraidh 5617 16 3 chaime o cothiom ie dita maide Jas an teasada e
a s AN bAFRim Ghavithe aubnnamdeﬂhuMhév

runnd

is riise 1a maar,

Prensin 4 Tuame,
L1t fwath o rEnC AR POk
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g fpesben Hrab e, TAe fobowing el Bep s’ i3 eXpains what e o waprey eeat
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Date: March 2023 - Accompanying letter with detailed Project Brochure in Irish and English.

@ inse M &(: inse Mhor

wind Farm Wind Farm

March 2023

Wértn 2023
N Deae Homeowmer,

A Uindix T1, 2 chara,

quﬁbmnnwmmﬁm u pafe pnd wed, Ay be e, FuturEnengy
nlazul? mﬂ?eni?a:r?ﬁ:?n’“g in &ﬁmmmmm A‘remmmmmr??:mmum retand domesy Gt ks ), in W&M waabies, 8 attvaly
[ od, & chue L) il anm it e Mhox
fpmllvbe) -mc:m_'!réh),l'- L o prills ezplxmgemhmammm epposiunity close o An wizst of Batyvoumey,
ag Tasr) gaes Maxty ke foi mwm:nuMmmmmnmm&neam
Ermeme, Co. Cherzal, The propcesd inse Mixbe Wind Farm project is.ot where &1 the envi

ezemssment dats has been gathered and roliated lajout. The b
Té an Bonacadal beartallve maida i Feirm: GRAO Na Dinse Kre oy a0 gofm anos rmmmnmmmddammdmmmmhﬁme
LAl na sonral fmpoolachts or fad bailithe agua sanscagiha chun teachl af beagan amash mbomem nismmwmm\mebmm
teartakhe. mhhmmewwhmmmm £0 micnonroie gach god den vey s ol the area.
bhiortnirt ath bearinite muidie b Feium Choofie ta noe Wim, ina theannia s féidx - b
Bachaink ar Thuma Fioni¥ ‘ag mhd‘mmhﬂxmh lers n-dirftsar preis sonval "mmmumwn&WQmeﬂTw “mmmmbmg

have

M4t Bon Chidnamh wait conas an Turas Fiond o Cs8id, N ort ach tasgmexsd o gréanamn

that
Som agua cabhréidh mé lsat, DETh wd rach bhRE! beacht it of o kiticn, séanaigl Teur sarequied. As Commmuniy Lialon OTcer, tarhapey ko hetp in any way | can.

teagmidld bom, by Bhur dicd, a8 euirhidh mé fmagral ar i or 0o chewteanne o Shekin Gueslions may srse have tead o brochurs endoned and complated ratual
agaizh, chomh math e cam chipesnnia d¢ na womi an'a a3 Tewas Fiond de réic mar a4 Tour, hewfmu&”-:mm‘: 4 rjni::mg %‘;vem
Mar Ofigeach Pobwd, tim 3dsta cabhnl feat In aon il gur faidi the 1o meat the prok oy bave, in the

Incafame, f there are eny areas of the menmmwsmmm Poase contazl
edfuturnergyireland.io

'Mifadfach commtcanna a bivith agat faz &s. dull an bréésair o Jamn nd an Tures. Flotil o e on 067 5714 2153 or atine

mmﬁomn|nﬁﬁwm Dbemmid #y regchidd chinic rannphdirtiochty ar a0 il sa. Yours sincedaty,
mmmmawmﬂwmkmmmmmm

thesteanns ath ool o chay. kiran di fnn, md 1 2on ghrd in BONCHON G40 Bormeacal ar mian

feal - phié nics mine, tar | cleagnhdit Sam ke do thol o DE7 9712451 néd or
I3 mins te mens. Brendan Twome,
Comunity Liaiscn CHicer

l :‘ ; j mTﬂ a7 974 EISi

Websito: e robaroyaemi i i

Breanddn & Teama

g pct L, Post FAD Brandan Twomey, FuturEnergy Inetard, The Rhubicon Centr,

Yefoetho dircach: 087 o7y 215 Bishopstran, Cott City. CoCork, T12 YITS r"
-ghonl: the g ny!_

Sulomh Gréssdie iy

Post: Fm:l l:lumm Brea b Tu.um.-l Fia

rEnergy ketand
he Rruibicon Centro, Baike an Easpag, Catalr Chorcal,
En Chomel, T2 Y175

Date: March 2023 — copy of accompanying letter and project summary letter that was sent
with the detailed project brochure to local elected representatives.

inse Moy nge Mbray
> Wind Farm . } Wsnd Farm
Mirta, 2023
Lhech 2023
{C2r o Eepuy] [invert Kams] = dhuna passil,

T3yt agem oo bRAY b go main. Td bedisile pobad fasl it 213 oidtse ar fioraosdss Felme r
Bacihe na hinse M. comhdeetar idir FuturEnergy Idand agus SSE Retewaties.

e O o Gopate, Namee,

5 b this brliw firddi visd wll, Flease fied ercime prpr e rovtrane on B praaoind tnke

Mbge Wonel TP aropssk, 2 eo-developmeet betwpes Tator [aengy felend avd 530 Ronowstios [Fre—— %:s:mndn 3.3 bhodesiis Eanscadnd e gast ord dan brforbas ati basaithe

maidk la Feinr. Ghaaithe ra hireg Wdire, Ina theannta i fde Jaachain: ar Thuras Fioni ap

Tes proc) Brawhore moices 2 detaiiod arervn of o4 anpezts o D10 roposed inst Mbse thaw meorevdndtar ko, 13 EREol 2 " vl vrspesachts agu
Ften seeprmat, s arismnted by . ardive Vistdol Tour, avniabe Lo view st b i mn.x:e: mispeirsn sul;\t\? Mrzmrﬁa baxtaitie. T4 achorre
e i OHar o, winch sl = the | suarswy 22prs wesd wochayhioracadad faci iamb chomh maxdh 305 352 agamm go mibeich 5 bha chatfay duit
chatamrant spes 6 198 s HaR M the ocation of propased D, Thisre ahe intbaded o by
weetfesh wemr g Rverles! thet § ooe Wil e hepul Mar Oifig mach idarhaidiind: Proad {CLO} 5 torscadall b brdisdr maidic le Femm Ghasihe
na hhﬂh!qmeawtpeadh:gamaccbunﬂ:}m:ah?{vd:enmwﬁuna{uhﬁmmmh
Astheatnees's Zeanoreniy wizisen Oflaer TILE, $a.0 teliretingg the lase Mbais Wt Farsm Seocics ata bearashe. na theans o, scapfaar prusgmuum ar nusthidin Fitiiia agus ar st@midn
£ seidenis wha hve fhose Lo $he prapced L2, i Zardem, thece witt b & grés feleme dhisbatet raxdic chun fad & chodmesd onthrom ¢ dita maidit ks an teviscadal,

oz il st Wiy St radis shations 1 sodale thery o6 B provest
Giaatarin mé 2o ireash ar tiihe st laiatgh de 2k den toracadal ans m:h!am =

£l it daren by 0 Baden witha 2 of Lhet oot waer thie ermorg weens 1 Sabe1 2o feodburi, rombaine chin ottt ke hiseclas agus fafanéis a sholithar e rax mas & g, Mis i
and prevede sforration 45 Eequined. 3 yo wish 10 LEATACT I T BAKUSE arry wpett o e propecl leat taagmbai 4 Shianamd: fiom thdn a0 ghid den tensessa & £5K RS chun engiondd 2
B 10 e anpe 8 Pverting, please nd nry delail Belaw . ARaratlerdy, v air oeAs, fg B8 text arst shacn), 13 ma oroid sontat rhm N5 1ds lear Jmat, is feta Iui rphnx., o‘anm gum,m g
el by b orsit @ B dale gr e projesk ua:.—.am.qmn;anagmmc.mm‘

Leanfaimid lends rampmiim:uul Fhoibl & an talarch agus i md Albesdn sedchdExiond chird:
50 rannphastiochia pobai chan et deisessad @ abfan duitse agus g0 dhisie w
iehmratar buslach bais an g agus adn thei; atd agata chur

5 e g g e G TRt e i i e il hld @ ora ety
TRAEEshTA (et b give pou ard s = x the tesm and sk
iy ARARTL POl ha7 b ane.

L teachs ar guch eclas o eisfqdh ge o3 seo maidy la Feim Ghaoits na hinse Miie oo
tiasathe, ann n-dmtear osts Ceistesnna Coitasis {CLanna) agus gach auackiity foimbe
s&n, ¥igh ga dul weas incharreewindharm e

Foe oot Fusticn atoes 10 Fale shrut Bie propsaest inse NP Vo S, s lsding 2 fud of
Fergerry Aubrd Quontions (TADNS 3rd ik M vism Hewslrt b, e vt
reerwe g harrewird e,

TEu SRR 1 Ve e MBS,

Brendae Twsniey .Eﬂn-uhn & Tuamra

Larrnnacity baaan Clfger Cifigeach iditchaidreamh Pebait

Lureet T 571974 25548 Yailaafén dreach \;5‘:3?! 2151
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%C= Inse Mnor Wind Farm

Td Felrm Ghasithe no hinse Mdire, atd beartaithe, comhdhéanto da Sthulrbinotd

suits ar an teohh thior de Bhoile Bhuima | gGe. Choreal. Sineann on strdice taidn thor

147 heictedr, Limistéar suntatach de seo is ea an fhoraois thrdchtdle atd faot
Gindiraccht Coilite agus is mooin tris pdirtl an ehuld eile den talomh seo.

CEN EATH AN TIONSCADAL SEO?
» D'fhéadiadn Feirm Ghaoithe no hinte Maire o dhéthain lsictreachais in-athnunile
o ghidint chun idir 18,663 ogus 74,900 teszh ¢ ehumhochii in aghaldh no bliana,

» |n imeccht thoolré an tionscodall nes. meastar go ndéanfaidhi an fheirm ghaoithe
Ielir 1.9mitliin agus 1.2 mittin tonna dé-ocsald charbéin (CO2) @ thrithdireamh.

s I folnse glon agus breasla gles fan ghusth ar talamb, otd or #4il go fiirseachin
Eirlnn.

» Chabhrédh an ti iof se0 14 lesthaleacht fuinnimh na b alaghdi,
wgus shotathrads ntos mb stdnddts fuinnimh agus escnamaoisch diinn go ki,
anole byus sa todhehal,

+ D'théadfadh an ienscadsi Chte Sochair Pobalt de Idir €470,000 ogus £200.000 In
eghaldh no biana a chur or £3i den ehdad 1S Bliana cibrfochta mar aon lels on
S¢dirn Ghar-Chomharsan.

+ Gheobhadh Comhairle Contas Chorcal rannfocolochtal rdtal kiaatdls de ldir
€280,000 agus €£336,000in ogheidh na biiona,

RANNPHAIRTIOCHT PHOBAIL
Ehftaagmhdli leoninsch elstigh den phobol ditidil ar sii! ag an Oifigeach
idirchoidiimh Pobal, Brendan Twemey. | maose na bpleancnnag alla té sink
rannphdirtiochte or an thoir go lucth | mi Aibrean,

CEAD PLEANALA
Culrfidh on somblacht icnscodail, Inchamare YWind DAL, on tartatas plesndia fool
bhrdid Chemhairle Contae Chorcol ‘Tdthor og sl go govirlear 4 sec istaachis finn
mhian Bealloine 2023,

%&S nse Mhoy Wind Farm

The proposed Inse Mhét Wind Farm consists of 5 turbines tocated west of
Bailyvourney in Co, Cack, The land pareel extends to coproximataly 167 hettares,
A signiicont area of this i commerckal forest owned by Collite and the ramaining

lond is third party property.

WHY THIS PROJECT?
The propoted Inse Mhér Wind Faren could generate enough renawable electricity
te power between 1B ASS Gryd 24 090 houses annually.
Qver the lifetima of this preject, the wind farm Is expected to offset batwesn
L1mifion ang 12 miTian 1ennes of corbon disxide (C02),
Orshore wind is o clean, green fustsource, ¢rvailable in abundance inlreland.
The praject weuld help to reduce reland's enargy vulnerability, praviding more
energy and economic security for vd ail now and into the future.
The project could provide o Community Benefit Fund of €£170,000 to 200,000 per
annum for tha first 15 yeare of opsration thotinchudes a Mear Neighbout scheme.
Cork County Counci would receive annual restes contributions of an sstimated
€£220,000 to €320,000 annually,

-*

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
‘There hos been continuous engagement within the Jocal community frem
our Community Liaison Qifices Brentdon Twemey. Further plans include an
on-site community engagement clinis in Apri
ST

PLANNING
Tha planning application will bo sukmitted ta Cork County Councitby Inchamors
Wind DAC. Itis anticipated that this will bs submitted In May 2023,

ww.inchamorewindfarm.ie

Date: April 2023 - invite letter in Irish and English to the 2-day local on-site community
engagement clinic distributed to the projects nearest neighbours:

%(‘3; inpe Mk

Wind Farm

Feirm Ghasithe 22 hinss Wiice
FuterEnengy lraasd

‘tha Rubizon Certre

Bade sr Easpalg

Corcaigh, T12 Y278

Alkredn, 2023
T 838 agar g bhbai 1d go maits

T4 nodk ag glaoek & dhoras go doras 2y ieandint suas ar an mbrbigidr toracsdat maids b
Felim: Ghactte na Rrse Wi s seachadadhie déanal.

Tis amhisdn rd rakhias 5 bhale nusir 3 ghlaos 4305 ds et mbaith feal a treilleadh eslzis
a fad¥ faoin fiorpeadal dd meeadn aon chelsiesrca ar leity agst nd dd mba abaith |sat
rainns) 2 shornt e déan seagmhad fort je ds thal & Uiz theilestéin nd mo shesladh
siomhphost thios.

B2 nhaih Wi eseadh & thabhain duit chalg Chnld Rasrshdirtoonea Pobail maidie la Felm

Bhaoiha naninse Moce $a halal pGdd Andha. Ara Farom Hac uithne, CulIArJdPA 3] Ii

Chromha, Co, Choveal, PIZHYSS, by an| Diéardzoin 20 Axradn & $2:00 mean e [

agos ar an Asire 20 Abreand 12:00 rein lae go 1600 Ta sdit agsinn i 8 hacedd ag arl
clinic, Sl & Midir leat busiath lx kereann Fhastm Ghaoithe na hinse Hhdire po pearusni,
hiachaint a1 fhasndls an konscadall agas son chestaanna ath 2gat a chy

Fagritar an f-eclay combackichdin gl thuas g PE2IGR sgus sna risashtiin chamk matth
sna laethants arrach mmbann

Munar Fadr leat thazh ;aﬂu:h S ohdnie [earsania, ix 1éidir Saat rizmhphast, gisoch nd
1€acs a chur ohun freages! a ral ar do chgizleanna nd ismaigh comge groireddfal tuaz un
ddta ti maide 1 a0 bonssadal fainnd in-amnuata seo

L teaehil ar gach molax a eisfods ge dif maldl T an EhFelim Ghaothe atd hasriaisha don
inse Mhot, Jar n.ditites sosly Gastaanna Cotiartz (CLanna} asus gath nuach:er ge del

500 agus ruashoteshil, agus rochian x Cior § Lithalr Fiond an Sonscadai tthair cuzin
Sz dor Uhos ar mm‘mﬁam

5 [yse be meds,

Breand3nG Tuams Teileztlrs $taach 087 971 2551
Difigach iirchaidreash Pebal Rephowingmmnffitymearsiaia ¥

(. irese Mhdr
%.r} Wind Farm

Iretm M Wind Farm
FuturEnergy Ireland
The Rubicon Cenfre

Bishopsiovn
Coek. TI2 Y215

Aprd 2023
I et e Taner nds you wel

| have bean caling daonte-toce foliowiny bp o the inge Mhds ¥Wind Famm projest brochurg
thal was defvees recantiy

#Fyou were not 2| home when i called and you would Eke mom information on the prajoct or
hive amy specic questions. please contatt me on the lelephong number or emad below:

The progect taam would ike 13 mmle you fo bie [nve Mhis Wind Farm Conmundy
Engagement Cints it Coslea Community Had Arus damann mac sulbhno, Gld Actha,
Maighthromtna, Co Choreal, P2 HYST. The chnlz will un oa Thursday Sprl 26 from
12noon 1o Spm and Friday Apsl 24 from 12a00m 12 fipm.

The abova public i v:H afsc be ioed Tacally and in e press
et the coming days .

We hope 1o see you 1 tha sz, where you can meet the Inae kAnds \Yind £am team in
persan view tin projest infsmmation and ask any queatiany yeu may bave. If you eannot
atiend, you can aimad, £l or kud and gel your questions anawered or request to ke keglup
to datz on this renewable energy prefed

Foi ol information wiusd 1o date anoul the propesed lnxe Mhér Wind Farm, including a §3t
of Froquenlty Anked Questions (FADs), all prmviouy newstetlers and vpdstes, and aceesd to
hy Virtual Exhibiion, please viait vavwinchamorewindfaom iy

YOART BT aly,
Crengan Tvismey Phees 047 9712151
Commimity Liaison Qfécer Emad inchamoie it energyeland iz




Date: April 2023 - invite Letter to the 2-day local onsite community engagement clinic sent

to local elected representatives.

~  devge Mbr
@ Wind Farm

Feirm Ghaoitha na hinse Méie
FutscEnergy beland

The Rubicen Certra

Exfe anEasgalg

Corsigh. T12 Y275

AEredn, 2623
{Cepaty, Cir - Kamel 3 dhornte asad,
Ta std agaes po BhRA 1 o rratth

Ba meaith ¥ts cuzeadh a thablain gt oty Clinis Rasnphdinioos Pekal raidi i Feim
Ghacithena hinse MEe sa bala | gC5d Acdha, Ars Esmenn Mac Suthne, Ciil Aodka, Maigh
Chroryka, Co, Charal, P12 KYEZ, ar an Dardacn 20 Axredn § 1200 medn las §0 20£0
#g43 3f 30 Aoine 20 Aibredn & 1200 madn lae §o 1802 T4 e sgairn 53 a theicead 23 an
gelinic, 3k ar féidi leat bualsdh 12 Ioireann Fharn: Ghatitie # kinse LSk go pearsanta,
féachaint ar haksndis an isnscadal apus aon chestaanna 513 agata chur, :

Fogratar an tealss combariichs e pobl thuas go R0 5345 sna ruazhidn chemb math
sna laethanis amach mrbainn

Munat (ks Jeat brath gdited=h 5a ching, avvia. s Bidr lea! domhph iseeh nd

16az5 2 chut chan frRagral @ Ml ar do cha'steanna nd lamaidh orm g2 gooime 6% suas thu
dita il rrasks ks a0 tonscadal kimnim in-athnuaia 160,

Le t=3=hd 2r gach golay a eisih oo 06 makdi s an ExFeim Ghaoite atd beartaite don

inse Aihds, lena n2¥iesr besta Cestzanna Codiznta (CTanra) azus gazh nuackdts 4o &

5ed agus pazshonnlehdin, agas rochiain ar Shat  Lithair Fionid an Sonscadad, tathair coain
ot oo it TorieF L

fedothodar £

I5 rise le mezy,

Ereanddn O ¥uara Tedeztin oireash: 05T €71 2151
Cifigesch idvchaidiesmh Pobad R-phastirfamy ot §

(, inse $her
E’W;} Wind Farm

Inse KAér Wind Fam
FuturEtergy l-eland
The Rubizn Cerre
Bishopsonam

Cesk, TI2Y273

Azl 2020
Daas[Depwty, Che- Hamre],
i kcpe this lates frds yoio ol

The project tsam woukd fka 10 vtz you 1o the Irse Jihdt Wiad Fams Cormundy
Engageraq: Clog in Coolea Community Hall, Arus £amann mac sukiane, Gt assha,
Magh chwemtha, Co Chersai P12 HYST The cfruc will nm ¢ Thursday April 20 fom
12ncen to Zprnand Ericay Apnl 21 from 12n00n 12 B

The above pubiic tonsultaden infzrmatan val a'so be aduamised Jocally atdintha press.
aves te ceming days,

Wehope 10 508 you st the clinke. where you £an st the kose Mbar Wnd Farm teamin
patso, visw the preiect nfommation and ask ary questons youmay hava. if you tannot
#mend, you an emai, =2l of bext and gef your questions axswered or raguest o be keftup
1o date on this tenevsable anergy orofest

For 2l elommaicn lrsusd & date about th= propesed inge Mhir Ve Farm, nohsing 3 Ext
£f Frequenty Asked Questaris (FAQE), 2l pravicus neasienars and updates, and aczess io ]
the Vinus! Evhitdition. pleass visit vanivinctamarewrindfam fa,

Yoars socerely.
Erendan Tucmey Praas 037 §71 21152
Compsdny Lizison Ofioer Email mchamsne@frureragyretand s

Date: April 2023 - Posters displayed in local community settings advertising the 2-day tocal
onsite community engagement clinic and uploaded to community Facebook page.

CLINIC
RANNPHAIRTIOCHTA

Budgil lendr bhfoireann go pearsanta,
tuilleadh a fhoghlaim faoin tionscadal
agus do cheisteanna a chur orainn

Aibredn 20th 12-8pm & Aibredn 21st 12-6pm

Arus éamonn mac suibhne, Cuiil aodha,
Maigh chromtha, Co. Choreai, P12 HYS7

R-phost: inchamore@futurenergyireland.ie
Claoigh ar: Brendan Tworney, Oifigeach
tdirchaidreamh Pobail, on 087 971 2151

Wwind Farm (

COMMURMITY
EMCAGEMENT CLINIC

Meet the team in person,
learn more about the project
and ask your guestions

April 20th 12-8pm & April 21st 12-6pm

Arus éamonn mac suibhne, Cdil aodha,
Maigh chromtha, Co. Chorcai, P12 HY57

Email: inchamore@futurenergyireland.ie

Call: Community Liagison Officer
Brendan Twomey on 087 971 2151




Date: April 2023 - Advertisement placed in local newspapers promoting the 2-day local
onsite community engagement clinic:

Thursday, April 13, 2023

..........................................................................................................................

" Inse Mhér Wind Farm is a proposed -
co—development between FuturEnergy Ireland and
SSE Ret wables located near Batlyvourney and
Coolea in Co Cork

You are' mvnted to meet the team learn more about
the project gnd ask your questions,

Community Engagement Clini

April 20th 12-8pm & April 21st 12-6pm
Arus éamonn mac suibhne, Cuil acdha,
Maigh chromtha, Co. Chorcai, P12 HYS7

Email; inchamore@futuren‘erg_yireland_.ie” s
Call: Community Liaison Officer .
Brendan Twomey on 087 971 2151
Text: 087 971 2151 and request a call. back

We look forward to hearmg from you

For more in_formation on the project, please visit -
www.lnchamorowindfarm.le
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Date: May 2023 — Copy of a “Notice to submit” Letter in Irish and English distributed to the
projects nearest neighbours informing them of the project being submitted into planning.

{2 inss pahdr

Lo d Wind Farm
Beabars 2023
A 8néir Ti 2 chara,
Ta st agam go bhRe! g raite

T4 igra l= bixmatas peanda a chr isteach te haghsich Faim Ghaothe fa inae Wsos atd teartathe
turtha sa mac?.lan “REsit an DencinkTha Southem Star', Feicfith ) chosrh eaith Fgral pleandia &
GIUT SURS 39us d duispeind Hrpesl ewlomh an fonscaza? don hankiharkiz! sec de thiid
FutrCnergy lreland 3315 SSE Renewsbles. Tithar a3 532 go georfish Inchamere $%ind DAC an &
waatas steach go Comhaile Conte Choral g luats
Ta iamamas ;éunaira & chut isteash go Comtade Conme. Chorcal makii leis na gndithe den
ticraeads 343 fastigh de bhaite fearann na hinge 383r2 pa Milin{agus Dhann Alainn, Co. Charay,
Luiprsionn 34 Mhorbar 5o 167.2 #a den orbait ionsn {1701 ha) lena n-dirfiear clig (5 l..*;-nhn

wibin pacitha. cablal Laditratamt, tczhm pachtaca !umh zvira hoibtyescha nanlr-.hm 1 go Mra
chazr T )

t5lud oead plearala & ke ix teh TA T § Tion! B BglE
Riileas Ticrohaie Natuee ag gatbhdil eis an/amatas a2 hnﬁun

Luirlaar lanaus pk:—u istoach frelzn go Comhaila Comtas Chlamal maxs ks na prithe den
donzears’ au laisEph de Brake fearains Dfioire Asmhridh agus Choimn an Bhee, G Chlamrai,
Suimsionn an fhorbakt ses 28 ka den Ficdaint fortdn {170 haj agus -mz:r i sRrosche
caklatha, c-!:r!aaha uaagmdme béteair aguy bealach istesch chyrg an safomh on H22 2 EXAull
cead cleandla § kg ina kit Suidzar 82 #3972 chun an 1iamas pleandls sto a chur isteach |

tdn an Kemyman, sul Tiaas an tiamatas fioh bl Chorhaiie Contae Chiamad go kuath

Ruak a theigh an tiamatas paanila faighis sy bidiochiathe ag Comhairie Cormae Charcal agus

39 Colarie Contas Shiamai, deanlar an tsrazh iomisn de M an mTatEs phaansta a
uaslodss agus beidn slad a1 1l e fackans o ar pwi i i thorth math b=
YAV CRPVGCO I8 IUE W Kemyogen. . Baihou‘ chrza denlanaas pleanala arfdl chorrh mazh
i oifg! Chombaida Centas Chercas agqus i cifgi Chomhaide Certae Chiatal.

Td treoir ar :a:n;ha.n-odvan phckal a(sh.zarrh:nna(kmsaﬂ Chernbaide Contse Charcal agas
Chomhaite Contae Chiamaiaraen. Féadfaith aon duing 15 combbssht 2 drugison 2 thabkawn a¥ 21
tiortes dak fprme ghaonhs lelan an ama 20 mbsdh Mo desiméid ar B33 12 Fachaint o, tar &5
dan @Tatas a theith curtsa steact (s é an friena ama chun R 2 shabesss nd eig

Coimeddfaidh mé suas chun £3ts i fati s nuacht e,

Le daz~mhéin agus le maas,

Eraaadin & Tuarca
Ofzaath dirchaidrearsh Putat

ST T 5
phast: wehamite Rt gyieiesd o
SeorhOdasin:  werencfamonita e
Pest Fa churar: Eceanddn & Tuarea, FurEnarg Irelarg,
The Risbicon Cerete, Bats ant ISealy,
Cathair Chorzal. Co, Choneat, T12 Y275

(™ inse MRSy
Wind Farm
May 2322
Dear Krmemmer
[hcpe this leber Brds yo: wal

A notics 1 sURMR 3 platang appioatien for the propozed inse Mh3r\Wind Famn has been placad
i the Southem Star You will alss see plansiig nttioss temge:eaedandd’:splmﬁucmd the
Frofect site for this FuturEnergy Irefand and SSE R is
®xpeztad B bo sutmitted by hehamore Wisd GAG to Cork Coumty Counsl shgn,*,-

A plarning epplicaten is baing oged with Cork Coenty Councll In relaton to the elerrets of the
Foiest that are wishin tie bowmlarsts ofincharrare, Mleeny and Dereenaling, G Cork This
development eompnses 137 3 ha of the ovarad development [170.1 44} ard inciudes Eve (3 Ha}
viind Errbines. unarground cabling, site ascesg f.a.as and a¥ associatad wierks for which planning
parmission is beig tought Ties éepatete ved £y an Eavi brgacy
Aszesament Hepariand a Hamz Inpact Su'ﬂnem

A plarnng appRoation vill 250 be iodged vaty Kary Gourty Councs in relaton 1o the siaméts of
the prefect that are within the fenninds of Gamyreag and Conmteenzwrick, Co Kety. Thix
develapment rormvses 2 8 ha of the cverst development (1701 ha} znd inctdes caking works.
123€ Lpgtade viorks and iz erarance of Lne N22 faz which planaing permisson i bang Scught,
The netce b submi this planning appization vad ke plased within the Kemyman newspaper pior
18 the application being lodged wrh Memy Gouncy Counsd shorty.

Whan Cork County Counal and Kerry Cow,: Countil hava received and vaidaed the plannicg

appleiens, e 142 suite of plarning app it ta iplcaded snd avafatle o
view 2t v inctandtih i i 30d 2 vver opiienes Te and yay kerpones i . A hard copy of

the planning apphication wil atso ba 2vailable st the offices of bith Cork County Council and Keay
Courty Coungd.

Beth Cork Courty Counet and Kerry County Courcil wiebsites have guidance on pitic
pazicipatact, Aoy persen or body may make chrenations a0 e prent wind farm. m!e#se
documents are avaiabla b vienisg. ster the ion has besn iz Tha

make an chervation s Eve wasis

¢/ keep you Lp 40 dite with sry fudther peps,

Hirnd cegards

Erendan Twomey

Corormuny Liaisen Cffises

Dirext 7e; C270712151

Email mchpmereidhnsanger et

Vrebste vy e Tttt i

Pest. FAD Brerctan Twamey, FuturEnergy letand, The fubizon Centne.

Bishopstown, Cork City, Co Cark T32Y275
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Client: Inchamore Wind DAC Date: May 2023
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1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background to Report

Jennings O'Donovan & Partners Limited, on behalf of Inchamore Wind DAC, has prepared
this Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) for the construction of the
proposed five turbine, Inchamore Wind Farm and the improvement works to roads to facilitate
furbine delivery. The Development, as proposed, has been designed to ensure that any
environmental impacts which may arise can be appropriately mitigated such that there will
be no likely significant environmental effects.

This document has been prepared on the basis that this document will be further develop
and expanded following the appointment of the Confractors for the main construction wor
Some items of this CEMP can only be finalised with appropriate input from the Contract

who will actually carry out the main construction works. This CEMP identifies, for

The preparation of this document, and its continued development, is considered to be an
appropriate mechanism to address the requirements to of the aforementioned condition to

ensure the appropriate management of construction activities in accordance with the relevant
environmental requirements.

This document should be read in conjunction with the Appropriate Assessment Screening
Report, Natura Impact Statement, Environmental Impact Assessment Report (EIAR),

Planning Report and Planning Application Drawings.

1.2  Construction Environmental Management Plan {CEMP): Aims & Objectives

This CEMP has been developed in accordance with the Institute of Environmental
Management and Assessment Practitioner “Environmental Management Plans’, Best
Practice Series, Volume 12, December 2008.

The principal objective of this CEMP is to avoid, minimise and control adverse environmental
impacts associated with the development of the wind farm. As such, the Contractors commit
to safeguarding the environment through the identification, avoidance and mitigation of the

potential negative environmental impacts associated with the Development.
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1.3

This CEMP aims to define good practice as well as specific actions required to implement
mitigation requirements as identified in the EIAR, the planning process and/or other licensing

or conserting processes.

The CEMP will be developed further, and/or amended where necessary, to take account of
any additional information which may be made available from the detailed design process or

site surveys eic,

The CEMP will form part of the main Civil Balance of Plant Construction works Contract as
well as the Electrical Balance of Plant Construction works content. The Contractors will take
account of the structure, content, methods and requirements contained within the various
sections of this CEMP when further developing this document (to include environmental

plans) as required by their Contract.

While this version of the CEMP provides a benchmark for good practice, where avoidance or
further minimisation of risks to the environment can be demonstrated through use of
alternative methods or improvements to current practices, the Contractors will implement

these wherever possible, subject to approval from environmental monitoring personnel.

CEMP Development & implementation

The CEMP has been prepared as part of the planning application for Inchamore Wind Farm.
It is a live document on site and will be developed further by the Contractors with site specific
method statements and plans as required prior to each phase of the works. It is also
effectively a document management system for recording information and data relating to
environmental checks, reports, surveys, monitoring data and auditing. Upon completion of
the construction works, the Contractors will submit a complete electronic copy of the final
CEMP to the client for their records. This final CEMP will include electronic scans of all hard
copy reports, data, field records and correspondence which are gathered over the course of

the construction works.

While version numbers will remain fixed depending on the stage of the Project, it is
acknowledged that the CEMP is a continually evolving document which can be updated in
part or whole, at any stage of the Project. Hence, revision and document distribution records
are included at the front of each CEMP document to enable individual documentis to be
updated at any time. A summary of the CEMP development process and the required input

from the main parties involved in the post planning and construction of the wind farm are
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1.4 CEMP Roles & Responsibilities
exiernal bodies as required.

indicated in Figure 1.1. The Contractors will be responsible for further development of the

CEMP in line with other relevant licenses and consents. This may involve liaising with

statutory bodies where appropriate.

' Input Required

" Specialist
Consultants

Envirohmental
~_Manager/ Ecological

_Clerkof Works __

Cp’ntra'ctbr's-

Figure 1.1 Summary of CEMP Development Process

Prior to commencement of construction works, the Contractors will identify a core

Environmental Management Group, comprising of specific project personnel and the

Ecological Clerk of Works. The Environmental Management Group will meet monthly to

discuss the monthly environmental report and will advise site personnel on areas where

improvements may be made on site. The group will draw on technical expertise from relevant

specialists where required, including the Resident Engineer and will liaise with other relevant
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1.5

The Developer will appoint an Ecological Clerk of Works who will be responsible for
coordination, compliance monitoring and continued development of the CEMP and any other
surveys, reports or method statements required. The Ecological Cierk of Works will also
review the Contractors’ method statements and environmental plans as required by the
CEMP, carry out compliance auditing during the construction phase and coordinate the
Environmental Management Group and required liaisons between inchamore Wind DAC the

Contractors, the Planning Authority and other statutory authorities.

CEMP Structure

The CEMP is divided into discrete Sections which are designed to be filed as separate
documents / folders if required. A copy of the CEMP documents / folder(s) will be kept in the
site offices for the duration of the site works and will be made available for review at any time,
The Contractors Ecological Clerk of Works will be responsible for the CEMP and will keep all

sections updated throughout the construction phase.

Where a Contractor has standard documents within his own company / corporate
Environmental Management Plans which cover a particular requirement of this CEMP, these
will either be inserted or cross referenced withiin the relevant Section of this CEMP.

The CEMP Sections are listed in Table 1.1 as follows:

Table 1.1: CEMP — Document Structure

No (Information purpases only)

description  and: a “summary. -of - theif*
environmental sensitiviies at” the Site (as
derived from the Appropriate Assessment

Screenings: and other information where:|:

available).

Environmenta
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personnel,
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“General reporting procedures and tas|
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'MPZ Water Quallty_ Momtonng_.- Plan -aa _
f-.e:-:(WQMP) I e _'-statements as. appropnate and where

gui"-...:'MP3 Surface Water Management Plan required by the = Contract: The

. MP4 Peat and Spo” Management P|an : -_:_Development Of the.: Management PfanS

o let ' MP5 Waste Management Plan = ;WI[E generate more 5|te -specific-

'33‘3""|\_/|ps _Dec.ommlsslpnlng_ Plaﬂ;- e ._gdocuments whlch address parttcular

‘o MPT 'T'i‘afﬁE"'Managemeni.Plan'-';-"‘” B '='env1ronmentaE management procedures
e R P -;apphcable for works:i in spec:fed areas of
:-ﬁthe_Srte These Management Plans form

example Spon[ Management Plan)
Table 6.1 lists all- Management Plans and
-prowc_i_es mfor__m_a_tl_on.._ on Contractors’

responsibilities.
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PROJECT INFORMATION

Site Location and Scheme Description

The Site, as shown in Figure 2.1, is located within an agricultural and forested landscape,
between Milleeny, Co. Cork, Coomagearlahy, and Derryreag, in Co. Kerry. The Site is located
5.9 km west of Ballyvourney, Co. Cork and borders the county boundary between Cork and
Kerry. It is 54 km west of Cork City, and 23 km north-east of Kenmare, Co. Kerry.

The Development is located within the townlands of Inchamor: i rryreag and
z &DE,\’EL i TSEC‘]“;
Derreenaling. S W

Derreenaling, Cummeenavrick, Glashacormick, Clydaghroe, Cummeennabuddoge and
Caherdowney. The proposed grid connection will consist of underground 38 kV cables.

Temporary works will be required to accommodate the delivery of the turbine components
from Ringaskiddy Port. These temporary works are included as part of this application and
are located on the access road from the N22 to the Site.

The Site extends to 170 ha of which 145.4 ha largely consists of low yielding, commercial
forestry. Coillte own 76.0 ha of the forestry (52% of forestry on site) while 69.4 ha (47%) of
the forestry is owned privately.

Coillte owned land comprises different stages of coniferous plantation forestry. The species
comprise mainly of Sitka Spruce with small pockets containing Lodgepole Pine, Alder, Birch
and Beech.

The remaining land (24.6 ha) is third party property and the principal land use in the general
area consists of a mix of agricultural sheep and cattle grazing, farmland, residential

properties, agricultural structures and open mountain heath.

There are 39 houses within 2 km of the proposed turbines.
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In addition to this, there is an abandoned house located to the west of the proposed
substation, on Coillte lands and within the Site. This house is under the ownership of Coilite

and will not be occupied for the lifetime of the Development.

Of the 39 No. houses within 2 km of the proposed turbines, the closest house to a turbine
that is to be assessed as part of this EIAR, is H1. This is located 753 m from T2.
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The Development will consist of the foltowing main compone

« The construction of five turbines with an overall ground to blade tip
177 m to 185 m inclusive; a rotor diameter ranging from 149 m to 155 m inclusive; and

a hub height ranging from 102.5 m to 110.5 m inclusive.
o Construction of permanent turbine hardstands and turbine foundations.

» Construction of one temporary construction compound with associated temporary site

offices, parking areas and security fencing.

« Installation of a (35-year life cycle) meteorological mast with a height of 110 m anda4
m lightning pole on top, such that the overall structure height will be 114 m.

¢ Development of one on-site borrow pit.

+ Construction of new permanent internal site access roads and upgrade of existing
internal site access roads to inciude passing bays and all associated drainage

infrastructure.

+ Development of a permanent internal site drainage network and sediment control
systems.

« Construction of a permanent 38 kV electrical substation including a control building with
welfare facilities, all associated electrical plant and equipment, parking, security fencing
and gates, all associated underground cabling, wastewater holding tank, and all ancillary
structures and works.

« All associated underground electrical and communications cabling connecting the wind
turbines to the on-site wind farm substation.

¢ Ancillary forestry felling to facilitate construction of the Development.

e All associated site development works including berms, landscaping, and soil

excavation.

e Upgrade of existing forest access roads to include passing bays and all associated

drainage infrastructure.
» Upgrade works on the Turbine Delivery Route to include the following:

o Works at an entrance to an existing forest road accessed off the N22 to include
localised widening of the forest road and creation of a splayed entrance, removal of

existing vegetation for visibility splays and removal of street furniture to facilitate

) JENNINGS O’DONOVAN.
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construction traffic including the delivery of abnormal loads and turbine component

deliveries.

A 10-year planning permission and 35-year operational life for the wind turbines and met
mast, from the date of commissioning of the entire wind farm is being sought. This refliects

the lifespan of modern-day turbines.

A permanent planning permission is being sought for the substation and all associated
electrical plant, equipment cabling security fencing and gates, wastewater holding tank, and
all ancillary structures and works as these will become an asset of the national grid under
the management of ESB & EirGrid and will remain in place upon decommissioning of the

wind farm.

The Grid Connection consists of one 38 kV substation (to include one control building with
welfare facilities, all associated electrical plant and equipment, security fencing and gates,
all associated underground cabling, wastewater holding tank, and all ancillary structures
and works) and a 38 kV cable to connect to Ballyvouskill 220 kV Substation.

A temporary access road off the N22 in the townland of Cummeenavrick will facilitate the

safe turning of vehicles leaving the Site.

Permission is not being sought for a Grid Connection Route or the turning area in

Cummeenavrick, however the below is assessed as part of the Project in the EIAR:

» All works associated with the permanent connection of the wind farm to the national
electricity grid comprising a 38 kV underground cable in permanent cable ducts from
the proposed, permanent, on-site substation, in the townland of Inchamore and onto
the townlands of Inchamore, Derreenaling, Derryreag, Cummeenavrick,
Glashacormick, Clydaghroe and Cummeennabuddoge to the existing Ballyvouskill

220 kV Substation in the townland of Caherdowney.

e The construction of a temporary access road off the N22 in the townland of
Cummeenavrick to facilitate a 180 degrees turning manoceuvre by construction

vehicles and reinstatement at the end of the construction period.

6226 CEMP 11
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3 ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROLS

consent, mitigation measures set out in Environmental Impact Assessment Report (2023)
and associated documents and by the guidance documents and best pracitice measures
listed below. This CEMP will be adhered to and further developed by the Contactor and will

be overseen by the project representative/foreman.

Guidance Documents

° Construction Industry Research and Information Association (CIRIA) (2006) Control of
Water Pollution from Construction Sites - Guidance for Consultants and Contractors.
CIRIA C532. London.

) CIRIA (2008) Guidance on '‘Control of Water Pollution from Linear Constiruction
Projects’ (CIRIA Report No. C648, 2006).

. COFORD (2004) Forest Road Manual — Guidelines for the Design, Construction and
Management of Forest Roads.

o CIRIA (2015) SuDS Manual, (CIRIA Report C753, 2015)

o Coillte (2009): Forest Operations & Water Protection Guidelines.

o Department of Agriculture, Food and the Marine (2018) DRAFT Plan for Forests &
Freshwater Pearl Mussel in ireland — Consuitation Document.

. Forestry Commission (2004) Forests and Water Guidelines, Fourth Edition. Publ.
Forestry Commission, Edinburgh.

. Forest Services (2006) Draft Plan for Forestry and Freshwater Pearl Mussel
Requirements — Site Assessment and Mitigation Measures.

. Forest Service {2000) Forestry and Water Quality Guidelines. Forest Service, DAF,
Johnstown Castle Estate, Co. Wexford.

. IFl (2016) Guidelines on Protection of Fisheries During Construction Works in and
Adjacent to Waters.

s GPP1 {2020) Understanding your Environmental Responsibilites - Good
environmental Practices, NetRegs.

. GPP 5 (2018) Works and Maintenance In or Near Water, NetRegs.

. GPP21 (2021) Pollution Incident Response P[ahning, NetRegs.

) GPP 22 (2018) Dealing with Spills, NetRegs.

3.1 Human Beings and Community

The assessment set out in Chapter 4: Population & Human Health has not identified any

likely significant effects from the Project on population or human health. The Project has been
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assessed as having the potential to result in effects of slight positive, long-term impact overall.

Cumulative effects are predicted unlikely.

The main mitigation measure is by design or avoidance. A suitable separation distance from

turbines and other key infrastructure to properties has been embedded in the EIA

Development design. Additional mitigation to protect site personnel and the public will also

be im

comp

plemented in the event of damage to a turbine and subsequent likely turbine or turbine

onent failure.

These are:

Once

Turbines will be procured from a reliable manufacturer and will have undergone
vigorous safety checks during design, construction, commissioning and operation.
Physical and visual wamings such as signs will be erected as appropriate for the
protection of site personnel and the public.

Facility for remote turbine deactivation will be provided.

Access to turbines for site personnel will be restricted in storm events. Where access
by site personnel is required safety precautions may include remotely shutting down
the turbine, yawing to place the rotor on the opposite side of the tower door and parking
vehicles at a distance of at least 100 m from the tower. All personnel will be fitted with
appropriate Personal Protective Equipment. Regular maintenance and inspections will
take place during the 35-year operational phase. The final turbine model chosen will be
in line with International Electrotechnical Commission 61400-1 safety standards.
Maintenance visits will take place as needed with the Supervisory Control and Data
Acquisition (SCADA) control system monitoring turbine performance remotely. If a fault
occeurs, then a message is automatically sent to the operations personnel preventing
emergency situations. Warning signs and security infrastructure will be in place around
the onsite switchgear and control building to provide for public safety.

Access to the turbines will be via the door at the base of the turbines. The turbine
access door will otherwise be securely locked at all times.

Measures are set out in Chapter 15: Transport and Transportation relating to how

delivery of goods and services would be managed during works to minimise impacts.

the above mitigations are taken into account, the residual risk on population and human

health is assessed to be an imperceptible, long-term effect.
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3.2 Ecology /@RRYCOUNTY COUREY:
Ali mitigation measures have been developed in the context of national and international
legislative guidance for the protection and management of flora, habitats of conservation

importance, fauna and aquatic ecological interest.

Guidelines to be adhered to in the delivery of the CEMP and method statements include the

following:

. ‘Guidelines on protection of fisheries during construction works in and adjacent fo
waters’ {Inland Fisheries Ireland, 2016)

. ‘Guidelines for the treatment of Badgers prior fo the construction of National Road
Schemes’ (National Roads Authority, 2005)

. ‘Guidelines for the protection and preservation of trees,; hedgerows and scrub prior to,
during and post construction of National Road Schemes’ {National Roads Authority,

2006a)

. ‘Guidelines for the treatment of bats during the construction of national road schemes’
(National Roads Authority, 2006b}

o ‘Guidelines for the treatment of Otters prior to the Construction of National Road
Schemes’ (National Roads Authority, 2006¢)

. ‘Guidelines for the crossing of watercourses during the construction of national road

schemes’ (National Roads Authority, 2008}

. ‘Guidelines on the Management of Noxious Weeds and Non-Native Invasive Plant
Species on National Roads’ (National Roads Authority, 2010)

° CIRIA {(2001). Control of water pollution from construction sites - Guidance for consuitants
and contractors (C532). Construction Industry Research and Information Association,
London.

. CIRIA (2019). Culvert, screen and outfall manual (C786). Construction Industry Research
and Information Association, London.

. DHPLG (2019). Draft Revised Wind Energy Development Guidelines. Department of
Housing, Planning and Local Government. December 2019

° Enterprise Irefand (unknown), Best Practice Guide (BPGCS005) Oil storage guidelines.

° IFI (2016). Guidelines on Protection of Fisheries during Construction Works in ‘and
adiacent to waters. Inland Fisheries Ireland, Dublin.

® IWEA (2012). Best Practice Guidelines for the lrish Wind Energy Industry. Guidance
prepared by Fehily Timoney & Company for the Irish Wind Energy Association.

. Kilfeather, P.K. (2007). Maintenance and protection of the Inland Fisheries resource

during road construction and improvement works. Southern Regional Fisheries Board.

s
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° Murphy, D.F. (2004). Requirements for the Protection of Fisheries Habitat during
Construction and Development Works at River Sites. Eastern Regional Fisheries Board.

. NRA (2008). Guidelines for the Crossing of Watercourses during the Construction of
National Road Schemes. National Roads Authority.

o SNH (2019). Good Practice during Wind Farm Construction (4th edition). Scottish Natural

Heritage.

The description of mitigation measures is provided in terms of mitigation by avoidance,

reduction and remediation.

3.21 Ecology Mitigation Measures

3.2.1.1 Mitigation for habitat loss
The permanent loss of habitat to facilitate the construction of the project is estimated at 31
ha. This will result from the following:
e Turbines foundations and hardstand areas
»  Foundation for substation
e Foundation for met mast

¢ Wind farm road system

The majority of the affected habitat, approximately 26.43 ha, is conifer plantation. As conifer
plantation is a non-native habitat that is not classed as a key ecological receptor, the

permanent loss of this habitat is rated as Not Significant.

The construction of turbine T1 will result in the permanent loss of 1.67 ha of wet heath and
wet heath/blanket bog mosaic. A small area of wet heath (0.33 ha) will be lost as a result of
the T2 construction. The total loss of wet heath and wet heath/blanket bog mosaic is
approximately 2 ha. The peatland habitat within the site is part of a larger complex of
heath/bog habitats, which is rated as of County Importance. The loss of 2 ha of Annex | listed
habitats, which have good conservation status and functionality, is rated as a Significant
Adverse effect of Permanent duration. Mitigation for loss of heath and bog habitats will be
provided through the restoration and protection of 10.6ha of degraded bog habitats as part

of the Habitat Enhancement Plan.
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value). The significance of the effect is rated as Slight Adverse of Permanent duration.

The construction of turbine T3 will result in the loss of 1.1 ha of cutover

cutover bog at this site is of poor quality (rated as being of Local importanc

3.2.1.2 Mitigation for Disturbance

Areas adjoining the infrastructure will be disturbed by the construction works, including the need

for construction of a drainage system and for the insertion of the elecirical cabling including

along the grid connection route.

. A programme of ongoing monitoring and rehabilitation will be followed during
construction phase, Monitoring and rehabilitation of the following peatland categories
(see EIAR Figure 5.1) will take place: (i) mosaic of wet heath, dry heath and
outcropping rock, (i) mosaic of wet heath and blanket bog, and (i) wet heath
dominated by Molinia caerulea.

. An Ecological Clerk of Works (ECoW) will be on site for the duration of the construction
phase. As required, this person will be assisted by a consultant ecologist with expertise
in peatland habitats. The consultant ecologist will be employed by the client and will
be independent of the Contractor.

o As ground excavations are opened up, the ECoW will walk the work corridor with a
surveyor and within sensitive peatiand areas will mark out (with range poles or
equivalent) the extremities of the required work area. This will identify the limit of the
work area and will prevent unnecessary incursions by the Contractor onto adjoining
intact heath or bog.

3.2.1.3 Re-vegetation of bare surfaces
An ecological objective is to minimise the area of exposed peat surface and to encourage
revegetation. This will be achieved by the removal from suitable areas of the vegetated heath
and bog surface (cut out as sods or ‘turves’) within the work footprint at T1, the storage of

this material, and subsequent reuse around the turbine and hardstand margins.

The surface turves of vegetated bog and heath will be dug out to a depth of 30 cm or more
using a dumper/digger with a bucket. Care will be taken to keep the turve as intact as
possible and the vegetated side upwards (though this is not always possible). The turves
will be loaded to a trailer and transported to a pre-identified storage area. The storage area
will be located in an area of site (not heath or bog) where disturbance during the storage
period will not occur. The turves will be off-loaded from the trailer and placed side by side
and vegetation side upwards. They will be placed in single layers, i.e., not piled on top of

each other. Should storage be for prolonged periods {(months), the turves may need to be
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watered during dry spells. When ready for placement at the finished turbine/hardstand, they
will be lifted with a dumper and bucket and taken to the destination. Here they will be off-
loaded, placed side by side on the disturbed peat surface with vegetation side up. The turves
will be bedded in with the bucket of a dumper so that they form a continuous layer without
gaps between them. This approach will provide almost immediate cover of the bare surfaces.
All of the above will be monitored by the ECoW.

itis noted that where adequate peat depth is not available to dig out turves, as well as in the
cutover bog at T3, the surface peat will be scraped off and stored in piles in a location similar
to that for turves. This material will contain root stock, rhizomes and seed of peatland plant
species and can be spread on disturbed surfaces when works are complete to assist in

revegetation.

3.2.1.4 Mitigation for Small Cudweed (Filago minima)
A pre-construction survey will take place to map its distribution along tracks in the summer

before construction commences.

The areas where the plant occurs will be avoided by the trench excavations and all works in

such areas will be supervised by an ecologist with experience in rare plants.

Should the plant occur across an entire width of track, a licence will by sought from NPWS to
remove the plants from the required work area and to transplant to a suitable location
elsewhere. The application for a licence will be supported by a Management Plan for the
species compiled by an ecologist with experience of rare plants and plant translocation

schemes.

3.2.1.5 Badgers
No signs of badger presence were found on site during the baseline surveys in 2021. As
required under the Wildlife Acts, mitigation is required to ensure that any potential active setts

are not disturbed.

Prior to construction, a survey for the presence of badgers will be carried out at the time of
the tree felling operations. This will be by an ecologist with experience of badger survey and
waorking in association with the treé felling contractor. Survey for badger is preferably carried

out in the period October to March when vegetation cover is low.
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Before any felling commences, the ecologist will survey marginal areas around the plantation
for signs of badger presence. Also, any accessible areas within the plantation, such as
unplanted gaps, will be searched for signs. Once felling commences, the ecologist will

monitor the progression of the works as the required areas are cleared.

Should there be any evidence of a badger sett, all work will cease immediately and a buffer
zone will be established where felling works will be restricted. Mitigation will be implemented
as considered necessary. This would include application to NPWS for permission to close a
sett that could be disturbed by the works. Note that since closure of active setts is prohibited

during the badger breeding season (December to June inclusive), scheduling of the tree

felling process is important to avoid delays T ORVELOPVERT 3
4 :;‘?:‘*“:“ ) b;}’(}/‘
o 5 i
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2008 & NRA 2009b), including the margins of the watercourse to a distance

3.2.1.6 Otter

The main study area was a distance of at least 150 m upstrea

proposed crossing points of watercourses considered suitable to

Otiers were not recorded on site and are not likely to occur due to the small size of the
watercourses within the site.

3.2.1.7 Common frog
Areas where construction works are due to commence during the period February to August
will be checked by the Ecological Clerk of Works for the presence of frog spawn, tadpoles
and adult frogs. If present, these will be removed and transferred under licence from National
Parks and Wildlife Service.

3.2.1.8 Bats
To minimise risk to bat populations, a buffer zone is recommended around any forestry,
treeline, hedgerow, woodland feature, into which no part of the turbine should intrude. Using
the formula quoted below, based on Nature Scot Guidance, the minimum distances of wind

turbines for bat mitigation are calculated for each of the potential turbine models.
formula: Buffer distance = N(50 + b1)? — (hh — fh)*
where bl = blade fength, hh = hub height, fh = feature height (all in meters)

The dimensions of the potential wind turbine models proposed to be used are provided in the

table below. Feature height is 25 m (typical conifer plantation height, the predominant habitat
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type present within the survey area). Dimensions of Blade length and Hub height were

provided and the calculation is as follows:

Buffer distance = V(50 + 77.5)% — (102.5 - 25)

Buffer distance = 101.24 m

An ecologist/Ecological Clerk of Works will supervise areas where vegetation, scrub
and hedgerow removal will occur prior to and during construction.

Where possible construction will take place during daylight hours in order to minimise
light disturbance on bats. Should fixed lighting be required these will consist of LED
luminaires using warm white colours < than 2700 Kelvin. Luminaires will feature peak
wavelengths higher than 550 nm to avoid the component of light most disturbing to
bats. Lighting will be directional and avoid lighting key features suitable for bat activity
such as treelines or woodland edge. Some works along the cable route and the Site
may occur at night (EIAR Chapter 2: Project Description) but the project
ecologist/Ecological Clerk of Works will limit night-time works to sections of the route /
site which avoid sensitive features (e.g., mature treelines).

In the case that after additional bat surveying and roosts need to be relocated, a
National Parks and Wildlife Service wildlife derogation licence will be applied for.
Where bat roosts have been identified prior to construction, construction will be delayed

until the bats have gone or have been removed to avoid disturbance.

3.2.1.9 Kerry Slug

The following measures will minimise the identified potential impacts on the local Kerry Slug

population:

Areas of suitable habitat (wet heath and outcropping rock) that occur outside of the
footprint of the Development will be avoided during the course of construction thereby
minimising the loss and disturbance of Kerry Slug habitat.

Immediately prior to undertaking works in areas of suitable habitat (wet heath / blanket
bog / rock outcrop), the project ecologist will check for the presence of Kerry Shug.
Should slugs be discovered, they will be transferred to suitable habitat in the
surroundings. Similar on-going monitoring of suitable habitat within works areas will
continue throughout the construction phase. Such monitoring will be undertaken during
periods of wet weather when slugs are most active and feeding on the surface and

therefore at greater risk of impacts by movement of machinery.
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3.2.2 Aquatic Ecology Mitigation Measures

. No works will take place within the 65 m buffer zone of watercourses except for the
watercourse crossings, road development and drainage measures as defailed in
Management Plan 2: Water Quality Management Plan and Management Plan 3:
Surface Water Management Plan.

o The site compound and any temporary soil storage areas will be located at a minimum
distance of 65 m from any watercourse. All drainage from these facilities will be directed
through a settlement pond with appropriate capacity and measures to provide spill
containment. Further details can be found in Management Plan 4: Peat and Spoil
Management Plan, Management Plan 3: Surface Water Management Plan and a
Management Plan 2: Water Quality Management Plan.

. All site drainage, as described in the Management Plan 3: Surface Water Management
Plan and shown on associated drawings, will be directed through either sediment traps,
seftlement ponds and / or buffered drainage outfalls to ensure that total suspended solid
levels in all waters discharging to any watercourse will not exceed 25 mg/L (IFI, 2016). Al
construction site run-off will be channelled through a stilling process to allow suspended
solids to settle out and through a spill-containment facility prior to discharge.

. Daily monitoring of all sediment traps and settlement ponds will be undertaken by the
Environmental Manager or Ecological Clerk of Works to ensure satisfactory operation
andfor maintenance requirements. A full specification for the water quality monitoring is

presented in the Management Plan 2: Water Quality Management Plan o DEVELOPMENT g2
e -

s
R
o

. The storage of oils, hydraulic fluids, etc., will be undertaken in acco ance with current

6 JUN 2023 646

best practice for oil storage (Enterprise Ireland, BPGCS005).

. The pouring of concrete, sealing of joints, application of wate
protective systems, curing agents, etc., will be completed in the dry to & '
of the freshwater environment.

o All machinery operating at the Site will be fully maintained and routinely checked to ensure
no leakage of oils or lubricants occurs. All fuelling of machinery will be undertaken at a
discrete “fuel station” {Planning drawing 6226-PL-803) designated for the purpose of safe
fuel storage and fuel transfer to vehicles.

° The construction of the watercourse crossings will be undertaken during the period 1% July
to 30" September as set out in Inland Fisheries Ireland Guidance (2016) to avoid
accidental damage or siltation of spawning beds, unless otherwise specified by Inland
Fisheries Ireland during consultations in advance of works.

. Any extensions to existing drainage culverts on the site roads will be undertaken in dry

conditions and in low flow conditions on drains that do not run dry.

[
EONSULTENE 1HGINFLTRS




Client:
Project Title:
Document Title:

Inchamare Wind DAC Dafe: May 2023
Inchamore Wind Farm Project No: 6226
Construction Environmental Management Plan Document Issue: Final

The pouring of concrete, sealing of joints, application of water-proofing paint or protective
systems, curing agents, etc., will be completed in the dry to avoid pollution of the
freshwater environment (see Chapter 9: Hydrology and Hydrogeology for further
details).

There will be no batching or storage of cement allowed in the vicinity of any watercourse
crossing construction area.

Procedures (as detailed in Chapter 9: Hydrology and Hydrogeology) will be put in
place to ensure the full control of raw or uncured waste concrete to ensure that
watercourses will not be impacted.

Should there be any incidents of pollution to watercourses, immediate steps as specified
in the Emergency Response Plan (Management Plan 1: Emergency Response Plan)
will be undertaken to resolve the cause of the pollution and where feasible, mitigate
against the impact of pollution.

Re-seeding / re-vegetation of all areas of bare ground or the placement of Geo-jute (or
similar) matting will take place prior to the operational phase to prevent siit-laden run-
off. The seed mix will contain only suitable native species of plant.

Silt traps erected during the construction phase within roadside and artificial drainage
will be replaced with stone check dams for the lifetime of the project. These stone check
dams will only be placed within artificial drainage systems such as roadside drains and
not in natural streams or drainage lines.

A full review of construction stage temporary drainage will be undertaken by the
Developer (in conjunction with the Project Hydrologist/ Site Engineer and the Project
Ecologist) following the completion of construction, and drainage removed or

appropriately blocked where this will not interfere with infrastructure.

The use of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) on site will eliminate risk to watercourses

from sedimentation during the construction phase of the Project.

Al surface water management measures will be put in place concurrently during the

development of the road network. The measures entail the following key elements which are

described in detail within the Management Plan 3: Surface Water Management Plan:

Open Constructed drains for development run-off collection and treatment.
Collection Drains for upslope “clean” water collection and dispersion.
Filtration Check Dams to reduce velocities along sections of road which run perpendicular

to contours.

6226 CEMP
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. Settlement Ponds and Buffered Outfalls to control and store development runoff to
encourage settlement prior to discharge at Greenfield runoff rates.

. To reduce the amount of silt laden water to be treated, clean water drains will be created
upstream of the works area to divert water away from construction areas, thereby
lessening the volume of water to be treated onsite.

° De-watering of excavations where required, will be through filtered ‘silt socks' / dewatering
bags or a ‘Siltbuster’ or similar system, prior to discharge. Excavations will be kept to the
absolute minimum for the specific task and undertaken on a ‘just in time' basis to minimise

the extent of silty water generated and requiring treatment prior to discharge.

3.2.3 Ornithology Mitigation Measures
o Measures for Loss of Habitat
The implementation of the Habitat Enhancement Plan (EIAR Appendix 5.5) will enhance
blanket bog habitat for bird species associated with peatland habitats, including red grouse,
merlin and meadow pipit. The regrowth of ling heather in the eroded bianket bog habitat
would be of particular benefit to the local red grouse population.

VELOPM
This Plan, which provides for the enhancement of approximately 10.6 ﬁfﬁg@-’fﬁ%ﬂﬁet bE’éTSEC‘;r,QF
habitat, will mitigate for the loss of breeding bog and heath habitat for ‘lﬁi%
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3.2.3.1 Measures to Prevent Disturbance to Breeding Hen Harriers
D=

A section of the grid connection route is located along the route of an exis
which runs north of the Mullaghanish to Musheramore Mountain SPA, with the closest
distance between the cabie route corridor and the SPA being 170 m. To preventany potential
disturbance to nesting and/or foraging Hen Harriers, works will be restricted along the
identified section to the period outside of the breeding season (March-August). This will
ensure that the breeding Hen Harrier population within the SPA is not disturbed by the
proposed wind farm project.

3.2.3.2 Measures to Minimise Potential Disturbance to Sensitive Bird Species
The present assessment has identified the potential for disturbance effects on two breeding
species of conservation interest as a result of the construction works (see Section 7.4.2.2).
These species are merlin and red grouse. Best available evidence has been reviewed and
it is suggested that these species could be disturbed by works, including tree felling, at the
following distances:

25 fetdn
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Merlin 500 m
Red grouse 500 m

As noted in Section 7.4.2.2 of EIAR Chapter 7: Ornithology, pre-construction breeding

surveys for selected species are required on the basis of the following:

1. Suitable breeding habitat exists within and around the Site for sparrowhawk, kestrel
and snipe, which were recorded as non-breeding during the baseline surveys but which

could breed within the study area in future years;

Should the pre-construction surveys indicate a requirement for protection from construction-
refated disturbance, including tree-felling, of any relevant species, appropriate measures will
be taken in fine with all relevant legislation and best practice guidance available at the time

to ensure that breeding attempts are not disturbed by construction related works.

Best availabie evidence has been reviewed (Currie & Elliot 1997, NatureScot 2022, Pearce-
Higgins et al. 2012, Scottish Natural Heritage 2016) and it is suggested that the following

species could be disturbed by construction works, including tree felling, at the following

distances:
Sparrowhawk 200 m
Kestrel 200 m
Snipe 400 m
Woodcock 200m

Should any of these species be recorded bréeding within the given distances of the works
area through surveys before and/or during construction, a bufier zone (using above
distances) shall be established around the expected location of the nest (location identified
as far as is possible without causing disturbance to the bird) and all works will be restricted
within the zone until it can be demonstrated by an ornithologist that the species has
completed the breeding cycle in the identified area. Any restricted area that is required to be
set up will be marked clearly using hazard tape fencing and all site staff will be-alerted through

{oolbox talks.

The above mitigation, if needed, will apply from March to August (inclusive) and will
ensure that the works will not have an adverse effect on the identified species of
conservation importance recorded during the baseline surveys or in pre-construction

surveys.
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Measures to Minimise Potential Disturbance to Nesting Passerine Species

A range of passerine bird species breed within the Site, including the Red-listed meadow pipit
and the Amber-listed goldcrest and willow warbler. in compliance with Section 22 of the
Wildiife Acts 1976 to 2021, all vegetation required to be cleared to facilitate the works will be
done outside of the restricted period from 1% March to 30" August.

Should it be necessary to remove vegetation during the breeding season, for instance
where bramble and ephemeral plant species have become established on ground
cleared earlier, this will be surveyed by an ornithologist up to 10 days before any
clearance. Should an active nest be located, the area will be restricted from works
by a distance where it is considered that the works would not cause disturbance or
abandonment of the nest. Such distances, which will vary according to species and
local topography, will be determined by the omithologist. The restriction will be

maintained until it is established that any young birds present have fledged.

3.3 Soils and Geology
The following section details the environmental control measures which must be incorporated

into the Contractors’ Construction Method Statement (CMS) to ensure the protection of soils
and geology. In addition, a Peat and Spoil Management Plan and a Waste Management Plan
(see Management Plans 4 and 5 respectively) have been prepared which provide further
details of control measures and monitoring procedures.

DEVELOPMENT
o STy

o

6 JUN- 2023 55&5
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3.3.1 Subsoil and Bedrock Removal — Mitigation Measures

Mitigation by Avoidance JERRY couNTY counes~
The proposed turbines and infrastructure layout was dictated to a large degree the constraints
of the existing infrastructure, peat depth and the topography. Turbines were located in areas
where the existing infrastructure is utilised, peat is shallow, and the topography is favourable.
The aim of this process was to minimise the volumes of subsoils to be removed either directly

by excavation (turbine foundations) or as a function of cut and fill requirements (hardstands).
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Mitigation by Good Practices

Excavation of peat in areas where there is over 1.0 m in peat depth (T1, T3 and T5) will
follow appropriate engineering controls (Section 9.5.2.3, Chapter 9: Hydrology and
Hydrogeology). This will include the drainage of the peat along the proposed Site
Access Roads in advance of excavation activity, one month in advance where possible.
Such drains will be positioned at an oblique angle to slope contours to ensure ground
stability. Drains will not be positioned parallel to slope contours. This drainage will be
attenuated prior to outfall (Chapter 9: Hydrology and Hydrogeology). It is noted that
peat depth at the Site is generally shallow, and management of saturated peat wilt be
required at relatively few locations of ‘Moderately Deep’ peat, mainly at the proposed
location of T1.

In those parts of the Site where excavation may intercept areas of peat that are >1.0 m
depth (proposed locations T1, T3 and T5), a geotechnical engineer/engineering
geologist will be onsite to supervise and manage the excavation works and confirm the
necessity for supporting newly excavated peat exposures or redirect initial construction
phase drainage to maintain ground stability.

For side walls in all excavations a safe angle of repose will be established. For peat,
the safe angle of repose is approximately 15°, which equates to a.c. 10 m horizontal
distance if excavating to 2.5 m depth. Due to the quality of the peat, the potential
residual water content after pre-excavation drainage works or increased water content
following heavy rainfall, there is a risk of localised stability issues in areas of deeper
peat. Therefore, to address this risk for excavation in areas of deeper peat particularly
at the proposed location of T1, excavation supports will be used, for example temporary
sheet piling, or similar. This will minimise the effect of excavation to the minimum
required.

Areas of the site where deeper (>2.0 m} peat was detected during site surveys are
presented in geo-constraint maps (Appendix 8.1), proposed hardstand areas have
avoided these areas of deep peat. Similarly, the safe angle of reépose for subsoils at the
Site (GRAVELS), or any other material (e.g., crushed rock) arising at the site must also

be considered and similar consideration and mitigation applied respectively.

Mitigation by Reuse

Subsocil and bedrock which are excavated as part of the construction phase will be
reused onsite in accordance with Management Plan 4: Peat and Spoil Management
Plan. Bedrock material arising at the Site will be reused as fill material, but Site Access
Roads and Turbine Hardstands will be surfaced with a harder rock imported to the Site.

6226 CEMP
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3.3.2

The imported rock will be locally sourced and similar in nature to the local area in terms
of geo-chemistry.

° Excess rock and soil will be reused as backfill in areas previously excavated e.g.,
Turbine Foundations, or as backfill in cut and fill operations.

. Geotechnical testing on the rock arising from excavation/construction activities will be
carried out prior to its reuse onsite. It will only be reused for those purposes if it
conforms to relevant standards (listed below). This is further detaiied in Management
Plan 4: Peat and Spoil Management Plan.

o Good Practice during Wind Farm Construction (SNH, 2015)

o Notes for Guidance on the Specification for Road Works Series NG 600 —
Earthworks (Tll, 2013)

o Constructed tracks in the Scottish Uplands (SNH, 2015)

. Catotelm peat will be used to backfill, for example; around Turbine Foundation pads
once established. Acrotelm peat will be used as a dressing on top of deposited catotelm
peat to promote and re-establish flora and ensure the acrotelm layer becomes relatively
cohesive in terms of localised peat stability (vegetated).

o Similarly, all soil and subsoil types identified during site investigations and during actual
construction will be treated as separate materials. The arisings will be separated
accordingly. This includes, for example; Acrotelm peat, catotelm peat, clays, subsoils
(GRAVEL / TILL), weathered rock.

areas in terms of applying precautionary measures and good pra |ce$ JU
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Mitigation by Remediation SRRy counTy coutel:
The mitigation measures listed above, namely backfiling with peat in layers, are in effect
remediation measures. These measures remediate the impacts of excavation and limits the

impacts to the extent of the actual proposed infrastructure.

Storage and Stockpiles — Mitigation Measures

Mitigation by Avoidance and Good Practice

® No permanent stockpiles will remain on the Site. All excavated materials from the Site
or introduced materials for construction will be used on site.

. No temporary stockpiles will be positioned or placed on areas of peat which have not
been assessed or are indicated as being geo-hazards, particularly in areas of
unacceptable factor of safety / stability (Appendix 8.1).
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. All temporary stockpiles will be positioned on established and existing hardstand areas
or in designated areas which are appropriate for short term storage.

s No temporary stockpile placed on established hardstands or within the Development
footprint in areas of peat will be in excess of 1 m in height. This is due to potential
localised stability and subsidence issues in relation to the peat under and in vicinity of

the hardstand and stockpile.

Mitigation by Reduction

The volume of material to be managed including temporary stockpiling is directly proportional
to the volumes of material required to be excavated (35,504 m?), however if managed
appropriately the volume of material to be managed at any particular time can be dramatically

reduced.

The Peat and Spoil Management Plan (Management Plan 4) identifies volumes and types
of materials arising, temporary stockpiling locations, routes for reuse and remediation,
requirements in terms of logistics and considerations in terms of timing and planning of

movements of material.

3.3.3 Vehicular Movements — Mitigation Measures

Mitigation by Avoidance and Good Practice

. Vehicular movements will be restricted to the footprint of the Development and
advancing ahead of any constructed hardstand will be minimised in so far as practical.

. Anciliary machinery will be kept on established Turbine Hardstands, and no vehicles
will be permitted outside of the footprint of the Development. Land that is not proposed
for the Development will be avoided.

. For the Grid Connection Route, before starting construction, the area around the edge
of each joint bay which will be used by heavy vehicles will be surfaced with a terram
cover (if required) and stone aggregate to minimise ground damage.

- A Geotechnical Clerk of Works will be employed during the construction phase in order
to continuously monitor areas of peat. Ongoing physical stability checks and
calculations will be undertaken in order to verify that safety standards are being met.
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3.3.4 Ground Stability — Mitigation Measures

Mitigation by Avoidance and Good Practice

° Construction activities, including vehicular movements, will be limited to the footprint of
the Development.

. Vehicular movements or construction activities outside of the footprint of the
Development will be assessed by a competent geotechnical engineer before
progressing.

. Temporary stockpiles will be limited to 1 m height and removed for reuse/remediation
purposes or disposed offsite as soon as-possible. It is envisaged that all material will
be reused on site, unless obviously contaminated (for example, due to accidental
hydrocarbon/fuel spill).

° All Site excavations and construction will be supervised by a geotechnical
engineer/engineering geologist.

s The Contractor's * methodology statement and risk assessment will be in line with the

Construction Environmental Management Plan and will be reviewed an app
~ OEVELOPMENT
_a?'gi’isgie prior to GREY

a suitably qualified geotechnical engineer/fengineering gex
operations. (* Contractor here refers o the chosen or contr. éted construction company

at the commencement stage of the Development). 6 JU N ¢G23 Lﬁ
Particular attention and pre-construction assessment (devaloper / sub-contractorcﬁ\i‘te
(3 Wi

specific risk assessment and method statement (RAMS) and on-$
and mitigation planning will be given to any new infrastructure, for example:

a. All works in close proximity to sensitive receptors, that is; any works with receptor
buffer zones, for example, works associated with watercourse crossings. With very
little distance between warks and receptor, minor or localised stability issues can lead
to significant consequences.

This includes, but is not limited to:
o Watercourse Crossings WC1, WC2 and WC3, and associated access tracks
works within Surface Water buffers.

b. Hardstands and access tracks in close proximity to relatively deep peat and/or steep
inclines, that is; works associated with or proximal to geo-hazards.

This includes, but is not limited to:
o Areas adjacent fo T1, in particular deep peat to the north / northwest, and
relatively steep inclines to the south.

o TR )
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o Areas adjacent to T3, in particular deep peat to the north / northeast, and
relatively steep inclines and elevated landslide susceptibility (GSI) to the
south / southeast / east.

o Areas adjacent to T4, in particular reiatively steep inclines and elevated
landslide susceptibility (GS!) to the south / southeast / east.

o Areas adjacent to access tracks leading to T1/T2/T3, in particular deep peat
to the north, and steep inclines and elevated landslide susceptibility (GSI) to
south of T1 to T3 access track.

c. Where the previous two points occur in combination, that is; geohazards which
are above or upgradient of particularly sensitive areas of the site as discussed in
the attached Sl report (Appendix 8.1), and as presented in the constraints maps
(Appendices H (a — c) as well as Figure 8.7, are the most important locations to

advance with due care and consideration.

Groundwater level (pore water pressure) will be kept low at alf times (excavation dewatering)

to avoid ground stability risks (subsidence) associated with peat and careful attention will be

given

to the existing drainage and how structures might affect it (Appendix 9.6 — Tile 11).

Draining water from the construction area will be done through advanced dewatering

techniques. In particular, ponding of water will not be aliowed to occur in recent excavations,

particularly in any areas encountered where peat is >1 m (proposed locations of T1 and T3).

All deliberate or incidental sumps will be drained to carry water away from the sump following

rainfa
water

ll. Otherwise, this water will increase hydraulic heads locally and in turn increase pore
pressure which can potentially lead to instability.

All peat excavated will be immediately removed from sloping areas. Peat will be
carefully managed particularly when in temporary storage. Temporary storage areas
will be isolated from the receiving environment by means of temporary infrastructure
such as boundary berms comprised of subsoils sourced at the Site, or similar material.
Temporary measures such as dewatering and pumping through silt bags will be
employed to assist this process. Draining of stockpiled peat in a controlied manner is
recommended. Similar measures will be applied to the management of subsoil arisings
at the Site,

Peat is required for reinstatement, therefore acrotelm peat (top living layer, c. 0.5 m)
will be stripped off the surface of the bog and placed carefully at the margins of the
Development along the Site Access Roads and hardstand margins that are
characterised by near-horizontal slopes (<6°).

Relatively high impact construction activities (e.g., excavations, movement of soils /

subsoils / rock) will be limited to the spring to autumn period as this period is considered
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to be the optimal seasonal period in terms of likely rainfall conditions, low soil moisture
deficit (SMD), and relatively stable pore water pressure conditions (not withstanding
excessive human interference of pore waters). Construction activities will not occur
during periods of sustained significant rainfall events, or directly after such events
(allowing time for work areas to drain excessive surface water loading and discharge
rates reduce).

° A minimum 24-hour advance meteorological forecasting (Met Eireann download) linked
to a trigger-response system wili be implemented. When a pre-determined rainfall
trigger level is exceeded (e.g., one in a 100-year storm event or very heavy rainfall at
>25 mm/hr), planned responses will be undertaken. These responses will include
cessation of construction until the storm event including storm runoff has passed over.
Following heavy rainfall events, and before construction works recommence, the Site
will be inspected and corrective measures implemented to ensure safe working
conditions, for example dewatering of standing water in open excavations, etc.

. Any impact to the hydrological and/or hydrogeological regime will be avoided as far as
practical in relation to identified Geo-Hazards (Appendix 8.1) where the presence of
steep inclines, deep till deposits and iron pan give rise to elevated ground stability,

particularly where the potential for impacts to hydrogeology in those area / subsoils
exists.

Mitigation by Reduction

The temporary storage of construction materials, equipment, and earth materials will be kept
to an absolute minimum during the construction phase of the Development.

Example: The excavation material for the construction of Site Access Roads will not progress

ahead of actual track construction (as discussed under mitigation addressing vehicular

movements), therefore minimising the volume of arisings to be

L |
et

permanent deposit of material e.g., backfill adjacent to construc =e‘f_dus‘"ii"ifras’tructure-, will be

2

an

identified and suitable material deposited as it becomes availabl

seen in the Peat and Spoil Management Plan (Management

RO
KERRY couNTY 692
Mitigation by Remediation
Remediation of soils will include the deposit of suitable material where required. This will
include replacement of soils / subsoils in line with baseline conditions. Remediated areas will

be managed and monitored in terms of reestablishment of vegetated cover.

In the unlikely event that a peat or slope stability issue does arise on the Site during the

construction or operational phases of the Development, given the variable potential extent of
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associated impacts, remediation will be assessed, prescribed and monitored by a suitably

qualified geotechnical engineer/engineering geologist on a case-by-case basis.

Emergency Response

Emergency responses to potential stability incidents have been assessed (EIAR Chapter 16:

Major Accidents and Natural Disasters) and established to form part of Management Plan

1: Emergency Response Plan before construction works initiate.

In the event that soil stability issues arise during construction activities, all ongoing
construction aclivities at the particular area of the Site will cease immediately, the
assigned geotechnical supervisor will inspect and characterise the issue at hand,
corrective measures will be prescribed.

Provision for a peat stability monitoring programme to identify early signs of potential
bog slides (pre-failure indicators, for example cracks forming). This will be done in line
with Scottish Government's ‘Peat Landslide Hazard and Risk Assessments: Best
Practice Guide for Proposed Electricity Developments 2017).

In the unlikely event that soil and slope stability issues arise during construction
activities, all ongoing activities in the vicinity will cease immediately, all operators will
evacuate the area by foot, if safe to do so, until the area is assessed by competent
person/s, the assigned geotechnical supervisor will inspect and characterise the issue
at hand, corrective measures will be prescribed. The area impacted will be
characterised fully and risk assessments completed prior to any further works
commencing at or near the location. This assessment will be phased including initial
rapid response Phase 1 Assessment which will include at a minimum the prescription
of exclusion zones and preliminary mitigation steps to be taken, for example, the
management of runoff in or from the affected area.

Considering the highly dynamic nature of peat or soil stability issues at any particular
site, it is important to establish an equally dynamic vet robust framework to follow in the
event of an incident. Establishment of an emergency framework will follow relevant
guidance to initially qualify any incident (by on site competent geotechnical engineer)
and risk assess the area, and to then apply initial measures and design a complete
emergency / contingency plan in line with an established structured emergency
response. Emergency response will prioritise isolating and containing any materials
which is being or will be intercepted by the established drainage network or receiving
surface water network. Emergency materials and equipment requirements will be
identified, incorporated in the CEMP, and will be managed on site with a view to be

being easily accessible and readily available.
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. On site training and toolbox talks will ensure any response fo any potential incident is
mobilised quickly and efficiently.
o Detailed emergency response protocols are specified in the Management Plan 1:

Emergency Response Plan.
3.3.5 Soil Contamination — Mitigation Measures

Mitigation by Avoidance
Protecting soils from spills will in turn mitigate against the potential for contaminates reaching
watercourses, mitigation measures for contaminants are presented in detail in EIAR Chapter

9: Hydrology and Hydrogeology.

Mitigation by Reduction

. Excess packaging and other materiais will be discarded appropriately at the Temporary
Construction Compound before advancing to the destined construction area.

e Any vehicles coming onto the Site will be required to be inspected and cleaned before
leaving the Temporary Construction Compound and before advancing to the destined
construction area.

. Precast concrete will be used wherever possible i.e., formed offsite. Where the use of
precast concrete is not possible the following mitigation measures outlined in Section

3.4 Hydrology and Drainage will apply.

Mitigation by Remediation
Any and all contaminants will be removed from the Site in an appropriate manner when ever
produced or observed; and transported and disposed of in accordance

)
PR
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immediately as they arise. Hydrocarbon spill kits will be prepared and kept in vehicles

as per Management Plan 5: Waste Management Plan.

Emergency Response

Hydrocarbon spill or leak — Hydrocarbon contamination incl

associated with the construction phase of the Development. Spill kits will also be established
at proposed consfruction areas, for exampile, a spill kit will be established and mobilised as
part of the turbine erection materials and equipment. Suitable receptacles for hydrocarbon
contaminated materials will also be at hand.

& FANRNIRE Lt
CONSULTING [NGINICRS




Client:

Inchamore Wind DAC Date: May 2023

Project Title: inchamore Wind Farm Project No. 6226
Document Title:  Construction Environmental Management Plan Document Issue: Final

3.4

3.4.1

Significant hydrocarbon spill or feak - In the event of a significant or catastrophic hydrocarbon
spillage, emergency responses will be escalated accordingly. Escalation can include
measures such as the installation of temporary sumps, drains or dykes to conirol the flow or

migration of hydrocarbons, excavation and disposal of contaminated material.

Cementitious material — Cement / concrete contamination incidents will be dealt with
immediately as they arise. Spill kits will also be established at proposed construction areas,
for example, a spill kit will be established and mobilised as part of the turbine erection

materials and equipment. Suitable receptacles for cementitious materials will also be at hand.

Emergency contact numbers for the Local Authority Environmental Section, Inland Fisheries
Ireland, the Environmental Protection Agency and the National Parks and Wildlife Service
will be displayed in a prominent position within the vicinity of works. Additionally, emergency
responses, including methodologies, are specified in the Management Plan 1: Emergency

Response Plan.

In the event of a significant contamination or pollution incident e.g., discharge or accidental
release of hydrocarbons / fuel to surface water systems, contamination occurrences will be
addressed immediately, this includes the cessation of works in the area of the spillage until
the issue is resolved. The relevant authorities noted above and stakeholders will also be

promptly informed.

A full Schedule of Mitigation Measures relating to Peat Management, Soils and Land Use can

be seen in Appendix 17.1.

Hydrology and Drainage

The following section details environmental control measures which will be implemented on
site in relation to hydrology and drainage and provide the framework within which the targeted
Construction Method Statement must be prepared. In addition, a Surface Water
Management Plan and a Water Quality Management Plan have been prepared (see
Management Plans 2 and 3 respectively) which provide further details of control measures

and monitoring procedures.

Surface Water Quality Monitoring
The Caontractors are solely responsible for pollution prevention for the duration of the contract
and until such time as permanent measures, such as permanent drainage and silt mitigation

controls, are deemed to be adequate and appropriately constructed.
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In order to verify the efficacy of poliution prevention and mitigation works during construction,
Water Quality Monitoring is required to be undertaken by a suitably qualified Environmental
Consultant(s) (qualified to minimum of degree level with a minimum of § years’ relevant
experience), prior to, during and post completion of construction works. This will include all
watercourses within the catchment of the construction area. The m%i’fgqriﬁ“g&‘\%ﬂ;Eé%%%%é&*%

V4 >.’~1.-‘
4in Management Plan 2

6 JUN 26823 646

visual, hydrochemistry and grab sample monitoring and is detailed

Water Quality Management Plan.

. . K N
3.4.2 Site Drainage ERRY counTy COUNS

Details of the Site drainage can be found in Management Plan 3: Surface Water

Management Plan. The design criteria for the Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) design

are as follows:

° To select and install drainage.

. To minimise alterations to the ambient site hydrology and hydrogeology.

. To provide settlement and treatment controls as close to the Site footprint as possible
and to replicate the existing hydrological environment of the Site.

° To minimise sediment loads resulting from the Development run-off during the
construction phase.

. To preserve Greenfield runoff rates and volumes.

. To provide settiement ponds to encourage sedimentation and storm water runoff
settlement.

] To reduce stormwater runoff velocities throughout the Site to prevent scouring and
encourage settlement of sediment locally.

. To manage the problems of erosion and allow for the effective revegetation of bare
surfaces.

° To control water within the Site and allow for the discharge of runoff from the Site within

the limits prescribed in the Salmonid Regulations.

3.4.2.1 Mitigation
As part of mitigation by avoidance during the design phase of the Development, surface
water, and drainage buffer zones were established where applicable.
v 65 m Surface Water Buffer Zone - Mapped surface water features i.e., mapped
streams, rivers, lakes. Source for mapped surface water features; EPA.
. 15 m Drainage Buffer Zone - Non-mapped drainage features i.e., non-mapped streams,

natural and artificial drainage features. Source for non-mapped surface water features;

3 R Lt
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desk study and aerial photography assessment, Lidar topographic data and field
observations. Note: Significant drainage features will be identified and mapped in so
far as practical. Some drainage features will likely not be recorded due to issues relating
to access and complexity e.g., within afforested areas, and extensive turbary areas.
Such drainage features, while not mapped or prescribed buffer zones, will be treated
with the same consideration as mapped drainage during the design and construction
phase of the Development i.e., mitigating for the potential for drainage connection to

receiving surface water network.

Groundwater buffer zones are dependent on the characteristics of the receptor e.g., private
well, or public supply source protection zone, and the characteristics of the underlying
geology and associated aquifer e.g., poor unproductive aquifer, or regionally important
karstified aquifer. Recommended groundwater buffer zones range from e.g., 15 m (exclusion
zone Kkarst swallow holes} to entire catchments (source protection in regionally important
karstified aquifer) depending on site specific characteristics. For the purpose of this
assessment the following conservative approach has been applied:

° 100 m Groundwater Buffer Zone — Groundwater abstraction points in relation to
proposed access tracks and cable trenches i.e., shallow excavation. Source for
mapped abstraction points: GSI. Not applicable, none within 100 m of the Site.
Applicable to the grid connection and turbine delivery routes.

. 250 m Groundwater Buffer Zone — Groundwater abstraction points in relation to
proposed borrow pits and foundations. Source for mapped abstraction points; GSI. Not
applicable, none within 250 m of the Site.

. There are no source protection areas or karst features in the vicinity of the proposed

development.

Some of the Development infrastructure footprint will fall within buffer zones due to the unique
and limiting circumstances associated with the Site and the Development, including;
constraints related to other environmental disciplines including; ecology, ornithology, etc.;
restricted due to the proposed infrastructure itself whereby the proposed turbines reguire a
minimum distance from each other to ensure the potential for wind turbulence impacting on

downwind locations is minimised.
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3.4.3 Excavation Works

o The Peat and Spoil Management Plan (Management Plan 4) incorporates provision
F-Baiance- (Fouse, of
excavation arisings) during the proposed constructi n“f“g\?ase, thus minj 'si%g th
potential for or the length of time excavated materigls a@ 3@%&6@%&3 v’gnr}la

entrainment by surface water runofi.

on materials management with a view to establishing

rable fo
.

° Only temporary stockpiling of spoil will occur during the O\).“Q\

. 24-hour advance meteorological forecasting (downloadable from Met Eireann) linked
to a trigger-response system will be implemented. When a pre-determined rainfall
irigger levels is exceeded (e.g., sustained rainfall (any foreseen rainfall event longer
than 4-hour duration) and/or any yellow or greater rainfall warning (>25 mm/hour)
issued by Met Eireann), planned responses will be undertaken. These responses will
include cessation of construction until the storm event including storm runoff has
passed over, assessment of construction areas and infrastructure by Ecological Clerk
of Works, and confirmation no additional escalation of response Is required. All
construction works will cease during storm evenis such as yellow waming (Met
Eireann) rainfall events. Following heavy rainfall events, and before construction works
recommence, the Site will be inspected and corrective measures implemented to
ensure safe working conditions, for example, dewatering of standing water in open
excavations, repair works to drainage features if necessary.

. Exposed soils/peat (exposed temporary stockpiles) will be covered with plastic sheeting
during all relatively heavy rainfall evenis and during periods where works have
temporarily ceased before completion at a particular area (e.g., weekends, overnight,
etc).

. All drainage infrastructure (as per drainage design, Sections 4 and 5 of Management
Plan 3, Surface Water Management Plan) required for the management of surface
water runoff or draining peat ahead of excavation works will be established before
excavation works commence.

Excavation Dewatering Mitigation Measures

. Management of excavations, that is: areas of soil / subsoils to be excavated will be
drained ahead of excavation works whenever possible, thus reducing the volumes of
water encountered during excavation works.

. Engineered drainage and attenuation features will be established ahead of excavation
works.
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Earthworks will be limited to meteorologically dry periods and will not occur during
sustained or intense rainfall events.

Dewatering flow rate or pumping rate will be controlled by an inline gate valve or similar
infrastructure. This will facilitate reduction of loading on the receiving drainage and
attenuation network, thus enhancing the attenuation and settlement of suspended
solids.

All pumped water will be discharged to constructed drainage and in line treatment train
or to a vegetated surface through a siit bag outside of surface water buffer zones
(Management Plan 3: Surface Water Management Plan) or it will be directed or
pumped to a settlement tank before being discharged to the receiving drainage network
OR pumped to an area of the site where the installation of attenuation features is
suitable.

No extracted or pumped water will be discharge directly to the drainage or surface water
network associated with the Site (This is in accordance with The irish Water Pollution
Acts 1977 & 1990 as amended).

3.4.3.1 Construction Water Management, Dewatering, Treatment & Discharge of Trade
Effluent

Contaminated water arising from construction works, namely, excavations, driling and

temporary stockpiling, will be contained and treated prior to release or discharge. The

schematic presented here is a conceptual model of measures implemented to manage

arisings and runoff.

A.

Arisings. Arisings from the launch / reception pit, or any other significant excavation

(e.g., cable joint bays), will be directed the treatment train.

Temporary Bund. Arising contro! area i.e., a temporary bund. Gross solids will be
temporarily deposited here. Water arsing with the material will be allowed to drain to

sump.
Sump / Pump. Sump will discharge by gravity / pumped to stilling pond.

Stilling Ponds. This can be constructed using soils for bunding in combination with an

impermeable liner.

6226 CEMP
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E. Outfall. The outfali from the stilling pond will be buffered (coarse aggregate) to dissipate
energy and diffuse discharging water.

F.  Silt Screen. A silt screen will be in place down gradient of the Stilling Pond outfall. This

is a precautionary measure {o mitigate peak loads or surcharges in the system.

G.  Monitoring Location/s. Discharge quality will be monitored in reat time using telemetry

systems.

H.  Monitoring of discharge quality will be carried out at the outfall of the stilling pond i.e.,
before being actually discharged to surface vegetation or surface water (licenced).

quality reference limits water will be diverted (pumped) from the stilling pond to 2
settlement / treatment tank. Stilling Pond By-Pass. Similar to Discharge By-Pas Z if :2 E
conditions dictate water can be diverted directly to Setilement / Treatment Tank. cc:”,‘ :

J Settlement / Treatment Tank. A settlement tank will in line and ready to use if requ g a :
i.e., water quality at stilling pond outfall fails to meet quality reference limits. The takk ¢

_ N
will be equipped with treatment systems which will be activated as the need arises, for-.

example very fine particles which are very slow to settle can be treated with a flocculant

agent to promote settlement of particles.

K. GAC Vessells. As a precautionary measure, GAC {Granulated Activated Carbon)
vesselfs will be in line and ready to use if required. GAC vessels are used to filter out
low concentrations of hydrocarbons. Significant hydrocarbon contamination is only
envisaged under accidental circumstances. if a hydrocarbon spill does occur, normal
operations will pause and the treatment train will be utilised to remediate captured

contaminated runoff.

L.  GAC Vessel By-Pass. If the quality of the water is acceptable in terms of hydrocarbon
contamination.

M. Treated water will be discharge by gravity / pump to the stilling pond for additional

clarification, monitoring and buffered discharge to vegetated area.
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N.  Silt Bag. A silt bag can be used as alternative to stilling ponds. However, silt bags must
only be used as primary method in lower risk areas i.e., outside of buffer zones, etc.
Stilling ponds will be the primary method (D, N) is circumstances where risk is elevated,
however a gate vale and silt bag can be included in the treatment frain and used as an
emergency discharge route in the event that the stilling pond needs remediation or

maintenance.

In all instances, stilling ponds (D), Silt Bags (N} and outfalls (E) will be situated outside of
surface water buffer zones. At many locations, particularly at HDD locations works will be
within buffer zones. In these instances, waters can be pumped to the treatment train which
can be positioned upgradient along the road (GCR) where discharge to vegetated areas /

roadside drains can be managed.

Discharge of non-contaminated storm runoff to vegetated land within a site red line boundary
is not a licenced activity however, particularly in relation to the grid connection this
methodology is possible only under relatively low flow conditions (e.g., <2 litres per second
{L/s) typical of runoff over a relatively small site area. Due to the constricted nature of the grid
connection works within public roads, in the event that the expected incoming flow rate or
dewatering rate is relatively high (=2 L/s, for example, HDD locations, culvert crossing
locations) the water will be removed by suction tanker and brought to a licenced wastewater

treatment plant.

The quality of the water being discharged from sili ponds o buffered outfalls will be
monitored. If discharge water quality is poor (e.g., >25 mg/L) additional measures will be
implemented, for example, pausing works as required and treating construction water by
dosing with coagulant to enhance the settlement of finer solids — this can be done in a
controlled manner by means of a suitably equipped proprietary settlement tank (e.g.,
siltbuster). Collected and treated construction water will be discharged by gravity / pump tc a
vegetated area of ground within the Site. Silt fences will be established at the discharge area
to ensure potential residual suspended solids are attenuated and the potential for erosion is
reduced. The discharge area will be outside of 65 m surface water buffer areas (similar to
dewatering of excavations. Daily sampling is recommended given the short duration and

temporary nature of the works.
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Discharging of construction water (irade effluent} directly to surface waters or groundwater is

a licenced activity. (This is in accordance with Local Government (Water Pollution) Act, 1977
as amended).

3.4.3.2 Release and Transport of Suspended Solids Proposed Mitigation Measures
» Collector drains and/or soil berms will be established to direct/divert surface water
runoff from development areas, including temporary stockpiles, and direct same into
established stilling ponds, buffered discharge points or other surface water runoff
control infrastructure as appropriate. This is particularly important in relation to plan
effectively for surface water management associated with proposed infrastructure
within the 65 m surface water buffer zones. The drainage system will be permanent.

o Siit fences will be established along the perimeter of source areas e.g., stockpiles,

within the drainage network, and in existing natural drains and degraded peat areas T

which are likely to receive surface water runoff. This will reduce the potential for surfa y O

water runoff loaded with suspended solids to rapidly infiltrate towards and ,_6‘% g ":%

intercepted by drainage or significant surface water features. Multiple silt fences wi gbe g} ?).

used in drains discharging to the surface water network. %\i i
o Silt fences will be temporary features but will remain in place for a period following Pt %

compietion of the Construction Phase. :"-35 fé?

o
(X b
C

Waters arising as a product of excavation activities will be managed as follows:

Waters arising from dewatering practices during excavation works are highly likely to
be significantly loaded with suspended solids. As such, constructed stilling ponds or
buffered outfalls may be insufficient in ¢ontrolling the release of suspended solids to
the surface water network, or have the potential fo clog due to significant volumes of
settled or attenuated solids. Therefore, any water pumped from excavations, or any
waters clearly heavily laden with suspended solids will be contained, managed and
pumped through the preestablished Active Management treatment train {EIAR Figure

9.6 — Tile no. 8,9 and 11). This will include continuous active monitoring of water quality
by turbidity measurement on an hourly basis.

Waters (likely loaded with suspended solids} intercepted by the established drainage network
will be-managed as follows:

In line Stilling Ponds will buffer the run-off discharging from the drainage system during
construction, by retaining water, thus reducing the hydraulic loading to watercourses.
Stilling ponds are designed to reduce flow velocity to 0.3 m/s at which velocity, silt
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particle settlement occurs. Stilling ponds will be permanent (life of development at

minimum). The locations of stilling pond have been chosen as a part of the drainage

design, refer to Series 100 Site Layout Plans 6226-PL-100-108 planning drawings.

Flow control devices such as weirs and baffles will facilitate achieving better

attenuation, particularly when considering fluctuating runoff rates (EIAR Appendix 9.6

— Tiles 11).

In line Check Dams will be constructed across drains and on slopes (EIAR Appendix

9.6 - Tiles 3 — 6, Section 5.6 of Management Plan 3, Surface Water Management

Plan). Check dams will reduce the velocity of run-off i turn facilitating the settlement

of solids upstream of the dam. Check dams will also reduce the potential for erosion of

drains. Reck filter bunds may be used for check dams however, wood or straw/hay
bales {(EIAR Appendix 9.6 — Tile 13) can also be used if properly anchored, that is;
supported with rock or fitted timber to reduce potential for material to be swept away by
incoming water. Multiple check dams will be installed, particularly in areas immediately
downgradient of construction areas. Check dams will only be constructed in drainage
infrastructure and not in significant surface water features i.e., streams or rivers. Check
dams (comprised of rock) established will be permanent. The following will be

implemented in the design of check dams and their deployment (CIRA, 2004):

- Permanent rock filter bunds {coarse aggregate) will be used for check dams
however, temporary wood or straw/hay bales can also be used if properly
anchored and if the need arises. Permanent rock filter bunds are preferred as this
will ensure that rapid surface water runoff is mitigated against for the life of the
Development.

- Permanent rock filter bunds (coarse aggregate) will be used for check dams
however, temporary wood or strawthay bales can also be used if properly
anchored and if the need arises. Permanent rock filter bunds are preferred as this
will ensure that rapid surface water runoff is mitigated against for the life of the
Development.

- Check dams will be installed at ¢. 20 m intervals within the length of drainage
channels. This is dependent on the slope angle and height of check dams
constructed, refer to EIAR Appendix 9.6 — Tile no. 3.

- Check dams will include a small orifice / pipe at the base to allow the flow of water
during low flow conditions i.e., maintain hydrolagical regime during low flow

conditions. Note: the use of coarse aggregate will facilifate some infiliration.
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Erosion protection will be established on the downstream side of the check dam
i.e., cobbles or boulder {100-150 mm diameter) extending at least 1.2 m (EIAR
Appendix 9.6 — Tile no. 3 and 4).

- Check dams will be constructed as part of the drain i.e., reduce the potential for

bypassing between the drain wall and check dam,

Further details and design considerations are presented in EIAR Appendix 9.6

- Tile no. 3 to 6, refer also to Section 5 of Management Plan 3, Surface Water

Management Plan.

. Surface water runoff will be discharged to land via buffered drainage outfalls (refer to
EIAR Appendix 9.6 Tiles 7, 8 and 12 see alsc Drawing Nos. 6226-PL-301 and 6226-
PL-100 to 108 and Management Plan 3, Surface Water Management Plan). Buffered
drainage outfalls will contain hard core material of similar or identical geology to the

bedrock at the site to entrap suspended sediment. In addition, these outfalls promote

TN

6 JUN 2023 646

e As per the drainage design (EIAR Figure 2.6), buffered drainage outfalls will be Iocu:izgd
outside of surface water buffer zones. Similarly, outfalis will not be positioned in areié%)é\
with extensive existing erosion and exposed soils. Buffered outfalls will be fanned and
be comprised of coarse aggregate (cobbles / boulders) (EIAR Appendix 9.6 -Tiles 12
and 13). These structures will be akin to rip raps (coastal erosion defences/ outfall
erosion defences). Silt fences (EIAR Figure 2.6 and Sections 4 and 5 of Management
Plan 3, Surface Water Management Plan) will be established downstream of buffered
outfalls with a view to ensuring the effectiveness of the attenuation train, particularly
during elevated flow events. Buffered outfalls established will be permanent.

J Very fine solids, or colloidal particles, are very slow to settle out of waters and the finest
of particles require near still water and relatively long periods of time to settle, therefore,
such particles are uniikely to settle despite the aforementioned measures. To address
this, as required, flocculant will be used to promote the settlement of finer solids prior
to redistributing to the treatment train and discharging to surface water networks.
Flocculant ‘gel blocks’ are available and can be placed in drainage channels upstream
of stilling ponds. Gel blocks are passive systems, self-dosing and self-limiting, however

they still require management (by the Contractor's Environmental Manager and
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supervised by the Developer appointed Ecological Clerk of Works {Ecological Clerk of
Works (ECoW)) as per the manufacturer’s instructions. Flocculants are made from ionic
polymers. Cationic polymers {positive charge) are effective flocculants; however, their
positive charge make them toxic to aquatic organisms. Anionic polymers (negative
charge) are also effective flocculants, and are not toxic i.e., environmentally friendly ".
Therefore, when flocculants are reguired, the material used must be made from anionic
polymer. Gel blocks will be a temporary measure during the construction phase.

° Straw bales (similar to stone check dams) (EIAR Appendix 9.6 - Tile 13), and silt
fences (discussed under diffuse runoff) can also be used within drainage channels for
the purposes of attenuating runoff and entrained suspended solids, however these
measures should be considered temporary and will be used mainly in managing
potential acute contamination incidents (e.g. additional features to control runoff during
excavation works) or to facilitate temporary works (e.g. corrective actions, discussed in
later sections). Note; the installation of straw bales or silt fences will require checking
on a daily basis by the Contractor's Environmental Manager and supervised by the
Ecological Clerk of Works {ECoW) to ensure the bypassing does not occur. Coarse
stone / boulders could be used in conjunction with these measures to address such

issues.

The above measures, buffer zones, constructed drainage, check dams, two-stage stilling
ponds design for attenuation, buffered outfalls are referred to as The Treatment Train,
whereby the runoff will continuously be treated from source (construction area} to receptor
(site exit, outfall of attenuation lagoon). Where necessary (>25 mg/L suspended solids) the

treatment train will be augmented through the use of anionic polymer gel blocks.

These measures reduce the suspended sediment and associated nutrient loading to surface
water courses and mitigates potential impacts to water quality and on plant and animal

ecologies downstream of the site.

The precautionary and mitigation measures listed here will avoid, reduce or remedy all
potential impdcts on water quality and will ensure that the sensitive receptors in the
catchment of the Development do not suffer any deterioration in water quality, either during

construction, operation, or decommissioning.

' USEPA (2013) Stormwater Best Management Practice -~ Polymer Flocoulation (Avallable at:
hitp:/iwww.siltstop.com/pictures/US_EPA Polymer_Flocculant Handout 3-14.pdf)
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3.4.4

Particularly sensitive areas are identified and presented in EIAR Figure 9.13a to inform the
drainage design. The drainage design is presented on Planning Drawings 6226-PL-100 to
6226-PL-108 and calculations are inciuded in Management Plan 3: Surface Water
Management Plan. The design indicates in detail the locations of treatment train features,

and the spegcification required at each location.

Release of Hydrocarbons Proposed Mitigation Measures

Where fuelling offsite is impractical (e.g., bulldozers, cranes, etc.), and refuelling must occur
on site, then a discrete “fuel station” {(Planning Drawing 6226-PL-803) will be designated
with the Contractor's compound for the purpose of safe fuel storage and fuel transfer to

vehicles. This fuel station will be bunded to 110% volume capacity of fuels stored at the si

The bunded area will be drained by an oil interceptor and drainage of same will be co t Dlled

by a pent stock valve that will be opened to discharge storm water from the bund out3|de3-
buffer zones. A suitably qualified management company will take respons I:;;hty ot
management and maintenance of the oil interceptor and associated drainage on %regulac(_:;fg

basis, including decommissioning following construction. =

For site cranes, refuelling will take place outside of buffer zones and a drip tray will b ”"..i

Spill kits will be available within the refuelling vehicle for any such: refuelling activity.

Despite the management of refuelling and fuel storage, there remains the risk of leakage
from vehicles and plant equipment during construction activity. The plant equipment used on
site will require regular mechanical checks and audits to prevent spillage of hydrocarbons on

the exposéd ground {during construction).

As a precautionary measure, oil {hydrocarbon) absorbent booms will be installed in all surface
water features associated with the Development, downstream of each of the proposed
construction areas, and at principal surface water features draining the Site. There will be
two oil booms installed at each required location, this will facilitate changing out of booms if
needed, without facilitating direct flow of floating product during such activities if present. Qil
booms deployed will have sufficient absorbency relative to the hazard, for example the
volume of fuel in a particular construction vehicle,

In the event of an accidental spili during the construction or operational phase of the
Development, contamination occurrences will be addressed immediately, this includes the

cessation of works in the area of the spillage until the issue is resolved. In this regard, spill
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3.4.5

kits will be kept in each vehicle associated with the Development i.e., spill kits will be readily
available to all operators. Spill kits will contain a minimum of; oil absorbent granules, oil
absorbent pads, oil absorbent booms, and heavy-duty refuse bags (for collection and
appropriate disposal of contaminated matter). No materials, contaminated or otherwise will
be left on the Site. Spill kits will also be established at proposed construction areas, for
example a spill kit will be established and mobilised as part of the turbine erection materials
and equipment. Suitable receptacles for hydrocarbon contaminated materials will also be at
hand.

Once the above measures are implemented the risk of hydrocarbon contamination
intercepting the surface water netwark will be significantly reduced, however there remains a
level of risk, and therefore both precautionary measures and emergency response protocols
have been established and specified in Management Plan 1: Emergency Response Plan

and Management Plan 3: Surface Water Management Plan.

Release of Cement-Base Products

In order to mitigate the potential impact posed by the use of concrete and the associated

effects on surface water in the receiving environment, the foillowing precautions and

mitigation measures are recommended:

. Precast concrete will be used wherever possible i.e., formed offsite. Elements of the
Development where the use of precast concrete will be used include e.g., structural
elements of watercourse crossings (single span / closed culverts). Elements of the
Development where the use of precast concrete is not possible inciudes e.g., turbine
foundations. Where the use of precast concrete is not possible the following mitigation
measures will apply.

° Lean mix concrete, often used fo provide protection to main foundations of
infrastructure from soil biome, can alter the pH of water if infraduced, which would then
require the treatment of acid before being discharged to the surrounding environment.
The use of lean mix concrete will be minimized, limited to the requirement of turbine
foundations. The risk of runoff will be minimal, as concrete will be contained in an
enclosed, excavated area,

o The acquisition, transport and use of any cement or concrete on site will be planned
fully in advance of commencing works by the Contractor's Environmental Manager and
supervised at all times by the Developer appointed Environmental Clerk of Warks
(EnvCoW). This entails minimising quantities on site, planning delivery routes and

washout stations.
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. Vehicles transporting such material will be relatively clean upon arrival on site, that is;
vehicles will be washed/rinsed removing cementitious material leaving the source
location of the material. There will be no excess cementitious material on the vehicle
which could be deposited on trackways or anywhere else on site. To this end, vehicles
will undergo a visual inspection prior to being permitted to drive onto the proposed site
or progress beyond the Contractor’'s yard. Vehicles will also be in good working order.

. Any shuttering installed to contain the concrete during pouring will be installed to a high
standard with minimal potential for leaks.

o Concrete will be poured during periods of minimal precipitation. This will reduce the
potential for surface water run off being significantly affected by freshly poured

concrete. This will involve limiting these works to dry meteorological conditions i.e.,

Y

avoid foreseen sustained rainfall (any foreseen rainfall event longer than 4-h i

LS

duration) and/or any foreseen intense rainfall event (>3 mm/hour, yellow on

] -
=l Prems i BENEE S
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cleaned/removed as soon as possible and disposed of appropriately.

. Pouring of concrete into standing water within excavations will not be undertaken.
Excavations will be prepared before pouring of concrete by pumping standing water out
of excavations to the treatment train and buffered surface water discharge systems in
place.

. Temporary storage of cement bound sand (if required for construction of the substation
building) will be on hardstand areas only where there is no direct drainage to surface
waters and where the area has been bunded e.g., using sandbags and geotextile
sheeting or silt fencing to contain any solids in run-off.

. Pouring of concrete into standing water within excavations will be avoided. Excavations
will be prepared before pouring of concrete by pumping standing water out of
excavations to the buffered surface water discharge systems in place.

s No surplus concrete will be stored or deposited anywhere on site. Such material will be
returned to the source location or disposed of off-site appropriately.

o A designated skip(s) will be provided for washing out of concrete chutes. The contents

will be allowed to settle and the supernatant will be removed off site by licenced
generstor to a licenced waste water tfreatment plant.
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3.4.6 Instream Works
The development of the Wind Farm includes the construction of three (3 No.) clear-span

bridge watercourse crossings. Please see Management Plan 2: Water Quality

Management Plan for more details.

The construction area will be isclated, this means; the water feature (streams / drains)
will be temporarily dammed upstream of the watercourse crossing and flow will be
diverted by means. of a flume / pipe by gravity or pumped (this is referred to as over
pumping, Appendix 9.6 — Tile 1) downstream of the watercourse crossing and
construction area.

Following the successful upstream damming, a downstream dam or barrier will-also be
established. The downstream barrier will ensure contaminated runoff in the isolated
work area can be contained and managed and will block surface water back flow in
lower lying or flatter areas. Appendix 9.6 — Tile 1 presents a conceptual plan view of
an isolated construction area within a surface water feature. Over pumping of a surface
water feature is considered diversion of water runoff only and therefore considered
similar to discharge of storm water runoff only to sewer {exempt from licensing),
however it is imperative that controls are in place to ensure environmental impacts are
minimised, particularly in relation to ecological sensitivities.

In order to ensure isolation and over pumping is carried out effectively, the methodology
must ensure that dams are secure / sufficiently supported, and that pumping of water
can continue uninterrupted and that pumps are capable of keeping up with the
discharge rate of the surface water feature. Pumping systems will require backup and
fail-safe protocols e.g., backup pumps and generator. At significant surface water
features e.g., non-mapped streams, isolation and diversion of drainage will be
implemented.

Provided the construction water within the isolation area is managed effectively, over
pumping of the surface water feature does not pose a significant risk to surface water
quality downstream of the watercourse crossing. With reference to Section 6.4.2 of
Chapter 6: Aquatic Ecology, clear span design of the bridges/crossings
(Management Plan 2: Water Quality Management Plan will not affect instream
aquatic habitat or interfere with the passage of fish or aquatic fauna.

Water ingress into the construction area will be managed and collected by established
sumps immediately downstream of the works (upstream of the downstream barrier)
(Appendix 9.6 — Tile no. 1). Runoff within the construction area will likely be heavily
laden with suspended solids. Where required, dewatering (pumping out or extracting)

of such waters will be discharged to an inline settlement tank, or preestablished stilling
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pond to remove suspended solids before being discharged (Appendix 9.6 Tiles 8 and
9). The quality of the water being discharged will be monitored. If discharge water
quality is poor (e.g., >25 mg/L) additional measures will be implemented, for example
treating construction water by dosing with coagulant to enhance the settlement of finer
solids — this can be done in a controlled manner by means of a suitably equipped
settlement tank. Collected and treated construction water will be discharged by gravity
/ pump to a vegetated area of ground within the Site (an example is provided in
Appendix 9.6 — Tile 12). Silt fences (Appendix 9.6 — Tile 14), will be established at
the discharge area to ensure potential residual suspended solids are attenuated and
the potential for erosion is reduced. The discharge area will be outside of the sg;[a
water buffer areas (similar to dewatering of excavations). For further detallsj%_.efes;g

Appendix 9.6 — Tiles 6 to 9.

Discharging of construction water (trade effluent) directly to surface waters i igA

runoff discharging to the surface water network will be acceptable e.g., <25 mg
Suspended Solids.

Operation of machinery in-stream will be kept to an absolute minimum and avoided
where possible. Where in stream works are required, the area will be isolated by means
of over pumping or drainage diversion (Appendix 9.6 Tile 1), discussed further below.
Works in relation to watercourse crossings will be carried out during periods of
sustained dry meteorological conditions and will not commence if sustained wet
conditions or if wet conditions are forecast.

Works in relation to watercourse crossings wilt be planned and carried out as efficiently
as possible. This means work plans are agreed fully and all equipment and materials
are prepared fully before in stream works commence. Works will be completed as
quickly as possible and will not pause for the duration of the in stream works e.g.,
Installation of culverts (24 hour as necessary), with the exception of circumstances
related to metecrological and/or health and safety conditions.

Only precast concrete will be used for in stream works.

A full Schedule of Mitigation Measures relating to Site Drainage can be seen in Appendix
17.1.
LB226 CEMP | i B9 ) JENNINGS O DONOYAN

TR i TRe TN



Clieni:
Profect Title:

Document Title:

inchamore Wind DAC Date: May 2023
inchamore Wind Farm Project No: 6226
Construction Environmental Management Plan Document issue: Final

3.5 Air and Climate

The main potential impact during the construction phase of the Development will be from dust

nuisance at sensitive receptors close to the Site. Good practice site procedures will be

followed by the appointed coniractor to prevent dirt and dust being transported onto the local

road network. Good practice site control measures will comprise the following:

Site Access Roads will be upgraded and built in the initial construction phases. These
roads will be finished with graded aggregate which compacts, preventing dust.

Approach roads and construction areas will be cleaned on a regular basis to prevent build-
up of mud and prevent it from migrating around the Site and onto the public road network.
Wheel wash facilities will be provided near the Site entrances to prevent mud/dirt being
transferred from the site to the public road network.

Public roads along the construction haul route will be inspected and cleaned daily. In the
unlikely event that dirt/mud is identified on public roads, the roads will be cleaned. The
wheel wash facility will be investigated, and the problem fixed to prevent this from
happening again.

During periods of dry and windy weather, there is potential for dust to become friable
and cause nuisance to nearby residences and users of the local road network. This
requires wetting material and ensuring water is supplied at the correct levels for the
duration of the work activity. The weather will be monitored so that the need for damping
down activities can be predicted. Water bowsers will be available to spray work areas
(wind turbine area and grid connection route) and haul roads to suppress dust migration
from the Site.

Vehicles delivering materiais to the site will be covered appropriately when transporting
materials that could result in dust, e.g., crushed rock or sand.

Exhaust emissions from vehicles operating within the site, including trucks, excavators,
diesel generators or other plant equipment, will be controlled by the Contractor by
ensuring that emissions from vehicles are. minimised through reguiar servicing of
machinery.

All machinery when not in use will be turned off.

Ready-mix concrete will be delivered to the Site and no baiching of concrete will take
place on the Site. Only washing out of chutes will take place on site and this will be
undertaken at a designated concrete washout facility at the contractor's compound. The
concrete wash water will be disposed of at a licensed facility as outlined in Management

Plan §: Waste Management Plan.

6226 CEMP

JENNINGS O'DONOVAN

LTRTg Lrmen

¥ CONSULYING ENGIRTERS

50




s

Client: inchamare Wind DAC Date: May 2023
Project Titlo: inchamore Wind Farm Project No: 6226
Document Title:  Construction Environmental Management Plan Document Issue: Final

) Speed restrictions of 15 km/h on access roads will be implemented to reduce the likelihood
of dust becoming airborne. Consideration will be given to how on-site speed limits are
policed by the Contractor and referred to in the toolbox talks.

) Stockpiling of materials will be carried out in such a way as to minimise their exposure to
wind. Stockpiles will be covered with geotextiles layering and damping down will be carried
ouf when weather conditions require i.

) Earthworks and exposed areas/soil stockpiles will be re-vegetated to stabilise surfaces as
soon as practicable.

. An independent, qualified Geotechnical Engineer will be contracted for the detailed
design stage of the project and geotechnical services and will be retained throughout
the construction phase, including monitoring and supervision of construction activities
on a regular basis. The methodology statement will be signed off by a suitably quafifiy

Geotechnical Engineer. u ﬁ :
° A complaints procedure will be implemented on site where complaints will be re ;fted, W
logged and appropriate action taken. ccq
[
o
It is considered that the Development will have no potential significant effects, giverl the ==
1“2 :)
mitigation measures embedded in the design and recommended for the implementation of =
the Project. N W

The Project will assist Ireland in meeting a 51% reduction in overall greenhouse gas
emissions by 2030. Also, it will aid in increasing the onshore wind capacity, as per the Climate
Action Plan 2023 (CAP2023). The CAP 2023 commits Irefand to installing up to 8 GW of

onshore wind capacity by 2030, in order to support the reduction in Ireland’s greenhouse gas
emissions.

All construction vehicles and plant will be maintained in good operational order while onsite,
thereby minimising any emissions that arise.

3.6 Archaeology and Cultural Heritage

The mitigation measures presented in this section comprise construction phase
archaeological monitoring of ground works as well as protection measures for known and
potential cultural heritage assets within the Site. These mitigation measures are in
accordance with guidelines for planning conditions for wind energy developments within

close proximity to recorded archaeological monuments as published in Section 7.4 of the
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2006

Wind Energy Development Guidelines® and Section 7.6 of the 2019 Draft Revised Wind

Energy Development Guidelines®.

3.6.1 Mitigation

Construction Phase

Ground works during the construction phase will be subject to archaeological
monitoring by a suitably qualified archaeologist under licence by the National
Monuments Service. A systematic advance programme of archaeological field-walking
surveys will also be carried out within Development areas in forestry plantations
following tree felling to confirm the conditions predicted in this assessment, i.e., that
they contain no visible surface traces of potential unrecorded archaeological or
architectural heritage sites.

In the event that any sub-surface archaeological features are identified during these site
investigations they will be recorded and then securely cordoned off while the National
Monuments Service are consulted to determine further appropriate mitigation measures,
which may include preservation in sifu (by avoidance) or preservation by record
{archaeological excavation). Any identified sub-surface archaeological features which will
be preserved by avoidance will be securely cordoned off for the duration of the
construction phase and clearly signed as a ‘No Entry: Archaeological Area’.

The archaeologist appointed to monitor the construction phase will also supervise the
establishment of minimum 30 m radius concentric buffer zones around the external-
most elements of Field Boundary (CO057-006----) and Enclosure (CO057-007-—-).
These buffer zones will be securely fenced off and their locations will be clearly signed
as ‘No Entry’ for the duration of thé construction phase. No ground works of any kind
{including but not limited to advance geotechnical site investigation) and no machinery,
storage of materials or any other activity related to construction will occur within these
buffer zones. The location of a derelict farm building, which shown on the second
edition 6-inch OS map (published 1900), is ¢.110 m outside the nearest construction
area within the Site. This will be clearly signed as “No Entry” during the construction
phase. The locations of these onsite archaeological monuments and farm building will
also be identified as 'no-entry’ areas during the construction phase site inductions. The
location of two features located c.40 m to the north of T2, which are tentatively identified
as being of archaeological potential (hut site and upright stone), are located in private

lands outside the Redline Boundary. The erection of fencing around their locations will

? hitps:/fwww.gov.ie/en/publication/fd 49e-wind-energy-development-quidelines-2006/

? hitps Jhwww gov tefen/publication/0d0f66-draft-revised-wind-energy-devsiopment-guidelines-december-2019/
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therefore not be feasible but, “No Entry” signs will be erected at the north, south and
east edges of the Rediine Boundary within their environs.

o The Project is located within the Miscrai Gaeltacht area and any signage erected within

the public realm during the construction phase will include Irish and English text.

3.7 Noise & Vibration

No significant construction noise effects have been identified. Therefore, no specific mitigation
measures are required. However, general guidance for controlling construction noise through
the use of good practice given in BS 5228 will be followed. During construction of the

Development, activity shall be limited to working times incorporated in any planning permission.

3.8 Traffic

6

The following mitigation measures are recommended:

° A Traffic Management Plan (TMP) has been developed (see Management Pian 7
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attached to a grant or permission. All drivers will be made aware of the locatio "and
presence of sensitive receptors at an induction session prior to construction actiwtie@;
taking place and will be made aware of the speed limits of the various roads on the
route which are contained in the TMP and on the traffic arrangements for entering and
exiting the site. This is to ensure compliance with speed limits, and traffic management
arrangements.

. At the forest junction at the N22 (wind farm access) bitumen macadam surface will be
provided some 30 m into the junction with room to park HGV's clear of the N22.

o The forest access track will be regraded so as to reduce the gradient towards the N22.
An "Aco” type drain shall be provided to intercept rainfall run-off.

o All the traffic to the wind farm site will approach from the east such that they turn left at
the forest access. All traffic leaving the wind farm site will turn left only and, if required,
can turn around at Cummeenavrick. Signage and road markings will be provided to
facilitate/promote these manoeuvres.

. The new N22 Macrocom By-Pass will be used to transport turbine components,
materials for upgrading the turbine haul route, materials for construction of the civil and
electrical works to and from the wind farm site, as well as materials for the grid

connection so as {o minimise traffic through buit-up areas such as Macrocom,
Ballymakeery and Ballyvoumey.
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All significant traffic likely to be generated by Inchamore Wind Farm will be during the
construction of the development and will be temporary in nature. It is envisaged that
the construction period for the wind farm will span a 21-month period with the
underground cable being installed over a concurrent 12-month period. The
construction-phase Traffic Management Plan will mitigate these impacts. A number of
mitigation measures are embedded within the design:

- The design is such as to minimise the extent of the new build requirement by using
existing forestry tracks where possible, thereby minimising materials requirements.

- The design is such as to maximise the use of onsite resources (particularly stone
material for track construction) to minimise the requirement for material import.
Some 49,842 m® of stone is proposed to be won from the borrow pit which equates
to a 4,154 HGV trips to the site avoided (see Chapter 2: Table 2.4a).

- Retaining surplus excavated material on the Site so as to reinstate the borrow pits,
thereby eliminating traffic associated with the disposal of same. Some 50,276 m?
of spoil are proposed to be stored in the on-site borrow pit ar in roadside berms,
resulting in a saving of 4,190 HGV trips off the site (see Chapter 2: Table 2.4b).

- Designing the cable for instaliation in pre-laid ducts, rather than directly installing
the cable in the ground. The [atter would require the entire trench from joint bay to
joint bay to be fully open for cable laying.

Use special transporter vehicles with rear wheel steering in delivery of wind turbine

components to ensure safe transportation and manoeuvrability on the roads.

Extendable transporter vehicles will be retracted on return journeys.

Prior to the delivery of abnormal loads i.e., turbine components, the Applicant or their

representatives, will consult with An Garda Siochana and Cork and Kerry County

Council Roads Departments to discuss the requirement for a Garda escort.

The Developer will confirm the intended timescale for abnormal deliveries and every
effort will be made to avoid peak times such as school drop off times, church services,
sporting events, peak traffic times where it is considered this may lead to unnecessary
disruption.

Abnormal loads are likely to frave! at night and outside the normal construction times
as may be required by An Garda Siochana. Due to the relatively modest distance

between Ringaskiddy Port and the Site of c.92.8 km, the journey is achievable within a

2-3 hour timeframe. Accordingly, locations for resting will not be required. Local

residents along the affected route wilt be notified of the timescale for abnormal load

deliveries.
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o A condition survey of the existing N22 between Cummeenavrick and the Ballyvourney
Junction of the Macroom Bypass will be carried out prior to commencement of
construction and another will be undertaken post-construction. The Developer will
lodge a bond with Kerry County Council and or Cork County Council prior to
commencement of construction in the amount to be agreed with the respective Council
for the possible repair/upkeep of the road. During the construction period, the road will
be inspected weekly by the Developer's Resident Engineer and the Contractor will be
instructed to repair any defects within the foilowing week. At the end of the construction
period, any further defects will be remedied to the satisfaction of Kerry County Council,
Cork County Council and Transport Infrastructure lreland.

.

. Wheel cleaning equipment will be used at the exit from the wind farm Site at Derryre h

£ and also at the exit from the Grid Connection Works at Cummeenavrick o preven é“hy
X 7]

mud and/or stones being transferred from Site to the public road network. All d fyers

will be required 16 see that their vehicle is free from dirt and stones prior to depsiture
from the construction Site.

3

° The two Site entry points will also be appropriately signed. Access to the wind ﬁqrm
construction Site will be controlled by on Site personnel and all visitors will be aske%ﬂo
sign in and out of the Site by security / Site personnel on entering and exiting the Sit-"T
All Site visitors will undergo a Site induction covering Health and Safety issues at the
Contractor's temporary compound and will be required fo wear appropriate Personal
Protective Equipment (PPE) while onsite.

6 JUN2023 646

. Any dust generating activities will be minimised where practical during windy
conditions, and drivers will adopt driving practices to minimise the creation of dust.
Where conditions exist for dust to become friable, techniques such as damping down
of the potentially affected areas will be employed.

. To reduce dust emissions, vehicle containers/loads of crushed stone will be covered
during both entrance and egress to the Site.

° A survey of the turbine component haul route will be undertaken prior to
commencement to identify if any new overhead lines or broadband lines will need to be
raised along the route to allow abnormal loads such as tower sections and nacelles to
be delivered.

) During the construction phase, clear construction warning signs will be placed on the
N22 as necessary, which will advise road users of the presence of a construction Site
and of the likelihood of vehicles entering and exiting the Site or road construction areas.
This will help improve road safety.
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) Works on public roads on the turbine delivery road and grid connection will be strictly
in accordance with “Guidance for the Control and Management of Traffic at Road Works
— 2" Edition 2010” as well as “Traffic Signs Manual 2010-Chapter 8- Temporary Traffic
Measures and Signs at Roadworks”,

s Where required, i.e., Road Opening Licence will be obfained for the directional drill of
the grid connection under the N22.

. All vehicles using or while in operation at the wind farm site shall either have roof
mounted flashing beacons or will use their hazard lights.

° A speed limit of 25 km/h shall apply to all vehicles within the wind farm site.

3.8.1 Diversion Routes
The Site is generally served by the N22 which runs between Cork City and Tralee. The N22
is approximately 0.9 kilometres (km) to the north-east of the Site and has a speed limit of 100

km/h (kilometres per hour).

Receptors considered as having ‘high’ sensitivity are primarily premises which are directly on

the N28, N40 and N22 which already have significant potential to generate traffic.

3.8.2 Delivery Volume for Construction Materials

Table 3.1: Traffic Velumes for Wind Farm Site Infrastructure

lmported Crushed Stone for Slte Access Track and Turbine 4,670 m3 L __5’_3_89-
Hardstarids (assumes 100 mm thick wearing course) T Rt

. Site.Reinstatement.

Total ' - 1,781
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Table 3.2: Traffic Volumes for Turbine Components

" ‘Fencing and:Miscellaneous Deliveries.

Table 3.3: Traffic Volumes for Grid Works
in Roads by Directional Drill T 650

/Length of Grid Connectior

:E-EDlsposaI of Excavatecl matenals from
‘Public:Roads

Total No. of Deliveries

3.8.3 Site Entrance
There is one proposed Site entrance to the Development.

A wheel wash facility will be provided near the Site entrance so that the wheels of vehicles
exiting the Site can be cleaned prior to exiting onto the public road. This will be carried out

under the supervision of the Site Heaith & Safety manager and in accordance with the agreed
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Traffic Management Plan (Management Plan 7) fo ensure that it is undertaken in a safe

manner.

3.8.4 Construction Material Haul Route
The haul route of quarry materials i.e., readymix concrete will be established after the
appointment of the Contractors, but it is envisaged that material will be sourced from quarries

local to the Site te minimise disruption on the public road network as per EIAR Figure 15.3.

From Keim, trucks will follow the R582 in a south-easterly direction and join the New Macroom
By-Pass (N22) at Gurteénroe Junction. They will then follow the new N22 By-Pass to
Ballyvourney Junction and then the existing N22 to Derryreag to access the forest track in
the Site.

For the quarries to the south, trucks would use the R587, then the R584 to the existing N22,
proceed south-westwards to.the Coolcour Junction of the Macroom By-pass, proceed north-
westwards along the bypass to the Ballyvourney Junction with existing N22, follow existing
N22 westwards to the forestry entrance at Derryreag and then turn left and follow the forest

track to the wind farm site or to the grid connection on the southern side of the N22.

3.9 Waste
The following section details the environmental control measures which will be incorporated

into the Development in respect of Waste Management.

3.9.1 Mitigation

. The Contractors will avoid or minimise the volume of waste generated.

° Waste will be stored a minimum of 65 m from nearby watercourses or drains at the
Development.

J Waste storage and disposal will be carried out in a way which prevents pollution in
compliance with legislation.

. Rainwater, which has collected within bunded areas used for the storage of oils,
chemicals and waste, will be collected and disposed offsite by suitably qualified waste
Contractors.

) Waste derived from the port-a-cabins {office and canteen facility) onsite will be placed
in an appropriately designed waste storage area prior to collection a licensed

Contractors under the Waste Management Act, 1996 (as amended).
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Port-a-loos will be regularly maintained by a suitably qualified waste Contractors
engaged by the supplier.

The wheel cleaning facility is proposed at the Site entrance; in addition, a track sweeper
may be used.

All waste to be transported off-site to a licensed facility will be documented in
accordance with the European Union (Waste Directive) Regulations 2020. An adequate
description of the waste and where it came from will be given and an appropriate

Personal details of the waste transferor and transferee at the Development wi Ebe
documented. Waste will only be transferred by registered/licensed and comp ent
person(s).

DEVEL

Only trained operatives will handle hazardous substances. All stored hazardous a‘§te

s
w

will be clearly labelled.

‘:‘5

All oil storage facilities of over 200 litres need secondary containment facilities of 1 10%
storage capacity (e.g., bund, enclosure, drip tray). All of these will be regularly
inspected for visual signs of leaks or something that would impact on their capacity —
e.g., a drip tray full of rainwater.

Waste storage areas will be clearly located and signed. If space allows, key waste
streams will be separated.

All waste will be transported from the Site at appropriate frequency by a registered
waste Contractars to prevent over-filling of waste containers.

Frequency of Checks. The Contractors will ensure that all storage facilities are checked
on a weekly basis. The checklist for completion is attached in Management Plan 5:
Waste Management Plan.

3.10 Construction

The following sections detail an outline construction sequence to provide an overview of the

construction process; The construction-stage details of the sequence and methodologies, to

be undertaken within the framework of this CEMP, will be determined by the Contractors.

3.10.1 Phasing of Works

It is envisaged that the following will be the sequence of construction for the Development:

1.

Site Preparation including felling and drainage

2. Site Access Roads

3. Contractors Compound and Welfare Facilities
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Crane hardstandings
Turbine Foundations
Internal cable ducting
Installation of the Grid Connection

Erection of wind turbines

© XN o o -~

Commissioning and Energisation

3.10.2 Working Hours
The Development will have approximately 25 construction workers during the peak of the
construction phase. Working hours for construction will be from 07:00 to 19:00 on weekdays,
with reduced working hours at weekends, from 07:00 to 13:00 on a Saturday. It should be
noted that during the turbine erection phase, operations will need to take place outside those s
hours with concrete pours commencing at 05:00 and continuing till 16:00, to facilitate turbine
foundation construction and so that lifting operations are completed safely. Hours of working
for turbine foundation construction will be agreed with Cork County Council prior to the
commencement of turbine foundation construction. Chapter 15: Traffic and Transportation
refers to this in further detail. A detailed Traffic Management Plan {Management Plan 7) will
be implemented for the construction phase. This shall be agreed during the planning
compliance stage with the Planning Authority so that strict controls described therein are in

place with all suppliers coming to the Site.

3.10.3 Site Management Procedures and Construction Methodologies
Prior to commencement of construction, the appointed Contractors(s) will prepare detailed
method statements and work programmes for the construction stage. These method |
statements will be prepared in the context of measures set out in this CEMP and will take
account of mitigation measures as outlined in the planning application and accompanying
environment reports, and site investigations to be carried out prior to construction. Any
specific requirements will be fully incorporated into the appointed Contractors scopes of work

and appropriate supervision and management will be carried out to ensure full compliance.

The method statements produced by the Contractors(s) will be reviewed by the Ecological
Clerk of Works (ECoW}) and will be agreed with the appropriate parties, including Cork County
Council and Kerry County Council. The developer will employ a project manager to monitor
the construction phase of the Project and ensure works are being carried out in accordance

with the agreed method statements, safety procedures and pollution control measures.
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3.10.3.1 Mobhilisation of Contractors Plant
Prior to commencement of construction works, the selected Contractors shall submit to the

Developer a full list of plant, equipment and accommodation (site offices eic.) proposed for
use during the works.

Dates for mobilisation will be agreed with the developer and/or his representative/Owners
Engineer.

3.10.3.2 Site Infrastructure

Site Access Roads / Turbines

-z
Machinery and vehicles used in access track construction are operated from the tra

as it is constructed.

The location of all infrastructure required for this Development shall be set out by GPS

oved
drawings. The Site will be set out using wooden posts to mark the boundary and extent Bf\w

Time Kinematicenabled®) equipment to the permitted detail as noted on the appr

construction activities, in accordance with the Site layout and environmental constraints
drawings, and with contributions from the ‘appointed ecologist. The boundaries of the buffer
zones will be taped/fenced off to prevent construction plant from entering the buffer zones
and impacting on water quality. Site personnel will be informed of the buffer zones through
toolbox talks onsite, both before and during construction. New personnel will be informed of

the construction buffer zones with induction training before commencing work.

Borrow Pit

Most of the crushed stone fill material for site track and hardstand areas will be sourced from
the permitted borrow pit outlined above.

The rock will be extracted from the proposed borrow pit using two main methods, rock
breaking and rock blasting. The primary method will be rock breaking. Rock sourced from the
proposed borrow pit will be used for the roads and hardstanding areas. The borrow pit will

operate for the duration of the construction period of the site infrastructure.

* Real-time kinematic (RTK) processing on a drone records GPS information and geotags images as they're captured
during flight,

L BR26 CEMP |8
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The effects of blasting vibration and air overpressure from the Development is af distances
greater than 610 m and is therefore considered not significant and will be kept well within the
recommended EPA guidance value of 125 dB (lin) (and those described in Chapter 11:

Noise).

3.10.3.3 Establish Pre- Commencement Mitigation Measures
Prior to construction works advancing on site, the Contractors shalil confirm to the Employer
of their intention to advance the works in a sound practical manner with no undue impact on
the receiving environment. The Contractors shall identify all sensitive environmental areas
within the Employer's site and confirm their intended method of construction works regarding
these areas in line with the methods outlined in this CEMP. All environmentally sensitive

areas shall be identified prior to the detailed design/construction phase.

Where the estimated working area is reduced by any sensitive environmental areas i.e.,
buffer zones, post and tape marking shall be used to set out these locations and thus prevent

the entry of Contractors plant within these areas during construction works.

To protect any known ecological features that occur close to the pianned infrastructure, a
delineated waorking corridor will be employed throughout the construction. Pasts and tape
will be used to establish these areas and thus prevent the entry of Contractors plant outside
the working corridor during construction works, Locations of ecological significance or where

invasive species are identified will also be fenced off.

A 65 m buffer to natural watercourses will be employed during construction to protect water
quality and to see that there is no significant direct effect on existing watercourses. The
proposed locations for spoil storage are highlighted in Management Plan 4: Peat and Spoil
Management Plan. Where spoil storage areas are located in proximity to watercourse buffer
zones, silt fencing will be installed along the area facing the buffer zone and maintained in
line with the instructions of the manufacturer. Works within the buffer zone will be subject to

specific method statements.
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3.10.3.4 Site Preparation

Entrance Formation

From Ringaskiddy Port, County Cork, turbine nacelles, tower hubs and rotor blades will be
transported to the N22. They will then turn around towards the Site along an existing Access
Track (Site entrance).

Turbine components and construction materials will use the same route and site entrance.

Please refer to Figures 3.2 for an illustration of the Site entrance location.
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Figure 3.2 Map showing the proposed location of the site entrance at Inchamore Wind Farm.
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Works required at the site entrance will include the following:

Clearing visibility splays of vegetation / soil to a level surface;

Extending the entrance to allow HGVs turn left into the site from the N22;
Excavating to solid formation level,

Installing roadside drainage features;

Placing entrance sub-base with rockfill material;

Placing capping layer;

Providing surface dressing where necessary to prevent rutting of existing road surface.

The detailed construction method statement for site entrance preparation is included in Table
34. e

3.4: Site Entrance Preparation CMS
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“Excavate - o ck | The Contractors shall provide that Soilis carefully distributed
formation level along the | and banked adjac’en_t to the entrance within t_hé construction
extent:of the site entrance:|: boundary:;-’;r_-Soi_l-r:-:-will' :be: managed:-as: :per = the- spoil
and accommodate | management plan. Any storage of _fnaterial will be'located to

drainage. see that no interference with visibility: splays occurs:

Installation”of  security | Re

gateshut ~ (whers |

required); tied-into. the re- | -

aligned fence.

Contractors Compound and Weifare Facilities

The temporary site compound will be in place for the duration of the construction works only.
The compound will be used as a secure storage area for construction materials and to contain
temporary site accommodation units for sealed type staff welfare facilities. The compound
will contain cabins for offices space, meeting rooms, canteen area, a drying room, parking

facilities, and similar personnel type facilities.

An area within the compound will be used for the storage of fuel and oils and this will be
suitably bunded to 110% of the storage volume. The bund will be lined with an impermeable
membrane in order to prevent any contamination of the surrounding soils, vegetation and
water table. Double protection containers / equipment will be used along with drip trays and
details.
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During the construction phase, water will be supplied by water bowser. The maximum
wastewater production is estimated to be the same as the maximum water consumption
(1,000 litres per day). The Development will include an enclosed wastewater management
system at the temporary compound capable of handling the demand during the construction
phase with 25 construction workers on site at peak. A holding tank is proposed for wastewater

management. Wastewater which will be removed off-site and disposed at an appropriate
licenced facility.
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Figure 3.3 Contractors Temporary Compound Plan (Excerpt from Drawing No. 6226-PL.-803)
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